THE CONSTITUTION OF SURREY HEATH
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Pages

Part 1 Summary and Explanation 1-6
Part2 Articles of the Constitution 7-52

Article 1 The Constitution

Article 2 Members of the Council

Article 3 Citizens and the Council

Article 4 The Full Council

Article 5 The Mayor

Article 6 Scrutiny/ Select Committees

Article 7 The Leader, the Deputy Leader and the Executive

Article 8 Regulatory and other Committees

Article 9 The Standards Hearing and Determination Committee

Article 10 Area Committees and Forums

Article 11 Joint Arrangements

Article 12 Officers

Article 13 Decision Making

Article 14 Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters

Article 15 Review and Revision of the Constitution

Article 16 Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the Constitu

Schedule 1 Description of Executive Arrangements
Part 3 Responsibility for Functions 53-118

A Scheme for Delegation of Functions

B Scheme of Delegation of Functions to Officers

C Proper Officers of the Council

D Roles of Different Councillors

E Terms of Reference of the Executive, Committees

and other bodies

Part4 Procedural Rules 119 - 264

A Council Procedure Rules

B Executive Procedure Rules

C Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rules

D Committees, Sub Committees and Other Bodies

Procedure Rules

E Public Speaking Procedure Rules

F Access to Information Procedure Rules

G Budget and Policy Framework Rules

H Financial Regulations

Page 1

Constitution of Surrey Heath Borough Council\18 May 2023



Part5

Part 6

Part 7

Part 8

Part 9

Contract Standing Orders

I

J Officer Employment Rules

K Substitution Procedure Rules
L Petitions Scheme

Codes and Protocols
A Members’ Code of Conduct
B Member and Officer Protocol
C IT Code of Practice for Members
D Planning Code of Practice for Councillors and
Officers
E Monitoring Officer Protocol
Members' Allowances Scheme
Management Structure
Executive Portfolios

Documents which support the Constitution

Page 2

Constitution of Surrey Heath Borough Council\18 May 2023

265 - 310

311 -318

319 - 322

323 - 326

327 - 400



Y H
&=
“w = =
w == -
0, — 3

“Gh O
PART 1

SUMMARY AND EXPLANATION

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART 1 - SUMMARY AND EXPLANATION

The Council's Constitution

Surrey Heath Borough Council has adopted a constitution which sets out how
the Council operates. It describes how decisions are made and the
procedures which are followed. Some of these processes are required by the
law, while others are a matter for the Council to choose.

The Constitution is divided into 16 articles which set out the basic rules
governing the Council’s business. More detailed procedures and codes of
practice are provided in separate rules and protocols at the end of the
document.

What'’s in the Constitution?

Article 1 of the Constitution sets out the Council’s purpose in preparing the
Constitution. Articles 2-16 explain the rights of the public and how the key
parts of the Council operate. These are:

Members of the Council (Article 2)

The Public and the Council (Article 3)

The Full Council (Article 4)

The Mayor (Article 5)

Scrutiny Committees (Article 6)

The Leader, the Deputy Leader and the Executive (Article 7)
Regulatory and Other Committees (Article 8)

The Audit & Standards Committee (Article 9)

Area Committees and Forums (Article 10)

Joint arrangements (Article 11)

Officers (Article 12)

Decision making (Article 13)

Finance, contracts and legal matters (Article 14)

Review and revision of the Constitution (Article 15)
Suspension, interpretation and publication of the Constitution (Article 16)

How the Council operates

The Council is composed of 35 councillors elected every four years.
Councillors are democratically accountable to residents of their ward. Their
overriding duty is to the whole community, but they have a special duty to
their constituents, including those who did not vote for them.

All councillors meet together as the Council. Meetings of the Council are

normally open to the public. Here, councillors decide the Council’s overall
policies and set the budget each year.

Page 3 PART 1


http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a1.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a2.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a3.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a4.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a5.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a6.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a7.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a8.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a9.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a11.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a12.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a13.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a14.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a15.htm
http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a16.htm

The Council elects the Leader for a four year term of office. The Leader
appoints the Deputy Leader and up to 8 other councillors to form the
Executive, known as Portfolio Holders. The Leader decides the areas of
responsibility to be allocated to the Portfolio Holders. The Leader is held to
account by the Council. Article 7 sets out the arrangements for the
appointment of the Leader, the Deputy Leader and the Portfolio Holders.

The Council also appoints councillors to other committees.

The Council has agreed procedures to enable the public to take part in
Council meetings by asking the Leader, Portfolio Holders and Chairman of
Committees, questions and presenting petitions. The procedures are set out
in the Public Speaking Rules at Part 4. The Leader of the Council may make
an address on the annual state of the Borough at the meeting of the Council
which sets the Council Tax.

How Decisions Are Made

The Leader of the Council is responsible for most day-to-day decisions. These
decisions can be delegated to the Executive, individual Portfolio Holders, or
officers. When major decisions are to be discussed or made, these are
published in the Schedule of Key Decisions in so far as they can be
anticipated. This is explained further in the Access to Information Procedure
Rules in Part 4.

The Executive meets in public except where personal or confidential matters
are being discussed. Decisions have to be made in line with the Council’s
overall policies and budget. If a decision which is outside the budget or policy
framework is required, this must be referred to the Council as a whole to
decide.

Overview and Scrutiny

There are 2 scrutiny committees, which support the work of the
Leader/Executive and the Council as a whole. They allow residents to have a
greater say in Council matters by holding inquiries in public into matters of
local concern. These lead to reports and recommendations which advise the
Leader/Executive and the Council as a whole on its policies, budget and
service delivery. Scrutiny committees also monitor the decisions of the
Leader and the Executive. They can call-in a decision which has been made
by the Leader or the Executive but not yet implemented. This enables them
to consider whether the decision is appropriate. They may recommend that
the decision maker reconsider the decision. They may also be consulted by
the Leader/Executive or the Council on forthcoming decisions and the
development of policy.

The Council’s Staff

The Council has people working for it (called ‘officers’) to give advice,
implement decisions and manage the day-to-day delivery of its services.

Page 4 PART 1



Some officers have a specific duty to ensure that the Council acts within the
law and uses its resources wisely. A code of practice governs the
relationships between officers and members of the Council.

Citizens’ Rights

Citizens have a number of rights in their dealings with the Council. These are
set out in more detail in Article 3. Some of these are legal rights, whilst others
depend on the Council’'s own processes. The local Citizens’ Advice Bureau
can advise on individuals’ legal rights.

Where members of the public use specific council services, they may have
additional rights. These are not covered in this Constitution.

Citizens have the right to:

e vote at local elections if they are registered;

e contact their local councillor about any matters of concern to them;

e view a copy of the Constitution on the Council’s website or inspect a hard
copy at the Council’s offices;

e attend meetings of the Council and its committees except where, for
example, personal or confidential matters are being discussed;

e petition to request a referendum on a mayoral form of executive;

e present petitions to Council and ask questions of councillors holding office
at meetings of the Council and to make representations about planning
applications to the Planning Applications Committee in certain
circumstances;

e find out, from the Schedule of Key Decisions, what major decisions are to
be discussed or decided by the Leader/Executive, the Council or officers,
and when;

e attend meetings of the Executive where key decisions are being discussed
or decided;

e see reports and background papers, and any record of decisions made by
the Council, the Leader/Executive, the Portfolio Holders and the Council’s
or Executive’s committees;

e complain to the Council about any aspects of its services;

e complain to the Ombudsman if they think the Council has not followed its
procedures properly. However, they should only do this after using the
Council's own complaints process;

e complain to the Monitoring Officer if they have evidence which they think
shows that a councillor has not followed the Council's Code of Conduct;
and

e inspect the Council's accounts and make their views known to the external
auditor.

The Council welcomes participation by its citizens in its work. Citizens may

obtain further information on their rights by contacting the Head of Legal &
Democratic Services.

Page 5 PART 1


http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/your_council/council_and_committee_meetings/csp_yourcouncil_councilconstitution/csp_yourcouncil_constitution_p2a3.htm

This page is intentionally left blank



PART 2

ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION

Article

Article 1 The Constitution

Article 2 Members of the Council

Article 3 Citizens and the Council

Article 4 The Full Council

Article 5 The Mayor

Article 6 Scrutiny/ Select Committees

Article 7 The Leader, the Deputy Leader and the Executive

Article 8 Regulatory and other Committees

Article 9 The Standards Hearing and Determination Committee
Article 10  Area Committees and Forums

Article 11 Joint Arrangements

Article 12 Officers

Article 13 Decision Making

Article 14  Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters

Article 15  Review and Revision of the Constitution

Article 16  Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the Constitution
Schedule 1  Description of Executive Arrangements

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

ARTICLE 1 - THE CONSTITUTION

Powers of the Council

The Council will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with the law
and this Constitution.

The Constitution

This Constitution, and all its appendices, is the Constitution of Surrey Heath
Borough Council.

Purpose of the Constitution

The purpose of the Constitution is to:

(a)  enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the community in
promoting its environmental, economic and social well being, in
partnership with citizens, businesses and voluntary and other

organisations;

(b) support the active involvement of citizens in the process of the
Council’s decision-making;

(c) help councillors represent their constituents more effectively;
(d)  enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively;

(e) create a powerful and effective means of holding decision-makers to
account;

) ensure that no-one will review or scrutinise a decision in which they
were directly involved;

(@)  ensure that those responsible for decision-making are clearly
identifiable to local people and that they communicate and explain the
reasons for decisions; and

(h) provide a means of maintaining and improving the delivery of services
to the community.

Interpretation and Review of the Constitution
Where the Constitution permits the Council to choose between different
courses of action, the Council will always choose that option which it thinks is

closest to the purposes stated above.

The Council will monitor and evaluate the operation of the Constitution as set
out in Article 15.

Page 9 PART 2 - ARTICLE 1



Page 10 PART 2 - ARTICLE 1



2.1

2.2

2.3

ARTICLE 2 - MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

Composition and eligibility

(@)

(b)

Composition

The Council will comprise 35 members, otherwise called councillors.
One or more councillors will be elected by the voters of each ward in
accordance with a scheme drawn up by the Local Government
Boundary Commission and approved by the Secretary of State.

Eligibility

Only registered voters of Surrey Heath or those living or working there
will be eligible to hold the office of councillor.

Election and terms of councillors

The regular election of councillors will normally be held on the first Thursday
in May every four years beginning 2003. By-elections will be held as
required. The terms of office of councillors will start on the fourth day after
they are elected and will finish on the fourth day after the date of the next
regular election.

Roles and functions of all councillors

(@)

Key roles

All councillors will:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

V)
(vi)
(Vi)

collectively be the ultimate policy-makers and carry out a
number of strategic and corporate management functions;

represent their communities and bring their views into the
Council’s decision-making process, i.e. become the advocate of
and for their communities;

deal with individual casework and act as an advocate for
constituents in resolving particular concerns or grievances;

balance different interests identified within the ward and
represent the ward as a whole;

be involved in decision-making;
be available to represent the Council on other bodies; and

maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics.

Page 11 PART 2 - ARTICLE 2



2.4

2.5

(b) Rights and duties

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Conduct

Councillors will have such rights of access to such documents,
information, land and buildings of the Council as are necessary
for the proper discharge of their functions and in accordance
with the law.

Councillors will not make public information which is confidential
or exempt without the consent of the Council or divulge
information given in confidence to anyone other than a councillor
or officer entitled to know it.

For these purposes, "confidential" and "exempt" information are
defined in the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in
Part 4 of this Constitution.

Councillors will at all times observe the Members’ Code of Conduct and the
Member and Officer Protocol set out in Part 5 of this Constitution.

Allowances

Councillors will be entitled to receive allowances in accordance with the
Members’ Allowances Scheme set out in Part 6 of this Constitution.

Page 12 PART 2 - ARTICLE 2



3.1

ARTICLE 3 - CITIZENS AND THE COUNCIL

Citizens’ rights

Citizens have the following rights. Their rights to information and to
participate are explained in more detail in the Access to Information
Procedure Rules and the Public Speaking Procedure Rules set out in
Part 4 of this Constitution:

(@) Voting and petitions

Citizens on the electoral roll for Surrey Heath have the right to

vote and sign a petition to request a referendum for an elected

mayor form of Constitution.
(b) Information

Citizens have the right to:

(i) attend meetings of the Full Council and its committees
except where confidential or exempt information is likely
to be disclosed, and the meeting is therefore held in
private;

(i) attend meetings of the Executive when decisions are
being considered except where confidential or exempt

information is likely to be discussed;

(i) find out from the Schedule of Key Decisions what key
decisions will be taken and when;

(iv)  see reports and background papers, unless they are
exempt, and any records of decisions made by the
Council and the Leader and/or the Executive; and

(v)  inspect the Council’s accounts and make their views
known to the external auditor.

(c) Participation

Citizens have the right to present petitions to and ask questions
of Councillors at meetings of the Council.

(d) Complaints
Citizens have the right to complain to:

(i) the Council itself under its complaints procedure;

Page 13 PART 2 - ARTICLE 3



3.2

(i) the Ombudsman after using the Council’s own complaints
scheme;

(iii)  the Monitoring Officer about a breach of the Members’
Code of Conduct set out in Part 5 of this Constitution.

Citizens’ Responsibilities
Citizens must not be violent, abusive or threatening to councillors or

officers and must not wilfully harm things owned by the Council,
Councillors or Officers.

Page 14 PART 2 - ARTICLE 3



41

4.2

ARTICLE 4 - THE FULL COUNCIL

Meanings

(a)

(b)

Policy Framework
The policy framework means the following plans and strategies:-

¢ Plans and strategies which together comprise the
Development Plan, i.e. the Local Plan;

e Capital Strategy;

e Food Law Enforcement Service Plan;

¢ The strategy and plan which comprise the Housing
Investment Programme

e Licensing Policy

e Gambling Policy

Budget

The budget includes the allocation of financial resources to
different services and projects, proposed contingency funds,
setting the council tax and decisions relating to the control of the
Council’s borrowing requirement, the control of its capital
expenditure and the setting of virement limits.

Functions of the Full Council

Only the Council will exercise the following functions:

(@)

(b)

(c)

adopting and changing the Constitution except for those matters
delegated to officers;

approving or adopting the policy framework and the budget and
setting the Council Tax;

subject to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to
Information Procedure Rules (set out in Part 4 of this
Constitution), making decisions about any matter in the
discharge of an executive function which is covered by the
policy framework or the budget where the decision maker is
minded to make a decision in a manner which would be contrary
to the policy framework or contrary to/or not wholly in
accordance with the budget;

making decisions about any matter in the discharge of an
executive function where the decision maker is minded to make
a decision which would be contrary to the policy framework or
contrary to/or not wholly in accordance with the budget (subject

Page 15 PART 2 - ARTICLE 4



4.3

(e)
(f)
(9)

(h)
(i)

()

(k)

(1)

(0)

to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (set out in Part 4 of this Constitution);

appointing and removing the Leader;
establishing the Council’'s Committees;

agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for
committees, deciding on their composition and making
appointments to them;

adopting an allowances scheme under Article 2.5;

changing the name of the area, conferring the title of honorary
alderman or freedom of the borough;

appointing the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer and
the Section 151 Officer;

making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting byelaws
and promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or
personal Bills;

matters which are fundamental to the future strategy or
strategies of the Council, affect the whole of the Borough and
are matters on which the views expressed, in the opinion of the
Chief Executive, should be that of the whole Council.

all local choice functions which the Council decides should be
undertaken by itself rather than the Leader (set out in Part 3 of
this Constitution);

in exceptional circumstances, to determine large-scale planning
applications relating to land owned by the Council, or

elsewhere if the proposed development is likely to have a very
significant impact on the community, as determined by the
Executive Head of Regulatory, after consultation with the Leader
of the Council and Chairman of the Planning Applications
Committee; and

all other matters which, by law, must be reserved to Council.

Council meetings

There are three types of Council meeting:

(a)
(b)
(c)

the annual meeting;
ordinary meetings;
extraordinary meetings.

Page 16 PART 2 - ARTICLE 4



4.4

and they will be conducted in accordance with the Standing Orders for
Meetings and General Purposes (set out in Part 4 of this Constitution).

Responsibility for functions
The Council will maintain the tables in Part 3 of this Constitution setting

out the responsibilities for the Council’s functions which are not the
responsibility of the Leader.

Page 17 PART 2 - ARTICLE 4



This page is intentionally left blank



ARTICLE 5 - THE MAYOR

5.1 Election of Mayor and Deputy Mayor

The Mayor and Deputy Mayor will be elected by the Council annually
from amongst the councillors.

5.2 Role and function of the Mayor
1. The Mayor will have the following responsibilities

(@) touphold and promote the purposes of the Constitution,
and to interpret the Constitution when necessary;

(b)  to preside over meetings of the Council so that its
business can be carried out efficiently and with regard to
the rights of councillors and the interests of the
community;

(c)  toensure that the Council meeting is a forum for the
debate of matters of concern to the local community and
the place at which members are able to hold the
Leader/Executive to account;

(d)  to promote public involvement in the Council’s activities;

(e) toactin an impartial and non-political manner so as to
promote at all times the best interests of the Council and
Borough as a whole; and

(f) to attend such civic and ceremonial functions as the
Council and he/she determines appropriate.

2. In the absence of the Mayor, the Deputy Mayor will assume the
responsibilities of the Mayor.

3. The Mayor or Deputy Mayor may not be the Leader or appointed
as a member of the Executive.

5.3 Period of Office

1. The Mayor shall, unless he or she resigns or is disqualified,
continue in office until a successor becomes entitled to act as
Mayor. The Deputy Mayor shall, unless he or she resigns or is
disqualified, hold office until immediately after the election of a
Mayor at the next Annual Meeting of the Council.

2. During their terms of office, the Mayor and Deputy Mayor shall
continue to be members of the Council notwithstanding the

Page 19 PART 2 - ARTICLE 3



provisions of the Local Government Act 1972 relating to the
retirement of councillors.

Page 20 PART 2 - ARTICLE 3



6.1

6.2

ARTICLE 6 — SCRUTINY/SELECT COMMITTEES

Terms of reference

The Council will appoint overview and scrutiny committees, known as
scrutiny or select committees, set out in the left hand column of the
table below, to discharge the functions conferred by Section 21 of the
Local Government Act 2000 or regulations under Section 32 of the
Local Government Act 2000, in relation to the matters set out in the
right hand column of the same table.

Committee Scope

Performance and Finance Scrutiny of all of the Council’s functions.

External Partnerships Scrutiny of other agencies which affect
the economic, social and environmental
well-being of the Council’s area,
including the Health and Wellbeing
Board and the Police and Crime Panel
and to carry out the statutory crime and
disorder function.

General role

The general role of the scrutiny committees is to deliver measurable
outcomes, which benefit the effectiveness of the Council and the
community and within their terms of reference, scrutiny or select
committees will as appropriate:

(i) review and/or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in
connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s executive
functions;

(i) make reports and/or recommendations to the full Council and/or
the Leader/Executive/Portfolio Holder in connection with the
discharge of any functions;

(iii)  consider any matter within the scope of the committee affecting
Surrey Heath or its inhabitants;

(iv)  undertake investigations into matters relating to the functions of
the Council and/or external organisations operating in Surrey
Heath as may be referred by the Leader/Executive/Portfolio
Holder or the Council;

Page 21 PART 2 - ARTICLE 6



6.3

(vi)

(vii)

following requests for decisions to be scrutinised, consider
decisions made by the Leader/Executive/Portfolio Holder or key
decisions taken by officers under the Scheme of Delegation to
Officers;

deal with any relevant councillor call-for-action in accordance
with the protocol at Part 4, Section C of this Constitution; and

appoint such Member Panels as they consider necessary to fulfil
their overview and scrutiny functions.

Specific functions

(a)

(b)

Policy development and review

Scrutiny committees may:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

assist the Council and the Leader/Executive/Portfolio
Holders in the development of its budget and policy
framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues;

conduct research; community and other consultation in
the analysis of policy issues and possible options;

consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and
enhance community participation in the development of
policy options;

question members of the Executive and/or committees
and the Chief Executive, Strategic Directors or Heads of
Service about their views on issues and proposals
affecting Surrey Heath; and

liaise with other external organisations operating in
Surrey Heath, whether national, regional or local, to
ensure that the interests of local people are enhanced by
collaborative working.

Scrutiny

Scrutiny committees may:

(i)

(ii)

review and scrutinise the decisions made by and
performance of the Leader/Executive/Portfolio Holders
and/or committees and council officers both in relation to
individual decisions and over time;

review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in

relation to its policy objectives, performance targets
and/or particular service areas;

Page 22 PART 2 - ARTICLE 6



6.4

(c)

(d)

(e)

(i)  question the Leader and members of the Executive
and/or committees and the Chief Executive, Strategic
Directors or Heads of Service about their decisions and
performance, whether generally in comparison with
service plans and targets over a period of time, or in
relation to particular decisions, initiatives or projects;

(iv)  make recommendations to the Leader/Executive/Portfolio
Holders and/or appropriate committee and/or Council
arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process;

(v) review and scrutinise the performance of other public
bodies in Surrey Heath and invite reports from them by
requesting them to address the scrutiny committees and
local people about their activities and performance;

(vi)  question and gather evidence from any person (with their
consent).

Finance

Scrutiny committees may exercise overall responsibility for the
finances made available to them.

Minutes

The Committees will submit minutes of their meetings to the full
Council for receipt.

Work Programme

Scrutiny committees will decide their own work programme and
working arrangements subject to any directions by the Council
and/or inclusion of matters referred by the
Leader/Executive/Portfolio Holders.

Proceedings of overview and scrutiny committees

Scrutiny committees will conduct their proceedings in accordance with
the Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this
Constitution.

Page 23 PART 2 - ARTICLE 6



This page is intentionally left blank



ARTICLE 7 - THE LEADER, THE DEPUTY LEADER

71

7.2

7.3

AND THE EXECUTIVE

The Appointment of the Leader

The Leader will be a councillor elected to the position by the Council.
The Leader will hold office for four years from the first annual meeting
of the Council following the Borough Council elections, expiring on the
day of the post election annual meeting which follows his/her election
as Leader, unless, at an earlier date:

(a) he/she resigns from the office; or

(b) he/she is no longer a councillor; or

(c) hel/she is removed from office by resolution of the Council.

If there is a vacancy in the position of Leader, the Leader will be
elected at the first meeting of the Council following such vacancy for a
term of office expiring on the day of the post election annual meeting
which follows his/her election, subject to (a) to (c) above.

The Role of the Leader

The Leader will carry out all of the local authority’s functions which are
not the responsibility of any other part of the local authority, whether by
law or under this Constitution, unless otherwise delegated by him/her.
All delegations by the Leader will be set out in Part 3 of this
Constitution.

The Leader will be Chairman of the Executive.

Only the Leader will exercise the following functions:

(a) appointment of the Deputy Leader

(b) appointment of the Executive

(c) preparation of the Schedule of Key Decisions

The Appointment of the Deputy Leader

The Deputy Leader will be a councillor appointed to the position of
Deputy Leader by the Leader. The Deputy Leader will hold office until

the end of the term of office of the Leader, or until:

(@) he/she is removed from office by decision of the Leader; or

Page 25 PART 2 - ARTICLE 7



7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

(b) he/she resigns from the office; or

(c) hel/she is no longer a councillor.

The Role of the Deputy Leader

(@) The Deputy Leader will be Vice-Chairman of the Executive.

(b) If for any reason the Leader is unable to act, or the office of the
Leader is vacant, the Deputy Leader must act in his/her place.

The Form and Composition of the Executive

The Executive will consist of the Leader and Deputy Leader together
with at least 1, but not more than 8, councillors appointed to the
Executive by the Leader. The Leader will report the appointments, and
any changes to these appointments, to the Council.

The Appointment of Executive Members

Executive Members will be appointed by the Leader. They will hold
office until the day of the post election annual meeting or until:

(a) they are removed from office, either individually or collectively, by
decision of the Leader; or.

(b) they resign from office; or
(c) they are no longer councillors.
The Role of the Executive
The Executive will carry out all of the local authority’s functions which
are not the responsibility of any other part of the local authority,
whether by law or under this Constitution, as delegated by the Leader.
If for any reason the Leader is unable to act, or the office of the Leader
is vacant, and the Deputy Leader is unable to act or the office of
Deputy Leader is vacant, the remaining members of the Executive
must either act collectively in the Leader’s place or they must arrange
for an Executive Member to act in the place of the Leader.
Responsibility for Functions

a) The Leader has responsibility for the discharge of all executive

functions. He/she can delegate any/all of these functions (except

those reserved functions) to:

(i) the Executive as a whole;

Page 26 PART 2 - ARTICLE 7



(iv)
(V)
(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

a committee of the Executive;

an individual member of the Executive;
an officer;

an area committee;

joint arrangements;

local Member in relation to their ward, or

another local authority.

b) The Leader will determine the individual portfolios to be
allocated to the Portfolio Holders. A record shall be kept of:

(i)

(iif)

the names, addresses and electoral wards of the
Members appointed to the Executive by the Leader;

the terms of reference and constitution of any
executive committees that the Executive may
appoint and the names of Executive Members
appointed to them,;

the nature and extent of any delegation of executive
functions to area committees, individual Executive
Members, individual local Members, any other
authority or any joint arrangements and the names
of those Members appointed to any joint committee.

Where the Leader, Executive, or a committee of the Executive, is
responsible for an executive function, they may delegate further to an
area committee, joint arrangements, an individual Executive Member,
an individual local Member in relation to their ward, or an officer.

Part 3 of this Constitution sets out the responsibility for executive
functions exercised by Executive Members. As and when the Leader
amends the scheme of delegation in Part 3 relating to executive
functions, the proper officer will report to the next meeting of the
Council setting out the changes made by the Leader.

Page 27 PART 2 - ARTICLE 7



This page is intentionally left blank



8.1

ARTICLE 8 - REGULATORY AND OTHER COMMITTEES

Regulatory and other committees

The Council will appoint the following committees as referred to in the left
hand column of the table Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of this
Constitution to discharge the functions described in column 3 of that table:

Planning Applications Committee

Licensing Committee
Employment Committee

Page 29 PART 2 - ARTICLE 8



This page is intentionally left blank



ARTICLE 9 - THE AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Appointment

The Council will appoint an Audit and Standards Committee at its Annual
Meeting.

Membership

The Audit and Standards Committee will be composed of 7 Members and 4
substitutes and is subject to the rules of political proportionality.

Role and Function

The main functions of the Audit and Standards Committee are

(@)

(b)

(c)

To promote and maintain high standards of conduct within the Council
and to monitor the operation of the Code of Conduct.

To hear and determine complaints of alleged breaches of the Codes of
Conduct by borough or parish councillors referred to it by the
Monitoring Officer.

To undertake the Council’s audit and corporate governance functions.

The statutory roles and functions of the Audit and Standards Committee are
set out in full in the Terms of Reference of the Committee at Part 3 of this
Constitution.

Dispensations

The Audit and Standards Committee may, after having had regard to all
relevant circumstances, grant a dispensation to the councillor or co-opted
member only if, the Committee considers that:

(@)

without the dispensation the representation of different political groups
on the body transacting the particular business would be so upset as to
alter the likely outcome of any vote relating to that business, or

granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the
borough, or

it is otherwise appropriate to grant the dispensation.

Page 31 PART 2 - ARTICLE 9



This page is intentionally left blank



ARTICLE 10 - AREA COMMITTEES AND FORUMS

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

Area Committees

The Council may appoint area committees as it sees fit, if it is satisfied
that to do so will ensure improved service delivery in the context of best
value and more efficient, transparent and accountable decision making.

The Council will consult relevant parish councils when considering
whether and how to establish area committees.

Form, composition and function
(@) Table of area committees

The Council will appoint the area committees as set out in the
first column of the table below, composed as set out in the
second column of that table and with the terms of reference set
out in the third column.

Name of Committee = Composition Terms of
Reference
None Not applicable Not applicable

(b) Delegations

The Council and the Leader will include details of the
delegations to area committees in Part 3 of this Constitution,
including the functions delegated showing which are the
responsibility of the Leader/Executive and which are not, the
composition and membership of the Committees, budgets and
any limitations on delegation.

Conflicts of interest - membership of area committees and
overview and scrutiny committees

(@) Conflict of interest If an overview and scrutiny committee is
scrutinising specific decisions or proposals in relation to the
business of the area committee of which the councillor
concerned is a member, then the councillor may not speak or
vote at the overview and scrutiny committee meeting unless a
dispensation has been granted.

(b) General policy reviews Where the overview and scrutiny
committee is reviewing policy generally the member must
declare his/her interest before the relevant agenda item is
reached, but need not withdraw.

Area committees - access to information

Area committee will comply with the Access to Information Procedure
Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution.

Page 33 PART 2 - ARTICLE 10



10.5

Agendas and notices for area committee meetings which deal with both
functions of the Leader/Executive and functions which are not the
responsibility of the Leader/Executive will state clearly which items are
which.

Executive members on area committees

A member of the Executive may serve on an area committee if
otherwise eligible to do so as a councillor.

Page 34 PART 2 - ARTICLE 10



11.1

11.2

11.3

ARTICLE 11 - JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Arrangements to promote well being

The Council or the Leader/Executive, in order to promote the
economic, social or environmental well-being of the Borough, may:

(@)
(b)

(c)

enter into arrangements or agreements with any person or body;

co-operate with, facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of any
person or body; and

exercise on behalf of that person or body any functions of that
person or body.

Joint arrangements

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The Council may establish joint arrangements with one or more
local authorities and/or their executives to exercise functions
which are not executive functions in any of the participating
authorities, or advise the Council. Such arrangements may
involve the appointment of a joint committee with these other
local authorities.

The Leader/Executive may establish joint arrangements with
one or more local authorities to exercise functions which are
executive functions. Such arrangements may involve the
appointment of joint committees with these other local
authorities.

Details of any joint arrangements which have been made,
including any delegations to joint committees, are in the
Council’s Scheme of Delegations in Part 3 of this Constitution.

In addition to any formal arrangements committees described
above, the Council may also enter into joint arrangements with
other local authorities on an informal basis.

Appointments to a Joint Committee

The Leader/Executive may only appoint executive members to a joint
committee and those members need not reflect the political
composition of the Council except in circumstances where:

(@)

(b)

the joint committee has functions for only part of the area of
Surrey Heath; and

that area is smaller than two-fifths of Surrey Heath by area or
population.

PART 2 - ARTICLE 11
Page 35



11.4

11.5

11.6

In such cases, the Leader/Executive may appoint to the joint committee
any councillor who is a member for a ward which is wholly or partly
contained within the area and the political balance requirements do not
apply to such appointments.

Access to information

(@)  The Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this
Constitution apply.

(b) If all the members of a joint committee are members of the
Executive in each of the participating authorities then its access
to information regime is the same as that applied to the
Executive.

(c) If the joint committee contains members who are not on the
Executive of any participating authority then the access to
information rules in Part VA of the Local Government Act 1972

will apply.
Delegation to and from other local authorities

(@)  The Council may delegate non-executive functions to another
local authority or, in certain circumstances, the Executive of
another local authority.

(b)  The Leader/Executive may delegate executive functions to
another local authority or the executive of another local authority
in certain circumstances.

(c)  The decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from
another local authority shall be reserved to the Council.

Contracting out

The Council (for functions which are not executive functions) and the
Leader/Executive (for executive functions) may contract out to another
body or organisation functions which may be exercised by an Officer
and which are subject to an order under section 70 of the Deregulation
and Contracting Out Act 1994, or under contracting arrangements
where the contractor acts as the Council’s agent under usual
contacting principles, provided there is no delegation of the Councils
discretionary decision-making.

PART 2 - ARTICLE 11
Page 36



ARTICLE 12 - OFFICERS

12.1 Management structure

(a)

(b)

General

The Council may engage such staff as it considers necessary to
carry out its functions.

Chief Officers

The Council will engage persons for the following posts:

Post

Functions and areas of responsibility

Chief Executive

Overall corporate management and
operational responsibility (including overall
management responsibility for all officers)

Provision of professional advice to all parties
in the decision making process.

Together with the Monitoring Officer,
responsibility for a system of record keeping
for all the Council’s decisions.

Representing the Council on partnership
and external bodies (as required by statute
or the Council), governance support, public
relations.

Strategic Directors
and Heads of
Service

In addition to the service areas identified in the
Management Structure at Part 7 of this
Constitution, to have the following over-arching
functions and responsibilities:

To support elected Members of the Council
and the Chief Executive to ensure corporate
working across services and to help lead the
Council so that is it able to meet its
immediate and long-term future.

To promote a culture of continuous
improvement and develop the capacity and
ability of the organisation to learn.

To maintain effective partnerships to assist
the Council in delivering the needs and role
of the community it serves.

To ensure the operation of robust
governance in relation to operational
decision making and delivery of services.

PART 2 - ARTICLE 12
Page 37




12.2

12.3

(c)

(d)

(e)

Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Section 151
Officer

The Council will designate the following posts as shown:

Post Designation

Chief Executive Head of Paid Service

Head of Legal and Monitoring Officer

Democratic Services

Strategic Director Section 151 Officer (Chief Finance Officer
(Section 151 Officer) under the Local Government Act 1972.)

Such posts will have the functions described in Article 12.2-12.4
below.

Deputy Monitoring Officer

A Deputy Monitoring Officer will be appointed from the Council’s
staff to perform the functions of the Monitoring Officer, where the
Monitoring Officer is unable to act.

Deputy Section 151 Officer

A Deputy Section 151 Officer will be appointed from the

Council’s staff to perform the functions of the Section 151
Officer, where the Section 151 Officer is unable to act.

Functions of the Head of Paid Service

(a)

(b)

Discharge of functions by the Council.

The Head of Paid Service will report to full Council on the
manner in which the discharge of the Council’s functions is co-
ordinated, the number and grade of officers required for the
discharge of functions and the organisation of officers.

Restrictions on functions.
The Head of Paid Service may not be the Monitoring Officer but

may hold the post of Section 151 Officer if a qualified
accountant.

Functions of the Monitoring Officer

The Monitoring Officer will:-

PART 2 - ARTICLE 12
Page 38




(@)  maintain an up-to-date version of the Constitution and will
ensure that it is widely available for consultation by councillors,
staff and the public;

(b) after consulting with the Head of Paid Service and Section 151
Officer, report to the full Council or to the Leader/Executive in
relation to an executive function if he or she considers that any
proposal, decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness
or if any decision or omission has given rise to
maladministration. Such a report will have the effect of stopping
the proposal or decision being implemented until the report has
been considered,;

(c) contribute to the promotion and maintenance of high standards
of conduct by Councillors;

(d)  as Proper Officer for access to information, to ensure that
Executive decisions together with the reasons for those
decisions and relevant officer reports and background papers
are made publicly available as soon as possible;

(e) advise whether decisions of the Executive are in accordance
with the budget and policy framework;

(f) provide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take
decisions, maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and
budget and policy framework issues to all councillors;

The Monitoring Officer cannot be the Section 151 Officer or the Head
of Paid Service.

12.4 Functions of the Section 151 Officer
The Section 151 Officer will:-

(a)  after consulting with the Head of Paid Service and the
Monitoring Officer, report to the full Council or to the
Leader/Executive in relation to an executive function and the
Council’s external auditor if he or she considers that any
proposal, decision or course of action will involve incurring
unlawful expenditure, or is unlawful and is likely to cause a loss
or deficiency or if the Council is about to enter an item of
account unlawfully;

(b)  bhave responsibility for the administration of the financial affairs
of the Council;

(c) contribute to the corporate management of the Council, in
particular through the provision of professional financial advice;

PART 2 - ARTICLE 12
Page 39



(d)  provide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take
decisions, maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and
budget and policy framework issues to all councillors and will
support and advise councillors and officers in their respective
roles;

(e) provide financial information to the media, members of the
public and the community.

12.5 Duty to provide sufficient resources to the Monitoring Officer and
Section 151 Officer

The Council will provide the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer

with such officers, accommodation and other resources as are in the

opinion of those officers sufficient to allow their duties to be performed.
12.6 Conduct

Officers will comply with the Code of Conduct for Employees included

within Staff Terms and Conditions of Employment and the Member and

Officer Protocol set out in Part 5 of this Constitution.

12.7 Employment

The recruitment, selection and dismissal of officers will comply with the
Officer Employment Rules set out in 4 of this Constitution.

PART 2 - ARTICLE 12
Page 40



ARTICLE 13 - DECISION MAKING

13.1 Responsibility for decision making
The Council will issue and keep up to date a record of what part of the
Council or individual has responsibility for particular types of decisions
or decisions relating to particular areas or functions. This record is set
out in Part 3 of this Constitution.

13.2 Principles of decision making

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the
following principles:

(@)  proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the
desired outcome);

(b)  due consultation and the taking of professional advice from
officers;

(c) respect for human rights;

(d)  a presumption in favour of openness;
(e) clarity of aims and desired outcomes;
) reasonableness; and

(g)  providing information on the options considered and giving
reasons for the decision taken.

13.3 Types of decision
(a) Decisions reserved to full Council.

Decisions relating to the functions listed in Article 4.2 will be
made by the full Council and not delegated.

(b) Key Decisions
(i) Key decisions are those:
e likely to result in expenditure release of any securities
(except where any release is pursuant to a contractual

obligation), or savings of at least £100,000 or £100
million if it relates to treasury management matters, or

Page 41 PART 2 - ARTICLE 13



13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

there may otherwise be an impact on the Council’s
financial standing; or
¢ likely to have a significant impact on people or
organisations in two or more wards within the Borough
e which are made in the course of developing proposals
to the Council to amend the policy framework.

(i) A decision taker may only make a key decision in
accordance with the requirements of the Executive
Procedure Rules.

Decision making by the full Council

Subject to Article 13.8, the Council meeting will follow the Council
Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution when considering
any matter.

Decision making by the Leader/Executive

Subject to Article 13.8, the Leader/Executive will follow the Executive
Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution when considering
any matter.

Decision making by scrutiny committees

Scrutiny committees will follow the Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out in
Part 4 of this Constitution when considering any matter.

Decision making by other committees and sub-committees
established by the Council

Subject to Article 13.8, other Council committees and sub-committees
will follow the Committees, Sub Committees and Other Bodies
Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution as apply to them.

Decision making by Council bodies acting as tribunals

The Council, a councillor or an officer acting as a tribunal or in a quasi
judicial manner or determining/considering (other than for the purposes
of giving advice) the civil rights and obligations or the criminal
responsibility of any person will follow a proper procedure which
accords with the requirements of natural justice and the right to a fair
trial contained in Article 6 of the European Convention on Human
Rights and the Human Rights Act 1998.

! Contract Standing Orders at Part 4 of this Constitution set out how this is applied in relation to the
length and value of a contract.

Page 42 PART 2 - ARTICLE 13



13.9 Mandatory Training

In order to facilitate good quality decision-making, Members are
encouraged to attend all relevant training sessions provided by the
Council. However the following training is deemed to be mandatory
and members who have not undertaken the required training will not be
able to take part in the decision-making process:

Training

(a) Planning

(b) Licensing

(c) Standards

(d) Human
Resources

Decision-making

Determination of
planning applications
and any other
related consent
applications

Determination of
applications for
licenses under the
Licensing Act 2003
and Gambling Act
2005.

The hearing and
determination of
complaints of
member misconduct.

All decisions made
by the Employment
Committee’s Hearing
or Appeals sub
committees.

Page 43

Required

Annually - All Members of the
Planning Applications
Committee

All Members of the Council
when determining large scale
planning applications in
accordance with Article 4.2 (n)

Biennially - All Members of the
Licensing Committee in order
to be eligible to be appointed to
the Licensing Sub Committees
participating in a Sub
Committee

Biennially - All members of the
Audit and Standards
Committee participating in a
Standards Sub Committee

Biennially - All members
participating in a Hearing Sub
Committee or Appeals Sub
Committee

PART 2 - ARTICLE 13



This page is intentionally left blank



14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

ARTICLE 14 - FINANCE, CONTRACTS AND
LEGAL MATTERS

Financial management

The management of the Council’s financial affairs will be conducted in
accordance with the financial regulations set out in Part 4 of this
Constitution.

Contracts

Every contract made by the Council will comply with the Contract
Standing Orders set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.

Legal proceedings

The Head of Legal & Democratic Services is authorised to institute,
defend or participate in any legal proceedings in any case where such
action is necessary to give effect to decisions of the Council or in any
case where the Head of Legal & Democratic Services considers that
such action is necessary to protect the Council’s interests.

Authentication of documents

Where any document is necessary to any legal procedure or
proceedings on behalf of the Council, it will be signed by the Chief
Executive, Monitoring Officer, chief officer, Strategic Director or Head
of Service or other person authorised by him/her, unless any
enactment otherwise authorises or requires, or the Council has given
requisite authority to some other person.

Any contract with a value exceeding £50,000 entered into on behalf of
the Council in the course of the discharge of an executive function shall
be made in writing and made under the common seal of the Council
attested by at least one officer.

Common Seal of the Council

The Common Seal of the Council will be kept in a safe place in the
custody of the Head of Legal & Democratic Services. A decision of the
Council, or of any part of it, will be sufficient authority for sealing any
document necessary to give effect to the decision. The Common Seal
will be attached to those documents which in the opinion of the Chief
Executive should be sealed. The attaching of the Common Seal will be
witnessed by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services or Chief
Executive or some other person authorised by him/her or the Council.

Page 45 PART 2 - ARTICLE 14



This page is intentionally left blank



15.1

15.2

ARTICLE 15 - REVIEW AND REVISION OF THE
CONSTITUTION

Duty to monitor and review the Constitution

The Monitoring Officer will monitor and review the operation of the
Constitution to ensure that the aims and principles of the Constitution
are given full effect.

Changes to the Constitution

Any councillor, any committee or the Leader/Executive may submit
proposals for changes to this Constitution to the Council, through the
Monitoring Officer, for consideration.

Apart from the following exceptions, changes to the Constitution will
only be approved by the full Council

(a) the Head of Legal & Democratic Services who is authorised to
amend the Constitution, including the Scheme of Delegation of
Functions to Officers

(i) in respect of the officers designated to exercise delegated
authorities, where changes in the management structure
and post titles have resulted from organisational
restructures

(i) to make changes which result from requirements of new
legislation or statutory guidance,

(i)  and any corrections due to administrative error or
oversight, in line with the most recent decision of the
Council.

(b) the Leader/ Executive in respect of amendments to the Scheme of
Delegation of Functions to Officers relating to executive functions

The Council must take reasonable steps to consult local electors and
other interested persons in the area, and comply with legislative
requirements, when drawing up proposals to change from a leader and
cabinet form of Executive to an elected mayor and cabinet, or vice
versa, or to the committee system.

Page 47 PART 2 - ARTICLE 15



This page is intentionally left blank



16.1

16.2

16.3

ARTICLE 16 - SUSPENSION, INTERPRETATION AND

PUBLICATION OF THE CONSTITUTION

Suspension of the Constitution

(a)

(b)

Limit to suspension

The Articles of this Constitution may not be suspended. The Procedure
Rules contained in Part 4 of the Constitution may be suspended as
regards any business at the meeting where their suspension is moved
to the extent permitted within those Rules and the law.

Procedure to suspend
The extent and duration of suspension will be proportionate to the

result to be achieved, taking account of the purposes of the
Constitution set out in Article 1.

Interpretation

The ruling of the Mayor as to the construction or application of this
Constitution or as to any proceedings of the Council shall not be challenged at
any meeting of the Council. Such interpretation will have regard to the
purposes of this Constitution contained in Article 1.

Publication

(@)

(b)

The Monitoring Officer will give a printed copy of this Constitution to
Members of the Executive, Group Leaders, the Mayor, and any other
Member upon request.

The Monitoring Officer will ensure that the Constitution is published on
the Council’s website. Paper copies are available for inspection at
council offices and can be purchased by members of the local press
and the public on payment of a reasonable fee.

The Monitoring Officer will ensure that the summary of the Constitution
is made widely available within the area and is updated as necessary.

Page 49 PART 2 - ARTICLE 16



This page is intentionally left blank



SCHEDULE 1: DESCRIPTION OF EXECUTIVE
ARRANGEMENTS

The following parts of this Constitution constitute the executive arrangements:

1.

2.

Article 6 (Scrutiny Committees) and the Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rules;

Article 7 (The Leader, Deputy Leader and the Executive) and the Executive
Procedure Rules;

Article 10 (Area Committees and Forums);
Article 11 (Joint arrangements);
Article 13 (Decision Making) and the Access to Information Procedure Rules;

Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions).

Page 51 PART 2 - SCHEDULE 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART 3

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS

Section Colour
A Scheme for Delegation of Functions Pink
B Scheme of Delegation of Functions to Officers White
C Proper Officers of the Council Cream
D Roles of Different Councillors Blue
E Terms of Reference of the Executive, Committees and Green

other bodies

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

PART 3 - RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FUNCTIONS

SECTION A

SCHEME FOR DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS

INTRODUCTION

The Scheme for Delegation of Functions set out in this Part explains where
responsibility for the various functions of the Council is located. It details what
body is responsible for which functions in the Council. Elsewhere in this Part
the Scheme of Officer Delegations details the extent to which, if at all, any
functions have been delegated to officers or other bodies.

The functions which the authority is responsible for are either executive or
non-executive. Non-executive functions are those specifically required by
statute or designated by the Council to be non-executive functions. These will
be exercised by either the full Council, committees appointed by the Council
or officers. Executive functions are all those functions which are not non-
executive functions and will be exercised by the Leader. The Leader may
delegate any/all of the executive functions.

The Scheme for Delegation of Functions shall not extend to powers, duties or
functions with respect to the levying of the Council Tax or issuing a rate or
precept for a rate, or to the borrowing of money. Neither shall it extend to any
powers, duties or functions for which the Council must retain responsibility.

TYPES OF FUNCTION

Functions fall into the following categories:

a) Non-Executive Council Functions.
These are functions which, under the law, may not be the responsibility
of the Leader. In some cases, such as adopting the Council's budget
or the policy framework, only the full Council meeting may take the
decision. In other cases, the Council may delegate the responsibility
for taking the decision to a Committee or an officer.

Council functions shall therefore comprise:

i) those functions which are reserved as Council functions by the
Local Government Act 2000 and by subsequent legislation;

ii) those functions which are reserved as Council functions by

Regulation 2 and Schedule 1 of the Local Authorities (Functions
and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 and

Page 55 PART 3 - SECTION A



b)

d)

subsequent regulations made under the Local Government Act
2000;

iii) those functions set out in Regulation 3 and Schedule 2 of the
Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England)
Regulations 2000 and subsequent regulations shown at Table1
below as non-executive functions;

iv) the adoption or approval of those plans and strategies which
form the Policy Framework, being those plans and strategies set
out in Schedule 3 of the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 together with such
plans and strategies as the Council shall identify from time to
time for this purpose.

Article 4 (The Council) sets out the functions which the Council has
decided shall only be carried out by the Full Council.

The Council has determined that certain Council functions shall be
carried out by the committees as set out elsewhere in this Part of the
Constitution in accordance with their terms of reference, which are set
out further in Part 3 of the Constitution.

‘Local Choice’ Functions.

‘Local Choice’ functions are functions which may, by law, be exercised
by the Leader or by the Council or a committee or officer of the
Council, according to the decision of the Council. Table 2 below sets
out the bodies authorised by the Council to undertake these 'local
choice' functions identified in Schedule 2 to the Local Authorities
(Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000.

Shared functions

Table 3 below sets out the bodies authorised by the Council to
undertake those functions identified in Schedule 2 to the Local
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations
2000 as functions which shall not be the sole responsibility of the
Leader. The amendment or adoption of the plans and strategies
identified in this Schedule shall be the responsibility of the bodies
shown except where the amendment, modification, variation or
revocations giving effect to requirements of the Secretary of State or a
Minister of the Crown in relation to a plan or strategy submitted for his
approval, or where it has been so authorised by the Council when
approving or adopting the plan or strategy, when the responsibility shall
be that of the Leader.

Executive Functions.

Page 56 PART 3 - SECTION A



2.2

2.3

2.4

All functions not otherwise identified in the legislation are executive
functions. The Leader may delegate decision-making of his functions

to
(1) the Executive as a whole;
(i) a committee of the Executive;
(iii) an individual member of the Executive;

(iv) an officer;
(v) an area committee;
(vi) joint arrangements;

(vii) local Member in relation to their ward, or another local
authority.

e) Proper Officer Functions.

The purpose of the Proper Officer provisions is to designate people to
carry out certain statutory functions. These functions are set out in
Part 3 of the Constitution.

f) Delegations to Officers.

The Council and the Leader may authorise designated officers to
undertake on their behalf certain of their functions, including some of
those listed in the Tables below. Details of these delegations are set
out in the Scheme of Officer Delegations set out in Part 3 of the
Constitution. A number of powers delegated to officers are also
contained in Financial Regulations, as set out in Part 4 of the
Constitution.

This Scheme includes the power for the Council and the Leader to delegate
functions to officers or other local authorities.

Where any Acts or Regulations referred to in Schedule 2 to the Local
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 are
amended or repealed the Schedule will be deemed to have been changed to
incorporate the appropriate new or amended Act or new or amended
Regulation.

Article 4 (the Council), Article 6 (the Scrutiny Committees), Article 7 (the
Leader, Deputy Leader and the Executive) and Article 8 (The Regulatory and
Other Committees), as set out in Part 2 of the Constitution, identify the powers
of the Council, its committees and the Leader. The terms of reference of
these decision-makers are set out in Part 3 of the Constitution.

Page 57 PART 3 - SECTION A



Table 1

Responsibility for non-executive functions

(i.e. the functions identified in Schedule 2 to the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 which may not be undertaken by the

Leader)

Function

Decision making body

Functions relating to town and country planning,
development control and building control insofar as
they are the responsibility of the Council as specified
in Section A of Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities
(Functions and Responsibilities) (England)
Regulations 2000.

Planning Applications
Committee (except where as
provided for in Article 4.2(n).)

Except as otherwise provided in the Licensing Act
2003 and Gambling Act 2005, all functions of the
licensing authority prescribed by those Acts.

Functions relating to licensing and registration
insofar as they are the responsibility of the Council,
other than the licensing of films for public exhibition,
as specified in Section B of Schedule 1 to the Local
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities)
(England) Regulations 2000.

Licensing Committee

Functions relating to health and safety at work
insofar as they are specified in Section C of
Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000.

Licensing Committee

Functions relating to elections, name and status of
areas and individuals and pensions and powers
relating to byelaws and local and personal Bills
insofar as they are the responsibility of the Council
as specified in Sections D, E, F, G and H of
Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000.

Council

Functions relating to public rights of way and other
miscellaneous functions insofar as they are the
responsibility of the Council as specified in Section |
of Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions
and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000.

Council (functions 23, 36 -
41, 43 - 45, 48)

Licensing Committee
(functions 22, 30, 31, 42)

Planning Applications

Committee (functions 32, 46,
47)

Page 58

PART 3 - SECTION A




Table 2

Responsibility for local choice functions

(i.e. the functions identified in Schedule 2 to the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 which the Council can choose how to

allocate)

Function

Decision making body

Any function under a local Act other than a function
specified or referred to in regulation 2 or Schedule 1.

The Leader

The determination of an appeal against any decision
made by or on behalf of the authority (other than
staffing or licensing matters).

The Leader

Any function relating to contaminated land.
Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990

Licensing Committee

The discharge of any function relating to the control
of pollution or the management of air quality.

Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999, Part IV of
the Environment Act 1995, Part | of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990, Clean Air Act
1993

Licensing Committee

The service of an abatement notice in respect of a
statutory nuisance.

Section 80(1) of the Environmental Protection Act
1990.

Licensing Committee

The passing of a resolution that Schedule 2 to the
Noise and Statutory Nuisance Act 1993 should apply
in the authority's area.

Section 8 of the Noise and Statutory Nuisance Act
1993

Licensing Committee

The inspection of the authority's area to detect any
statutory nuisance

Section 79 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990

Licensing Committee

The investigation of any complaint as to the
existence of a statutory nuisance

Section 79 of the Environmental Nuisance Act 1990

Licensing Committee

The obtaining of information under section 330 of the

Planning Applications

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as to interests | Committee
in land.

The obtaining of particulars of persons interested in | The Leader
land under section 16 of the Local Government

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

The making of agreements for the execution of Council

highway works.

Page 59

PART 3 - SECTION A




Function Decision making body

Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980

The appointment of any individual : Council

(@) to any office other than an office in which he is
employed by the authority

(b)  to any body other than (i) the authority or (ii)
a joint committee of two or more authorities

(c) toany committee or sub-committee of such a
body and the revocation of any such
appointment

The making of agreements with other local The Leader
authorities for the placing of staff at the disposal of
those other authorities.

Page 60 PART 3 - SECTION A




Table 3
Functions not to be the sole responsibility of the Leader

The functions identified in the table may be considered by the Leader and will be so
considered where there are budgetary implications.

Plan or Strategy Responsibilities

Plans and alterations which together comprise | The Leader recommending
the Development Plan to Council

Section 54 of the Town and Country Planning

Act 1990

Page 61 PART 3 - SECTION A



This page is intentionally left blank



PART 3 — RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FUNCTIONS

SECTION B

SCHEME OF DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS TO

OFFICERS

General Principles

Statutory Officers

Head of Paid Service

The Returning Officer and Electoral Reqistration Officer

The Monitoring Officer

The Section 151 Officer

Chief Executive

Strategic Director — Finance & Customer Services

Strategic Director — Environment & Community

Head of HR, Performance & Communications

Head of Investment & Development

Head of Legal & Democratic Services

Head of Planning

Page 63

PART 3 — SECTION B



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

2.2

Part 3 — Section B
SCHEME OF DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS TO OFFICERS

General Principles

Powers

This Scheme of Delegation is made pursuant to the Local Government
Act 1972 Section 101 and by reference to Section 100G and the Local
Government Act 2000 Section 15 and The Local Authorities (Functions
and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000/2853 (as amended) and
all other enabling powers.

The powers in this Scheme of Delegation are only exercisable within the
limitations in the Scheme and are subject to the provisions of the
Council’'s Constitution, including Financial Regulations, Contracts
Procedural Rules and the Council’'s Procurement Strategy.

Where the Council, a Committee, Sub-Committee, the Leader, the
Executive, Portfolio Holder or this Scheme of Delegation gives authority
for any action, the officer designated shall be entitled to take all necessary
steps for the doing of such thing.

In the event that a Strategic Director or a Head of Service’s post ceases to
exist or his or her responsibilities are transferred to another Strategic
Director or Head of Service (as the case may be), temporarily or
permanently, then the powers given by this Scheme of Delegation shall be
exercisable by the officer in whose area of responsibility the power falls to
be exercised.

The delegation of a decision to an officer does not preclude that officer
referring a matter to the appropriate decision making body when that
officer considers it appropriate, unless otherwise prevented by legislation.
Exercise of Functions

All decisions by officers made under this Scheme of Delegation, may only
be exercised provided they are within budgetary provision and in
accordance with proper authorities, in particular Financial Regulations.

The Chief Executive may appoint one or more deputies to exercise his or
her functions owing to absence or illness and such deputies are

Page 64 PART 3 — SECTION B



2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4,

4.1

authorised to exercise the functions of the Chief Executive pursuant to the
Constitution, Financial Regulations and this Scheme of Delegation.

The Chief Executive may exercise the powers delegated to any Strategic
Director or Head of Service except in relation to those functions allocated
to the chief finance officer (within the meaning of Section 151 of the Local
Government Act 1972 and Section112-114A of the Local Government
Finance Act 1988) and to the Monitoring Officer (within the meaning of
Sections 5, 5A of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989).

Sub-Delegation Scheme

Where the Chief Executive, Strategic Director or Head of Service, are
authorised to take decisions, action to implement such decisions will be
taken

3.1.1 in the name of (but not necessarily personally by) the Chief
Executive, Strategic Director or Head of Service; or

3.1.2 by any other officer authorised by Chief Executive, Strategic
Director or Head of Service to take such action in their name or the
sub delegates own name.

The Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and each Head of Service must
prepare and maintain a Sub-Delegation Scheme setting out which officers
have been authorised to make decisions under their delegated powers
and subject to which terms and conditions. Sub-delegation Schemes must
be lodged with the Democratic Services Manager.

Where delegations are to be exercised after consultation with the Leader,
Portfolio Holder, Group Leaders, ward members or nominated officers, the
authorised officer will carry out the consultation and ensure that a record is
made.

Where delegations are to be exercised after consultation with a Portfolio
Holder and that Portfolio Holder is unavailable, consultation shall take
place with the Leader.
Where delegations are to be exercised after consultation with other
officers, if agreement between officers cannot be reached, the matter must
be referred to the Chief Executive for consideration.

Urgent Action

The Chief Executive, Strategic Director or Head of Service are authorised
to determine matters of an urgent nature which cannot wait for the next

Page 65 PART 3 — SECTION B



4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

meeting of the decision-making body which are not key decisions and
which do not contravene established policies or budgets,

4.1.1 after consultation with the Leader and Mayor in relation to Council
functions;

4. 1.2 after consultation with the Leader or relevant Portfolio holder and
with the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the relevant Scrutiny
Committee in relation to Executive functions;

4 1.3 after consultation with the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the
relevant regulatory Committee.

All Members will be advised by email as soon as a decision has been made
and that decision will also be reported to the next meeting of the
appropriate decision-making body.

Policy Development and Review

Subject to paragraph 5.3, as a general principle, the adoption and
agreement of any new policies is reserved to the Council, Executive or
relevant Committee.

Authority to make non-material amendments to adopted policies is
delegated to the Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and Heads of Service,
except:

5.2.1 Planning Policy documents, which is reserved to the Executive

5.2.2 Human Resources Policies and Procedures, which is reserved to
the Employment Committee

The Head of Legal & Democratic Services is authorised, after consultation
with the relevant Portfolio Holder or Committee Chairman, to amend
policies to reflect changes in legislation or correct errors or inconsistencies.

Finance and Budgets

The Chief Executive, Strategic Directors or Heads of Service are
authorised to set annual discretionary fees and charges after consultation
with the Leader or relevant Portfolio Holder and Strategic Director of
Finance & Customer Services, as set out in Financial Regulations.

The Chief Executive, Strategic Directors, Heads of Service, or Returning
Officer are authorised to vire amounts specified in revenue budget

Page 66 PART 3 — SECTION B



6.3

6.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

9.1

headings in accordance with Financial Regulations, subject to the approval
of Corporate Management Team.

Financial Regulations at Part 4 of this Constitution contain a number of
authorisations to officers. All financial decisions made by officers must be
taken in accordance with Financial Regulations or as otherwise authorised
in this Scheme of Delegation.

No officer may release any security, warranty or guarantee in favour of the
Council, unless contractually obliged to do so, without the written approval
of the Council’s Section 151 officer or the Executive/ relevant Committee;

Awarding of Contracts

All contracts must be awarded in accordance with the Contract Standing
Orders at Part 4 of this Constitution.

Subject to any financial limits set out in the Contract Standing Orders and
below, the Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and Heads of Service are
authorised to award contracts as necessary for the day to day running of
their service.

The Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and Heads of Service are
authorised to award contracts up to a value of £100,000 as defined in
Contract Standing Orders. All contracts of a value of £100,000 or more are
reserved to the Executive, unless a decision is made by the Executive to
delegate authority to award a contract. Contract Standing Orders specify
how this relates to the lifetime of a contract.

Bids for Grant Funding

The Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and Heads of Service are
authorised to submit speculative bids for grant funding where no resource
commitment is made to the Council at that stage. Where the bid is
successful and will have a notable and/ or material impact on resources,
any decision will be subject to a report to the Executive or relevant
committee setting out a full business case.

Response to Consultations
The Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and Heads of Service are

authorised to submit responses to consultations, after consultation with the
relevant Portfolio Holder or Committee Chairman, as appropriate.

Page 67 PART 3 — SECTION B



9.2 All Members will be advised of the consultation and any comments
received will be taken into account. Where appropriate and time permits,
draft responses will be submitted to Working Groups for consideration.

10. Schedule of Authorisations

10.1 A schedule of authorisations is attached at Appendix 1.
11. Amendments
11.1  Amendments to this Scheme will be approved as follows:
11.1.1 Non-executive functions — by the full Council
11.1.2 Executive functions - by the Leader/Executive
11.1.3 in respect of the officers designated to exercise delegated
authorities where changes in the management structure and post
titles have resulted from organisational restructures — by the Head

of Legal & Democratic Services.

11.1.4 updates to reflect new legislation where there is no extension to the
limit of the existing delegation — the Monitoring Officer.

12. Interpretation

12.1 Any reference to a statute or statutory instrument should be taken to
include any subsequent statute or statutory instrument that replaces,
amends or extends it, or contains related provisions.

12.2 The terms “officer”, “staff” or “employee” include any person employed by
the Council irrespective of the particular terms and conditions under which
they are employed.

12.3 Where a delegation is shown as being both an Executive and Non-

Executive Function, advice should be sought from the Monitoring Officer
regarding the individual circumstances.

Page 68 PART 3 — SECTION B



1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

3.1

3.2

Appendix 1
Schedule of Authorisations
Legal Proceedings

In accordance with Article 14 of the Constitution the Head of Legal &
Democratic Services is authorised to institute legal proceedings in
respect of all functions of the Council.

The Strategic Director of Finance & Customer Services and Head of
Legal & Democratic Services are authorised to investigate and
prosecute using the powers contained within the Prevention of Social
Housing Fraud Act 2013 and any current or amending legislation
relating to fraudulent acts associated with the provision of social
housing.

The Head of Legal & Democratic Services is authorised to institute
criminal or civil proceedings in respect of any corporate fraud offence on
behalf of the Council or the DWP or any other relevant stakeholder
and/or partner.

Representing the Council in Legal Proceedings

The Head of Legal & Democratic Services is authorised to appoint any
appropriate officer to appear on behalf of the Council and to conduct
legal proceedings or complete formal proof in court or tribunal. A record
of those officers so appointed will be kept by the Head of Legal &
Democratic Services in accordance with the Sub Delegation Scheme.

Land, premises, samples, records, articles, equipment or
information

The Chief Executive, Strategic Director, Head of Service, and any other
officer authorised by those officers, are authorised to

enter, visit or inspect premises,

procure samples,

inspect, seize, detain or destroy any goods, articles or

equipment;

3.1.4 inspect, seize and detain any records, including records held in
electronic form;

3.1.5 demand or require information

-
WN =

in accordance with and as provided for by any legislation covering any
Council function.

The Chief Executive, Strategic Director, Head of Service, and any other
officer authorised by those officers, may apply to the Justices of the

Page 69 PART 3 — SECTION B



Peace to obtain warrants to enter premises as provided for by any
legislation covering any Council function.

3.3 Arecord of any other officers authorised as set out above, will be kept
by the Chief Executive, Strategic Director or Head of Service as
appropriate in accordance with the Sub Delegation Scheme referred to
in the General Principles.

4. Instruments of Appointment

4.1 The Chief Executive is authorised to issue Instruments of Appointment
to the Strategic Director of Environment & Community as an inspector
under the Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 and associated Acts
together with all related Regulations and Orders specifying the powers
exercisable, having regard to that inspector’s qualifications and duties.

4.2 The Strategic Director of Environment & Community is authorised to
issue Instruments of Appointment to an inspector under the Health &
Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and associated Acts together with all
related Regulations and Orders specifying the powers exercisable
having regard to that inspector’s qualifications and duties.

5. Serving of Notices

5.1 The Chief Executive, Strategic Director, Head of Service and any other
authorised officer employed by the Council are authorised to serve any
statutory notices as provided for by any legislation covering any Council
function. A record of any other officers so authorised will be kept by the
Chief Executive, Strategic Director or Head of Service as appropriate in
accordance with the Sub Delegation Scheme referred to in the General
Principles.

5.2 Electronic signatures are acceptable for the purpose of executing any
documents, unless prevented by law.

6. Cautions

6.1 The Chief Executive, Strategic Director, Head of Service and any other
officer authorised by those officers, are authorised to act as Cautioning
Officer in order to issue cautions to persons making a clear and reliable
admission of an offence, where it is considered that the use of a formal
caution is appropriate. A record of any other officers so authorised will
be kept by the Chief Executive, Strategic Director or Head of Service as
appropriate in accordance with the Sub Delegation Scheme referred to
in the General Principles.

7. Appeals

7.1 Unless otherwise reserved to the Council, the Executive, a Committee
or Sub Committee, as set out in their Terms of Reference, the Chief

Page 70 PART 3 — SECTION B



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Executive, Strategic Director, Head of Service and any other officer
authorised by those officers, are authorised to hear appeals as provided
for by any legislation covering any Council function and in accordance
with Council Policies. A record of any other officers so authorised will
be kept by the Chief Executive, Strategic Director or Head of Service as
appropriate in accordance with the Sub Delegation Scheme referred to
in the General Principles.

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

The Chief Executive is authorised to agree the use of a covert human
intelligence source where that source is a vulnerable person or a
juvenile or where knowledge of confidential information is likely to be
acquired under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000.

The Strategic Director of Environment & Community, the Strategic
Director of Finance & Customer Services and the Head of Planning are
authorised

8.2.1 to agree the use of directed surveillance under Section 28 of the
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000; and the use of
covert human intelligence sources under Section 29 of the
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000;

8.2.2 as a Designated Person, to issue a Notice/Authority under
Chapter Il Part 1 of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act
2000 requiring communications data to be obtained and
disclosed; and

8.2.3 to undertake directed surveillance pursuant to Section 28 of the
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000.

The Head of Legal & Democratic Services is authorised

8.3.1 after consultation with the appropriate portfolio holder and the
Leader of the Council, to amend the Regulation of Investigatory
Powers Act 2000 Policy and Procedure, to reflect changes to the
legislation or for better performance of the Policy.

8.3.2 to add to, or delete from, the list of authorised officers in Annex 1
of the Policy and Procedure pursuant to the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000.

The Head of Legal & Democratic Services is authorised to act as the
Council’s Single Point of Contact for the purposes of accessing and
disclosing communications data under Chapter Il Part 1 of the
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000.

Page 71 PART 3 — SECTION B



9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

Response to Matters of Public Health and Protection

The Consultant in Communicable Diseases Control is authorised by the
Council to carry out the following actions:

9.1.1 To apply to Justices for orders and certificates with a view to
preventing spread of disease.

9.1.2 To apply to Justices for orders and certificates for the removal of
aged or infirm persons to hospital, after consultation with the
patient’'s General Practitioner and the Strategic Director of
Environment & Community.

9.1.3 To serve notices relating to infected food and control of notifiable
diseases.

Response to Pandemics

The Strategic Director of Environment & Community is appointed as the
designated officer for the purposes of legislation or statutory guidance
relating to health and public protection, in so far as they relate to
functions of the Council.

The Strategic Director of Environment & Community will be appointed
as the designated officer or equivalent in response to a national or local
pandemic, as declared by the Government or Surrey Local Resilience
Forum. The Strategic Director of Environment & Community and Head
of Legal & Democratic Services will be authorised to appoint officers to
undertake any necessary enforcement arising from the pandemic.

Page 72 PART 3 — SECTION B



Statutory Officers

Head of Paid Service

Authority Function
1. | To make all decisions in relation to Human Resources | Non-
functions in accordance with the Council’s Policies and | executive
within budgetary provision, except (a), (b), (c), and (d)
below which are reserved to Full Council, (e) and (f)
which are reserved to the Employment Committee, and
(g) which is reserved to the Appointments Sub
Committee:

(a) the appointment of the Chief Executive and the
statutory posts;

(b) the adoption of the annual Pay Policy Statement;

(c) the approval of and amendments to the Pension
Policy Statement;

(d) the settlement of any staff pay award;
(e) amendments to Terms and Conditions of
Employment for Staff and Human Resources

Policies;

(f) any other decisions identified in the Employment
Committee’s Terms of Reference; and

(g) the appointment of Executive Heads and Heads of
Service.

2. | To undertake any functions designated to the Head of | Non-
Paid Service in legislation. executive

The Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer

Authority After Consultation Function
with
1.| Within the approved budget, to | Other local authorities | Non-
approve scales of remuneration | in Surrey. executive

of persons employed on
Borough and Parish Council

elections.

2.| To amend the designation of a | Ward councillors, Non-
Polling Place, where within six local party agents Executive
months of an election, and, if applicable,

official candidates.
(a) adesignated polling
place unexpectedly

Page 73 PART 3 — SECTION B



Statutory Officers

becomes unavailable;
and

(b) itis impractical to report
to Council.

The Monitoring Officer

Authority After Consultation Function

with

To appoint any Directorships | The Leader Executive

for Council-owned companies

or companies part-owned by

the Council.

Authority Function

The general delegations and authorisations for the Non

Monitoring Officer are as set out in the Constitution at | Executive

Article 12, the Members’ Code of Conduct Part 5

Section A, and the Monitoring Officer Protocol at Part

5, Section J.

To undertake any functions designated to the Non-

Monitoring Officer in legislation. executive

The Section 151 Officer

Authority Function

The delegations and authorisations for the Section 151 | Executive

Officer are as set out in the Constitution at Article 12,

and Financial Regulations at Part 4, Section H.

To undertake any functions designated to the Section Non-

151 Officer in legislation. executive or
Executive
depending
on the
function

Page 74

PART 3 - SECTION B




Chief Executive

Meetings, Members and the Constitution

Authority After Consultation Function
with
To appoint members to the The group leaders. Non-
Independent Remuneration Executive
Panel. All decisions to be
reported to all
Members by email.
In respect of ad hoc The group leaders. Non-
appointments during the year, Executive
to appoint or nominate All decisions to be
members and representatives | reported to all
on outside bodies; to appoint | Members by email.
trustees; and to identify the
meetings of outside bodies
which are an approved duty
for paying allowances.
To review decisions to listin | The relevant Portfolio | Executive
the List of Assets of Holder
Community Value and to
review decisions in relation to
claims for compensation.
To approve the annual The Leader Non-
timetable of meetings of the Executive
Council and Standing
Committees.
Authority Function
To make changes to the membership of any of the Non-
Council’s Committees or working groups as necessary | Executive
during the Council year in accordance with the wishes
of the respective group leader. Any changes made to
the Committees to be reported to the next meeting of
the Council.
To make changes to the membership of any of the Executive
Executive Working Groups as necessary during the
Council year in accordance with the wishes of the
respective group leader.
Where there is uncertainty on whether the effect of an | Executive
Executive decision is “significant”, to decide whether a
decision is to be regarded as a Key Decision.
Following the receipt of representations received in Executive

relation to the intention to consider an item in the
private part of an Executive meeting, to decide
whether an item should continue to be considered in
private and to formulate the response.

Page 75

PART 3 - SECTION B




Strategic Director — Environment & Community

Arts and Leisure

1. | To agree the replacement of The relevant
playground equipment on a like | Portfolio Holder and
for like basis where the project | ward councillors

is within existing budget or
funds have previously been
agreed

Executive

Authority

Function

1. | To make all day to day management decisions relating
to the Camberley Theatre and Conference Centre.

Executive

2. | To make all day to day management decisions relating
to the Council’s Leisure and Green Space functions.

Executive

Burial or Cremation

Authority

Function

1. | To arrange the burial or cremation of persons for whom
no other suitable arrangements for the disposal of their
remains have been made (under Section 46 of the
Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984) and any
necessary administration of the deceased’s estate in
liaison with the Treasury Solicitor.

Executive

Car Parking

Authority

Function

1. | To make all day to day management decisions relating
to the management and use of the Council’s car parks,
except for the following which are reserved to the
Executive:

(@) The adoption of and amendments to the
Council’s Car Parking Strategy;
(b)  The setting of off street car parking charges.

Executive

Closure of Streets

Authority

Function

1. | To make and issue temporary street closures orders in
connection with special events in accordance with
Section 21 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847.

Executive

Page 76

PART 3 - SECTION B




Strategic Director — Environment & Community

Community Safety

Authority Function
1.| To carry out the Council’s functions and any actions Executive
authorised by the Community Incident Action Group,
relating to anti-social behaviour, in accordance with the
Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act or
subsequent legislation.

Environmental and Community Protection

Authority Function
1. | To make all decisions in accordance the Council’s Executive
adopted policies, under the following Acts

(i) the Control of Pollution Act 1974

(ii) the Environmental Protection Act 1990

(i)  Dangerous Dogs Act 1991

(iv)  Noise & Statutory Nuisance Act 1993

(v)  the Environment Act 1995

(vi)  the Noise Act 1996

(vii)  the Dog (Fouling of Land) Act 1996

(viii) The Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing
Act 2014

(ix)  Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act
2005

(x)  the Health Act 2006

(xi)  the Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978

Sunday Trading Act 1994 legislation and statutory

guidance, and to take all actions relating to the

Council’s functions, including but not limited to the

following:

Pollution control

air pollution control and clean air;
smoke free premises and vehicles
Waste collection

Recycling

Controlled waste

Contaminated land

Statutory nuisance

Litter

Dangerous and Out of Control dogs
Dog fouling

Authorisations in relation to controlled processes
High Hedges complaint

graffiti removal

noise nuisance

abandoned vehicles and other refuse
prevention of crime and disorder

PUVOZI-XS~"IOEMIMOODm™

Page 77 PART 3 — SECTION B



Strategic Director — Environment & Community

R. Drug and alcohol abuse/misuse of substances
S. Controlled Trading Hours
T. Control of weeds

Environmental Health

Authority Function
1.| To make all decisions in accordance the Council’'s Executive
adopted policies under the following Acts

the Local Government Act 1972

the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976

the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1982

the Public Health Act 1936

the Public Health Act 1961

the Public Health (control of diseases) Act 1984

the Clean Neighbourhoods

the Environment Act 2005

and any subsequent legislation and statutory guidance,
and to take all actions relating to the Council’s functions,
including but not limited to the following:

(a) drains, private sewers, water closets or soil pipes

(b)  a satisfactory supply of wholesome water

(c)  the control rats and mice

(d)  filthy or verminous premises, articles or persons

(e)  the prevention and suppression of nuisances

(f) emergency situations arising outside normal
working hours.

(9)  Boarding up of empty properties

(h)  Infectious disease control

Food and Safety

Authority Function
1.| To make all decisions in accordance the Council’s Non
adopted policies Executive

(i) the European Communities Act 1972

(i) the Food and Environmental Protection Act 1985

(i)  the Food Safety Act 1990,

(iv)  the Health & Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

(v)
and any associated regulations and any
subsequent legislation and statutory guidance,
and to take all actions relating to the Council’'s

Page 78 PART 3 — SECTION B




Strategic Director — Environment & Community

(a) Food Safety Service Plan
(b) Health and Safety Service Plan

functions in respect of food and health & safety
and pesticides, except the following which are
reserved to the Licensing Committee

Housing and Homelessness

Authority After Function
Consultation with
1. | To review decisions taken The relevant Executive
under the Personal Files Portfolio Holder
(Housing) Regulations Act
1989 concerning access to, or
correction or erasure of
information held in housing
records of which a tenant (or
member of his family) is
aggrieved.
Authority Function
2. | To make all decisions in relation to the Council’s Executive
Housing and Homelessness functions except the
following which are reserved to the Executive:
(a) Policy for the Allocation of Social Housing
(b) Tenancy Strategy
Licensing
Authority After Function
Consultation
with
1. | On behalf of the Council, to The appropriate | Non-
submit objections and pursue ward executive

such objections at a public
inquiry if needed to:

(a) applications for operators
licences (including
variations) made under the

Operators) Act 1995; and

(b) reviews undertaken of
existing licences.

Goods Vehicles (Licensing of

councillors.

Page 79

PART 3 - SECTION B




Strategic Director — Environment & Community

The determination of applications | The Chairman Non-

for street collections to provide of the executive
funding to meet a major Licensing
local/national/international Committee.

disaster.

Authority Function
To make all decisions in accordance the Council’s Non
adopted policies under the following Acts Executive

(i) The Town and Police Clauses Act 1847

(i) the Public Health Act 1936 and 1961

(iii) The Pet Animals Act 1951

(iv)Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act
1960

v) Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963

vi)Riding Establishments Acts 1964 and 1970

vii)  Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976

viii) Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1976

(ix)the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1982,

(x) Animal Welfare Act 2006

(xi)Animal Health Acts 1981 and 2002

(xii)  Licensing Act 2003,

(xiii) the Gambling Act 2005

(

(

(

.~~~ o~

xiv) the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006

xv) the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013

xvi) the Animal Welfare (licensing of activities
involving animals) (England) Regulations 2018

(xvii) Business and Planning Act 2020

and any subsequent legislation and statutory guidance,

to take all actions relating to the Council’s licensing
functions, including but not limited to the following:

A. Personal, premises, club premises licences and
Temporary Event Notices

Hackney carriage and private hire drivers and
vehicles, and private hire operators

House to house and street collections

Street trading

Club gaming/club machine permits and small
society lotteries

Gambling and gaming activities

Sexual Entertainment Venues

Scrap metal dealers

IOGmMm mMOO W

Page 80

PART 3 - SECTION B



Strategic Director — Environment & Community

I. Animal boarding establishments, riding
establishments, dog breeders, pet shops, animal
exhibitions, dangerous wild animals and zoos

J. Animal Health and Welfare

K. Caravan, camping sites and gypsy sites

L. Tattooing, acupuncture, ear piercing, body
piercing and electrolysis

M. Pavement licences

except for

(a) approval of and amendments to the Statement
of Licensing Policy and the Gambling Policy
which are reserved to Council;

(b) approval and amendments to policies relating to
functions under the Acts set out above which is
reserved to the Licensing Committee;

(c) approval of increases, decreases or suspension
of the hackney carriage fare scale, which is
reserved to the Licensing Committee;

(d) the designation of and amendments to hackney
carriage vehicle ranks which is reserved to the
Licensing Committee;

(e) the power to make an Order identifying a place
as a designated public place for the purposes of
police powers in relation to alcohol consumption
which is reserved to the Licensing Committee;

(f) all applications and appeals reserved to the
Licensing Sub Committee as set out in its Terms
of Reference at Part 3, Section E of the
Constitution.

On behalf of the Council as the Responsible Authority
for Environmental Health, the Responsible Authority for

Health and Safety, or the Responsible Authority for
Licensing, under the Licensing Act 2003, subsequent
amendments and all relevant legislation and
regulations:

(a) to make a relevant representation

(b) to apply for a review of a premises licence

(c) to apply for a review of a club premises certificate

Non
Executive

Page 81

PART 3 - SECTION B



Strategic Director — Environment & Community

Private Sector Housing

Authority After Function
Consultation
with
1. | To determine the charges for | The relevant Executive
default works undertaken Portfolio Holder

pursuant to the Public Health
and Housing Acts and the
clearance of private drains
and private sewers, all in
respect of Environmental
Protection legislation.

Authority Function
1. | To undertake all actions relating to the Council’s Executive
functions under the Housing Grants, Regeneration and
Construction Act 1996 and any subsequent legislation,
including but not limited to the following:

(a) Disabled facilities grants

(b) Renovation grants

(c) common parts grants,

(d) house in multiple occupation grants
(e) major repair grants

2. | To undertake all actions relating to the Council’s Executive
functions under the Regulatory Reform (Housing
Assistance) (England & Wales) Order 2002 for the
securing of loans given for the improvement or repair of
dwellings as a formal Land Charge.

3. | To undertake all actions relating to the Council’s Executive
functions under the Housing Acts and any subsequent
legislation regard to unfit housing and houses in
multiple occupation.

4. | To administer and approve loans under the Flexible Executive
Improvement Loans Scheme.

Town Twinning

Authority After Consultation | Function
with
1. | To agree grants for town The relevant Executive

partnership activities within Portfolio Holder.
the budget provision.

Page 82 PART 3 — SECTION B



Strategic Director — Environment & Community

Waste and Recycling

Authority Function
2.| To waive payment for the collection of household refuse | Executive
at mixed hereditaments where a clearly defined dwelling
exists separately from business premises.

Page 83 PART 3 — SECTION B




Strategic Director — Finance & Customer Services

Assets of Community Value

Authority Function
To make decisions in relation to compensation claims | Executive
relating to the List of Assets of Community Value.
Council Tax and NNDR
Authority After Consultation Function
with
To agree to enter into or exit The relevant Executive
any arrangements for the Portfolio Holder.
pooling of Business Rates.
Members of the
Performance &
Finance Scrutiny
Committee to be
notified.
Authority Function
To apportion rates under Section 44A of the Local Executive
Government Finance Act 1988, and any subsequent
legislation, on premises partially unoccupied for short
periods.
To grant applications for discretionary rate relief which | Executive
meet the adopted criteria and can be funded within
the approved budget.
To execute warrants of arrest for Council Tax and Executive
Non-Domestic Rate debts.
Financial Management
Authority After Consultation Function
with
To grant discounts on The relevant Portfolio | Executive
market rents in accordance | Holder, and taking
with the Community Rent into account any
Discount Framework. information received
from local ward
members.
To monitor and manage the | The Chief Executive Executive
revenue reserves and and the relevant
provisions of the Council, Portfolio Holder.
including the release of
such funds within agreed
policy guidelines.

Page 84

PART 3 - SECTION B




Strategic Director — Finance & Customer Services

Authority Function
3. | To determine areas and levels of cover for insurance. Executive
4. | To approve spending from the Insurance Fund in Executive

individual projects or a group of related projects or a
group of related items up to a maximum of £20,000.

5. | To determine rates of interest payable under: Non-

Executive

(a) Public Health Acts and Housing Acts (rechargeable
works executed by the Council)

(b) Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 (dangerous trees and restoration of supplies).

General

Authority Function
1.| To make all day to day management decisions relating to | Executive
the Council’s functions as they relate to customer
services.

Page 85 PART 3 — SECTION B




Head of HR, Performance and Communication

Human Resources

Authority After Consultation Function
with
1 | To suspend a Statutory Officer Chairman of the Non-
at short notice in accordance Employment executive
with the provisions set out at Committee
Part 4, Section J of the
Constitution

Voluntary Organisations and Community Grants

Authority After Consultation Function
with
1. | To agree Service Level The relevant Portfolio Executive
Agreements with voluntary Holder.

organisations

2. | To award grants in accordance | The relevant Portfolio Executive
with the Council’s adopted Holder.
policies for revenue, community
and leisure grant schemes The relevant ward

except the following which are councillors as required.
reserved to the Executive

1) Annual Revenue and
Leisure Grants
2) Community Fund Grants

Scheme
General
Authority Function
1. To make all day to day management decisions relating Executive
to the Council’s functions as they relate to media and
marketing.

Page 86 PART 3 — SECTION B




Head of Investment & Development

Estate Management

the Repairs and Maintenance
Fund on individual or related

appropriate Portfolio
Holder

Authority After Consultation Function
with
To agree, with Laser, or any The relevant Portfolio Executive
other supplier as agreed by the | Holder
Council, changes to the cost of
supplying gas and electricity
services at different times
within the contract period in
accordance with the terms of
the contract.
2. | To approve expenditure from The Leader or the Non-

executive or
Executive as

under the Shop Front Grant
Scheme

Holder

items up to £20,000. appropriate
to the
function
being
exercised.
3. | To seek permission for The relevant Portfolio Executive
development to be carried out Holder(s)
by the Council (Regulation 4)
and for development to be
carried out by other parties on
land vested in the Council
(Regulation 5).
Authority Function
1. | To undertake all administrative actions and negotiations in | Executive
relation to the day to day management of lettings of the
Council’s estate and property portfolio
Economic Development
Authority After Consultation Function
with
To agree any grants awarded The relevant Portfolio Executive

Page 87

PART 3 - SECTION B




Head of Legal & Democratic Services

Data Protection Act 2018

Authority Function

1 | To determine a reasonable fee for the administrative costs | Executive
of complying with a Subject Access Request, FOIl and EIR
requests in cases where the request is manifestly
unfounded or excessive and/or where an individual
requests further copies of their data.

Estate Management

Authority Function

To agree all leases, licences, contracts and other legal Executive
documentation in relation to the administration of the
Council’s estate and property portfolio except the
following matters which are reserved to the Executive:

(a) acquisitions or disposal of land or property with
a sale or purchase price in excess of £25,000;

(b) the grant or renewal of all commercial leases in
excess of 2 years that do not reflect market
conditions in terms of value or risk;

(c) the grant of all leases for the purposes of
development or refurbishment schemes
including building leases;

(d) the grant or renewal of all leases where the
Head of Legal & Democratic Services considers
referral to the Executive is appropriate.

Legal
Authority After Consultation Function
with
1. To make decisions in relation to | The relevant Portfolio Executive
the inclusion of assets in the Holder
List of Assets of Community
Value
2. Where the nomination is in The relevant Portfolio Executive
respect of council owned land, Holders
to make decisions in relation to
the inclusion of council assets in
the List of Assets of Community
Value.

Page 88 PART 3 — SECTION B



Head of Legal & Democratic Services

Members Meetings and the Constitution

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 relating
to lost and uncollected property.

Authority After Consultation Function
with

To review, update and amend Members of the Non-

the Documents Which Support Governance Working executive
the Constitution Group

Authority Function
To amend the Constitution when the changes result from | Non-
requirements of new legislation or statutory guidance. executive

.| To amend the Constitution to make changes due to Non-
administrative error or oversight, in line with the most executive
recent decision of the Council.

Any changes are to be reported to the Governance
Working Group.

.| To appoint the Licensing Committee Licensing Sub Non-
Committees. executive

.| To appoint members to the Standards Sub Committee Non-
from the membership of the Audit and Standards Executive
Committee.

.| To appoint members to the Appointments Sub Non-
Committee, Hearing Sub Committee, and Appeals Sub | executive
Committee from the membership of the Employment
Committee

.| To appoint Independent Panel members, when required, | Non-
in accordance with the provisions at Part 4, Section J of executive
the Constitution

.| To exercise powers under Section 41 of the Local Executive

Page 89

PART 3 - SECTION B




Head of Planning

Building Control

Authority After Consultation with| Function

1. | To adjust Building Control The relevant Portfolio
charges appropriately to ensure | Holder.

income will cover the cost of the
chargeable service

Executive

Authority

Function

2.| To exercise the Council’s powers in relation to Building
Control legislation, including, but without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing, the determination of
applications for the approval of plans and specifications,
applications for relaxations, the issue and service of all
Notices, the making of requirements and the decision to
carry out works in default.

Executive

3. | To exercise the powers and duties of the Council,
including the recovery of costs, relating to dangerous,
dilapidated or defective buildings or structures,
hoardings, scaffolding and the demolition of buildings.

Executive

Development Management

Authority After Consultation
with

Function

1. | To determine major planning The Chairman of the
applications where these are Planning Applications
re-submitted applications Committee and Ward
previously refused only for SPA | Councillors

reasons which are now
resolved and where:

(a) the application is not
materially different from
the original application;

(b) the material
considerations affecting
the decision have not
changed;

(c) thereis no request from a
councillor to call in the
application for
determination by the
Committee as set out in
3(b) below.

Non-
executive

Page 90

PART 3 - SECTION B




Head of Planning

To agree variations to Section The Chairman of the Non-

106 legal agreements under the | Planning Applications | Executive
Town and Country Planning Act | Committee and Ward
1990 which relate to planning Councillors
applications determined by the
Planning Applications
Committee or Full Council.

To make decisions relating to The Chairman and Non-

the strategy of the Council’s Vice Chairman of the | Executive
case in planning appeals where | Planning Applications
the strategy would be contrary | Committee and the
to or considered unsupportive relevant Ward

of a decision of the Planning Councillors.
Applications Committee

Authority Function
(A) to determine planning applications, applications Non-
for advertisement consent, non-material and Executive

minor material amendments applications, details
to comply with conditions, variation/removal of
condition applications, prior notifications/prior
approval notices and certificates of lawfulness, or
revocation of planning permission;

(B) to determine applications for listed building and
conservation area consent and to take action in
relation to listed buildings and Conservation
Areas; and

(C) to respond to consultations and notifications,
including Habitat Regulation Assessments;

(D) to determine the need for an environmental
impact assessments;

(E) to take direct action/seek injunctions in relation to
breaches of planning control, remove
unauthorised signage/advertisements and
remedying the condition of land;

(F) to serve notices (including enforcement notices,
breaches of condition notices, temporary stop
notices, stop notices planning contravention
notices;

under the Town and Country Planning Acts and any
Regulations made in relation to this legislation or any
amendments, except (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) and (g) set
out below which are reserved for decision by the
Planning Applications Committee

(@)  planning applications for

(i) the erection of 10 or more dwelling houses;

Page 91 PART 3 — SECTION B




Head of Planning

(ii)

(iii)

erection of flatted developments, or
conversion of existing properties into 10 or
more units;

new developments, extensions or change of
use for non-residential development of 1000
sq metres or more;

any planning application or advertisement
consent, where within 28 days of the publication
of the weekly list of planning applications, the
Chairman, Vice Chairman of the Planning
Applications Committee or a relevant ward
councillor makes a request, supported by broad
planning reasons, asking the Head of Planning to
refer an application to the next appropriate
meeting of the Planning Applications Committee
for determinations

Where the 28 day call-in period has expired, but
the Head of Planning is satisfied that the
circumstances are exceptional and the
application has not been determined, they may,
after consultation with the Chairman, arrange for
that application to be referred to the Committee;

any planning application submitted by a serving
Councillor or persons who were councillors within
the previous 4 years, an officer who is currently
employed by the Council or who has been
employed within the previous 4 years, or the
spouse or partner of any of the above persons;

any planning application where an objection from
a statutory consultee remains unresolved and the
officer's recommendation is to approve the
application;

any planning application where the Council is the
applicant;

any planning application which is required to be
referred to the Secretary of State;

any confirmation of a Tree Preservation Order
where the Council has an interest as a
landowner;

large-scale planning applications relating to land
owned by the Council, or elsewhere if the
proposed development is likely to have a very

Page 92

PART 3 - SECTION B




Head of Planning

significant impact on the community as set out in
Article 4.2(n).

5. | To take action, make decisions, serve notices and carry | Non-

out works relating to trees pursuant to the Town and Executive
Country Planning Act 1990, the Hedgerow Regulations
1997 and Section 23 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, and any
Regulations made in relation to this legislation or any
amendments, except the confirmation or revocation of a
tree preservation order where objections have been
received which is reserved for decision by the Planning
Applications Committee.

6. | To agree the terms of, and variations to, Section 106 Non-
legal agreements under the Town and Country Planning | Executive
Act 1990, in connection with the grant of planning
permission under delegated powers.

Land Drainage

Authority Function
1. | To take all actions to alleviate flooding under the Water | Executive
Management Acts relating to the Council’s land
drainage functions, except the following which are
reserved to the Executive:

(i) approval of the annual Drainage Works
Programme;

(i) authority to submit funding bids for projects
requiring external funding for drainage works on
third party land where this would require the
Council to part fund from the Drainage Reserve.

Licensing
Authority Function
1. | Under the Licensing Act 2003 Non-

executive

(a) to respond to the licensing authority in connection
with consultations on applications on behalf of the
local planning authority;

(b) to apply for a review of a premises licence or a club
premises certificate.

Page 93 PART 3 — SECTION B




Head of Planning

Street Naming and Numbering

Authority After Consultation Function
with
1. | To determine the names of The appropriate Executive
highways under the Public Portfolio Holder and
Health Act 1925. appropriate ward
councillors.
Authority Function

1. | To exercise the street numbering function under the Public | Executive

Health Act 1925.

Page 94

PART 3 - SECTION B




PART 3 — RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FUNCTIONS

SECTION C

PROPER OFFICERS OF THE COUNCIL

The following are the Proper Officers of the Council for the purposes stated:

Purpose of Appointment

Proper Officer(s)

Local Gover

nment Act 1972

Section 83 | To witness, and to receive, Chief Executive
declarations of acceptance of office. Head of Legal &
Democratic Services
Section 84 | To receive notices of resignations Chief Executive
from office
Section 88 | To convene, if necessary, a meeting | Chief Executive
of the Council when the office of
Mayor is vacant.
Section To receive notice by local government | Chief Executive
89(i)(b) electors of a casual vacancy in the
office of Borough or Parish Councillor.
Section To take decisions as to ‘exempt’ Chief Executive
100B(2) information coming before Head of Legal &
committees Democratic Services
Section To take decisions relating to making Chief Executive
100B(7)(c) | available to the press copies of any Head of Legal &
other documents relating to agenda Democratic Services
items.
Section To produce a written summary of Head of Legal &
100C(2) proceedings taken by committees in Democratic Services
private
Section To compile a list of background Chief Executive
100D(1) papers for a committee report The Strategic Directors

or Head of Service over
whose name the
committee report
appears

Page 95

PART 3 - SECTION C




Purpose of Appointment

Proper Officer(s)

Section To take decisions in relation to the Chief Executive
100(F) disclosure of exempt information to Head of Legal &
Members. Democratic Services
Section To receive all money due from Strategic Director
115(2) officers. Finance & Customer
Services
Section 146 | To sign declarations and certificates Strategic Director
with regard to securities. Finance & Customer
Services
Section 191 | To receive applications with respect Head of HR,
to Ordnance Survey Performance &
Communications
Section 210 | To exercise certain residual functions | Head of Legal &
relating to charities Democratic Services
Section 225 | To receive and retain any document Head of Legal &
deposited with the Council Democratic Services
Section 229 | To certify, for the purpose of any legal | Chief Executive
proceedings, photographic copies of | Strategic Director or
documents the Head of Service
from whose Service the
document originates
Section 234 | To authenticate notices, orders or Chief Executive
other documents on behalf of the Strategic Director or
Council the Head of Service
from whose Service the
document originates
Section 236 | To send copies of confirmed bylaws Chief Executive
made by the Council to parish
councils and to the County Council
Section 238 | To certify copies of byelaws Head of Legal &
Democratic Services
Section 248 | To keep a roll of Freemen Chief Executive
Schedule To sign, and send to all Members of Chief Executive
12(4) the Council, the summons to attend

meetings of the Council

Page 96

PART 3 - SECTION C




Purpose of Appointment

Proper Officer(s)

Schedule To certify resolutions under this Chief Executive
14(Part Il paragraph for the purpose of legal Head of Legal &
(7)) proceedings Democratic Services
30(5) To arrange for the publication in Head of Legal &

newspaper of notice of the Local
Government Ombudsman’s report on
investigation of a complaint.

Democratic Services

Local Land Charges Act 1975

Section 9

To act as local registrar for the
registration of local land charges and
the issue of official certificates of
search.

Head of Planning

Local Gover

nment (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

Section 41

To certify resolutions under this
paragraph for the purpose of legal
proceedings.

Chief Executive

Head of Legal &
Democratic Services

Building Act 1984

Section 78

To take action in relation to dangerous
buildings and structures.

Head of Planning

Local Gover

nment Finance Act 1988

Section 116

To give notice to the auditor in relation
to unlawful decisions.

Section 151 Officer

Local Gover

nment and Housing Act 1989

Section 2 To receive on deposit a list of Head of Legal &
politically restricted posts Democratic Services
Section 19 | To receive and record details of Monitoring Officer

Members’ interests

The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations

1990

Sections 8, | To receive notices relating to political | Chief Executive
9,10, 13 groups, and membership of political

and 14 groups and in relation to notifying

groups about allocations and vacation
of seats.

Party Wall etc. Act 1996

To make such appointments as are
required under Section 10(8) in

relation to the resolution of disputes

Head of Planning

Page 97

PART 3 - SECTION C




Purpose of Appointment

Proper Officer(s)

between adjoining owners.

The Local Authorities (Referendums) (Petitions and Directions)
(England) Regulations 2000

Regulation
4

To publish the verification number of
local electors for the purpose of
petitions under the Local Government
Act 2000.

Chief Executive

The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information)

(England) Regulations 2012

Regulation | To make decisions relating to the Chief Executive
7(2) exclusion of access by the public to

reports.
Regulation | To make decisions relating to the Chief Executive
7 (7) (c) supply to a newspaper or other media

source, copies of any document

supplied to Executive members.
Regulation | To be responsible for consulting and Chief Executive
10 (1) & (3) | giving the appropriate notices where it

is impracticable to publish the

intention to make a key decision in

accordance with Regulation 9.
Regulation | To be responsible for producing a Chief Executive
12 (1) written statement of all Executive

decisions.
Regulation | To be responsible for producing a Chief Executive
13 (1) written statement of all executive

decisions made by individual

members.
Regulation | To be responsible for ensuring that the | Chief Executive
14 (1) written statement or any report

considered by the decision- maker

relating to executive decisions is

available for public inspection.
Regulation | To compile a list of background Chief Executive
15 papers and to make a copy of each

document available for inspection.
Regulation | To make decisions relating to the Chief Executive
16 (5) & (7) | withholding of documents where

exempt information could be

disclosed.
Regulation | To decide whether a document Chief Executive
20 (2) contains or is likely to contain exempt

information.

Local Authorities (Standing Orders)(England) Regulations 2001

Schedule 1 | To make and receive notifications in

| Head of HR,

Page 98

PART 3 - SECTION C




Purpose of Appointment Proper Officer(s)

(Part 2) relation to the appointment and Perfomance &

dismissal of statutory and non Communication
statutory chief officers and deputy
chief officers within the meaning of
sections 2(7) and 2(8) of the 1989 Act.

References in leqgislation pre-dating the Local Government Act 1972

In legislation predating the 1971/1972 Session of Parliament, other than the
Local Government Act 1972, and in Statutory Instruments made prior to 26th
October, 1972, references to the designations in the left hand column of the
schedule below shall be construed as a reference to the Officers of the
Council listed in the right hand column of the schedule below.

Designation Officer of the Council
The Clerk of the Council Chief Executive

The Town Clerk Chief Executive

The Treasurer Section 151 Officer

The Chief Financial Officer Section 151 Officer

Designation Officer of the Council
The Sanitary Inspector Strategic Director Community & Environment
The Public Health Inspector Strategic Director Community & Environment

The Medical Officer of Health The Consultant in Communicable Diseases

Control with responsibility for Surrey Heath
Borough.

Notes

1.

Local Government Act 1972 - Schedule 29(4) — in any act passed
before, or during the same session as, this Act, and any instrument
made before this Act, any reference to a specified officer of a local
authority shall be construed as a reference to the proper officer of a
local authority.

In the event of any of the officers appointed as Proper Officers being
absent or otherwise unable to act, the Chief Executive is authorised to
act as a Proper Officer in their place. If the Chief Executive is absent
or otherwise unable to act, the a Strategic Director, is authorised to act
in there place.

The Strategic Director of Finance & Customer Service is designated
the Council's Tax Officer, responsible for ensuring the proper

Page 99 PART 3 - SECTION C




procedures are followed in the administration of the tax affairs of the

Council.

Statutory Appointments

The statutory appointments as designated at Article 12 of this Constitution

are as follows:

Post Designation Act
Chief Executive Head of Paid Local Government and
Service Housing Act 1989, Section

4

The Head of Legal &
Democratic Services

Monitoring Officer

Local Government and
Housing Act 1989, Section
5

Strategic Director of
Finance & Customer
Service

Section 151
Officer

The Local Government Act
1972, Section 151

Page 100

PART 3 - SECTION C




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

PART 3 - RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FUNCTIONS

SECTION D
ROLES OF DIFFERENT COUNCILLORS

Introduction

Councillors are elected by local residents to represent them in making
decisions about how the Borough is governed.

The Council appoints councillors annually to the positions of Mayor,
Deputy Mayor, and chairmen and vice-chairmen of committees. The
Leader is appointed by the Council for a four year term of office. The
political groups of the Council will elect their own leaders.

The Leader appoints the Deputy Leader and at least 1, but not more
than 8, councillors to form the Executive. The Leader may assign
portfolios areas to the members of the Executive. These councillors will
normally all be members of the administration.

Each year, the Council will also establish committees to oversee its
work and councillors will be appointed to serve on those committees as
Chairmen, Vice-Chairmen or members. The political balance of the
committees reflects the political balance of the Council as a whole and
Membership of committees is on the recommendation of the political
group leaders.

This section indicates the different roles a councillor may undertake as
a member of the Council. The role of all councillors as representatives

of their communities is set out in Article 2. The roles of the Mayor and
Deputy Mayor are set out in Article 5. The other roles referred to in the
Constitution are set out below.

Leader

The role profiles for the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council
should be read in conjunction with the role profile for a Portfolio Holder.

The role of the Leader is to
(@) provide strong political and community leadership;
(b) identify and promote the Council’s core values and strategic

objectives, develop and implement the Council's core plans and
strategies;

Page 101 PART 3 — SECTION D



3.1

4.1

(f)

lead the development of local, regional, national and European
policy and strategic partnerships to drive forward the Council’s
strategic objectives and policies;

maintain effective working relationships of councillors with the
Chief Executive, chief officers and all employees of the Council;

chair the Executive and oversee the preparation of business for
its consideration; and

appoint the Deputy Leader and other members of the Executive.

Deputy Leader

The role of the Deputy Leader is to support the Leader in discharging
his/her role and to deputise for the Leader in his/her absence or at the
specific request of the Leader.

Portfolio Holder

The role of the Portfolio Holder is

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(f)

(9)

(h)

to have strategic responsibility for their named portfolio of
services, by providing political leadership in this area;

to have responsibility for, and provide a lead on, the initiation of
policy in respect of the relevant portfolio;

to be accountable for those services within their portfolio areas,
taking the lead publicly in relation to the Executive’s activities in
those areas both inside and outside the Council;

to create, build and nurture a focus on outcomes for residents for
the activities within the relevant portfolio;

to represent the Council on outside bodies of a strategic nature
which relate to their portfolio and feedback to the Council any
issues of relevance or importance;

to take the lead on discussions at Executive meetings on their
portfolio areas;

report to, and account, for their actions on matters within their
portfolio areas to Council; and

to attend Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings in respect

of their portfolio and to respond to issues and questions raised
by the scrutiny committees on their portfolio areas.

Page 102 PART 3 — SECTION D



5.1

Committee Chairman & Vice Chairman

It is generally accepted that should the Chairman of a Committee be
absent for any reason then the Vice-Chairman will assume the role.

The main role of a chairman of a committee is to:

(@)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)
(h)

to ensure the effective conduct of meetings and open and
transparent decision making;

to chair meetings in a clear, disciplined and fair manner, making

sure that decisions are made using the correct protocols and in a
way which demonstrates high standards of behaviour and ethics
and in accordance with the Constitution;

to ensure that the Committee fulfils its Terms of Reference;

to provide confident and effective management of meetings
facilitating inclusivity, participation and effective decision making;

ensure that the Committee deals with its functions in a fair and
proper manner having regard to the Council's policies and
statutory provisions relating thereto;

to liaise with appropriate senior officers to ensure that
appropriate member training programmes and seminars are
arranged;

act as spokesman for the committee; and

oversee the preparation of the business for consideration by the
Committee.

Chairman of a Regulatory or Non-Executive Committee

(i.e. Planning Applications, Licensing, Audit & Standards and
Employment Committees)

The role of the Chairman of regulatory and non-executive committees
should be read in conjunction with the Committee Chairman Role
description above.

(@)

(b)

to ensure that applicants and other interested parties are
satisfied as to the transparency of the regulatory processes;

to ensure that the Committee understands the legal,

Constitutional and policy requirements relating to their decision
making; and

Page 103 PART 3 — SECTION D



7.1

8.1

(c)  to ensure that contributions by the public, and other interested
parties, to meetings are facilitated in accordance with agreed
procedures and that they understand the process.

Chairman of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The role of the Chairman of an overview and scrutiny committee should
be read in conjunction with the role of Committee Chairman.

The main role of a chairman of an overview and scrutiny committee is:

(a) to facilitate the Committee in considering and making
recommendations to the decision maker as an effective ‘critical
friend’;

(b) to facilitate the call-in process, in accordance with the Overview

and Scrutiny Procedure rules.

(c) to model, and encourage, effective use of questioning and
listening skills;

(d) to model, and ensure, an objective and evidence based approach
to the work of overview and scrutiny, including the receipt of
evidence in an impartial manner;

(e) to build constructive working relationships with Executive
members, senior officers and partners working within the
Committee’s remit;

(f)  to promote cross party working; and

(g) to ensure that recommendations to decision makers are
constructive and evidence based.

Leader of an Opposition Group

In addition to their roles and duties as an elected representative,
opposition group leaders shall also:

(@)  make sure there is effective and constructive challenge to the
Council’s administration;

(b)  be the focal point for the opposition group's views on the design,
preparation and implementation of the Council's policies,
strategies, budgets and service delivery;

(c) establish and maintain good working relationships between

members of the opposition group and all employees of the
Council; and

Page 104 PART 3 — SECTION D



9.1

(d)  to be responsible for nominating members of the group to serve
on committees, panels, sub-committees and outside bodies for
consideration by Council.

Ward Councillor

The role and duties of all Councillors are detailed at Article 2. As
representatives of their ward, Councillors are also expected:

(a) to represent and provide visible leadership to local constituents,
and the community of Surrey Heath as a whole, and to balance
those roles as necessary and appropriate;

(b)  to engage local residents, key stakeholders and partners in the
Council’s work, seeking feedback on the services provided and
developing an understanding of the needs of residents to enable
the delivery of better services and better decision making;

(c) to proactively identify opportunities for the Council to improve the
services it offers our residents and the people and prosperity of
Surrey Heath, balancing and respecting the needs of both urban
and rural, as well as opportunities to deliver our work more
effectively and resourcefully;

(d)  to signpost constituents, and to facilitate them in achieving
appropriate support within the Council and with partners,
supporting constituents with day to day service issues dealing
with constituents' enquiries and representations fairly and
without prejudice;

(e)  to champion the causes which further the interests, quality of life
and sustainable development of the community;

(f) to develop a working knowledge of the organisations, services,
key local stakeholders, activities and other factors important to
the community's well-being and identity; and

(g) toensure that local people are informed about services in their

area, decisions which affect them, reasons why decisions have
been taken, the rights of constituents.

Page 105 PART 3 — SECTION D



This page is intentionally left blank



PART 3 - RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FUNCTIONS

SECTION E

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE EXECUTIVE,
COMMITTEES AND OTHER BODIES

THE EXECUTIVE

The Leader is responsible for all of the Council’s functions which are not the responsibility of
any other part of the Council, whether by law or under this Constitution, unless otherwise
delegated by him/her. All delegations by the Leader will be set out in Part 3 of this

Constitution. Unless otherwise delegated, all executive functions will be agreed collectively
by the Executive.

Page 107 PART 3 - SECTION E



1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

Subiject to paragraph 1.2 below, all functions relating to the Town and Country
Planning and Development Control as specified in Part A of Schedule 1 to the Local
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000, as
amended, including

(a) planning applications

(b) enforcement action

(c) planning agreements

(d) lawful use or development

(e) advertisement control

) listed buildings

(9) conservation areas

(h) minerals and waste disposal

(i) hazardous substances

()] development proposals by County Council and Borough

In exceptional circumstances, the Full Council will determine large-scale planning
applications relating to land owned by the Council, or elsewhere if the proposed
development is likely to have a very significant impact on the community, as
determined by the Head of Planning, after consultation with the Leader of the Council
and Chairman of the Planning Applications Committee.

All functions relating to trees and hedgerows as specified in Section | of Schedule 1
to the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000
(as amended).

The consideration and determination of matters arising from Part 8 of the Anti-Social
Behaviour Act 2003 relating to complaints about high hedges.

The determination of applications for Certificates of Appropriate Alternative
Development under the Land Compensation Act 1961.

The consideration of and response to any Purchase Notice served on the Council
pursuant to Section 137 Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Recommend to the Leader/Executive, Council, or Strategic Director of Finance &
Customer Services as relevant on estimates of income, fees and charges,
expenditure and the budget required by the Committee to undertake its functions.

Recommend to Council, implement and keep under review a Scheme of Delegation
of Functions to Officers in respect of any of the functions delegated to the Committee.

Page 108 PART 3 - SECTION E



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

LICENSING COMMITTEE

All functions relating to licensing as specified in Part B of Schedule 1 of the Local
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000, as
amended, including:

(a) licensing functions under the Licensing Act 2003 (which excludes the
statement of licensing policy)

licensing functions under the Gambling Act 2005 (which excludes the
statement of licensing policy)

hackney carriage and private hire

street trading and street markets

caravan sites

food hygiene and safety

animal licensing

sex establishments

residual highways matters

licensing functions under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013

—
O
~— — — ~

~— ~—

AN AN AN N N SN
T Q2D Q0

[
~— ~—

All functions relating to health, safety and welfare in connection with work and control
of dangerous substances as specified in Part C of Schedule 1 of The Local
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000, as
amended, except in relation to the Council as an employer.

To establish the Licensing Sub-Committee and such sub-committees and working
groups as it considers appropriate.

To undertake any other function, not being a licensing function, referred to it by the
Licensing Authority.

To recommend to Council, implement and keep under review, the Scheme of
Delegation of Functions to officers in respect of any of the functions delegated to the
Committee.

Where there is a right for an applicant to be given the opportunity to appear before
and be heard by the Committee, to hear and determine such cases as are referred to
the Committee.

To have power to make an Order identifying a place as a designated public place for
the purposes of police powers in relation to alcohol consumption.

To recommend to the Leader/Executive, Council, or Strategic Director of Finance &

Customer Services as relevant on estimates of income, fees and charges,
expenditure and the budget required by the Committee to undertake its functions.

Page 109 PART 3 - SECTION E



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Introduction

1.1 This is a sub-committee of the Licensing Committee which is required to be
established by statute.

1.2 Three members, and one reserve member, being members of the Licensing
Committee, will be appointed by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services to serve
on the Sub Committee.

Licensing Act 2003

1.3 To determine applications for the following when objections or adverse
representations have been submitted:

(i) personal licence

(i premises licence

( club premises certificate

( provisional statement

(v variation of a premises licence

(vi) variation of a club premises certificate

(vii)  variation of a designated premises supervisor

(viii)  transfer of a premises licence

(ix) an interim authority (to enable someone to act as a designated premises
supervisor when this post is unexpectedly vacated)

14 To determine applications for the review of premises licences or club premises
certificates.

1.5 To consider any other matters required by the Act or Regulations.
Gambling Act 2005

1.6 To determine applications for the following where representations have been
received and not withdrawn:

(i premises licence

(i) variation to a premises licence
(iii) provisional statement

(iv) review of a premises licence

1.7 To determine applications for the transfer of a licence where representations have
been received by the Gambling Commission.

1.8 To determine applications for club gaming/club machine permits where objections
have been made and not withdrawn.

1.9 To cancel club gaming/club machine permits.
1.10 To determine the issue of a counter notice to a temporary use notice.
1.11  To consider any other matters required by the Act or Regulations.

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended)

1.12 To determine applications for a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence

Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013

1.13 To determine appeals relating to a decision to refuse, vary or impose conditions on a
licence, or the revocation of a Scrap Metal Dealer licence.

Page 110 PART 3 - SECTION E



THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

To scrutinise all of the executive functions of the Council, except those reserved to
the External Partnerships Select Committee.

To monitor, review and to report to the Leader/ Executive in relation to the
performance of the Council’s services, including against targets in the Annual Plan
and Five Year Strategy.

To advise in relation to the Council’s existing policies and strategies and assist in the
development of policies and strategies.

To consider whether decisions taken by the Leader/Executive which were not treated
as key decisions, should have been so treated, as set out in the Access to
Information Procedure Rules at Part 4, Section 7 of this Constitution.

To undertake investigations into such matters relating to the Council’s function and
powers as:

(i) may be referred by the Council or the Leader/Executive;

(i) the Committee may consider appropriate;

(iii) have been referred to the Committee pursuant to the “call-in” procedure set
out in the Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rules; and

(iv)  have been referred to the Committee pursuant to the Councillor Call for Action
Protocol at Part 4, Section C of this Constitution;

Page 111 PART 3 - SECTION E



EXTERNAL PARTNERSHIPS SELECT COMMITTEE

To review services provided by other agencies and which affect the economic, social
and environmental well-being of the Council's area, with particular focus upon:

(i)

(i)
(iii)

recipients of revenue and leisure grants and their performance against their
Service Level Agreements;

registered Social Landlords operating within the borough;

Clinical Commissioning Groups and Health and Wellbeing Boards operating
within the borough.

As the Council’s designated crime and disorder committee to

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

review or scrutinise at least annually decisions made or other action taken in
connection with the discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and
disorder functions, including matters referred to it by a ward councillor;

make reports or recommendations to the Council with respect to the
discharge of crime and disorder functions with copies to the appropriate
responsible authorities or co-operating bodies;

scrutinise the Police and Crime Panel.

To undertake investigations into such matters which:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

may be referred by the Council or the Leader/Executive;

have been referred to the Committee pursuant to the “call-in” procedure set
out in the Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rules; and

have been referred to the Committee pursuant to the Councillor Call for Action
Protocol at Part 4, Section C of this Constitution.

To advise in relation to the Council’s existing policies and strategies and assist in the
development of policies and strategies, with a particular focus upon:

(i)

grant schemes operated by the Council

Page 112 PART 3 - SECTION E



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.2

2.3

24

1.1

AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Audit

To consider the annual report, the annual plan the annual management letter of the
External Auditor and any matters arising from the Annual Audit.

To authorise the signing of the Letter of Representation and the Annual Statement of
Accounts by the Section 151 Officer and Chairman of the Audit & Standards
Committee.

To receive and consider at least annually, details of the status of any
recommendations made in any report issued by the External Auditor during the year
and confirmation from the Section 151 Officer that all agreed recommendations have
been implemented.

To receive and consider the annual Audit Plan, and a report on the status of all
recommendations made and of the management actions taken against those
recommendations.

To confirm, as necessary, and monitor compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance at least annually and advise the Council or the Leader/Executive, as
appropriate, on any matters it wishes to draw to their attention.

To receive an annual report from the Monitoring Officer in respect of authorisations
granted during the municipal year pursuant to the Regulation of Investigatory Powers
Act 2000.

Standards

To promote standards within the Council and to monitor the operation of the Code of
Conduct.

To grant dispensations pursuant to Sections 33(2) (b), (c) and (e) of the Localism Act
2011 as follow:

(i) That without the dispensation the representation of different political groups
on the body transacting the particular business would be so upset as to alter
the likely outcome of any vote relating to that business, or

(i) granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the borough,
or

(iii) it is otherwise appropriate to grant the dispensation.

To hear and determine appeals against refusal to grant dispensations by the
Monitoring Officer pursuant to Sections 33(2)(a) and (d) of the Localism Act 2011.

To receive an annual report from the Monitoring Officer on Standards issues.
STANDARDS SUB COMMITTEE

To hear and determine complaints of alleged breaches of the Codes of Conduct by

borough or parish councillors referred to it by the Monitoring Officer in accordance

with the Standards Hearing and Determination Meeting Procedure (Part H of the
Documents which support the Constitution).

Page 113 PART 3 - SECTION E



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE

To agree amendments to Terms and Conditions of Employment for Staff and Human
Resources policies, as referred by the Joint Staff Consultative Group.

To recommend the annual staff pay award to the Council.
To set the Terms of Reference for an Independent Investigation relating to

employment matters where it is not established that they are currently the subject of
capability, grievance and/or disciplinary proceedings.

To make recommendations to the Council for any mutually agreed departures for a
Statutory Officer.

To agree any mutually agreed departures for a non-Statutory Strategic Director or
Head of Service.

To undertake any review of the remuneration for the Head of Paid Service and make
any relevant recommendations to the Council.

To agree any incremental progression for the Chief Executive/ Head of Paid Service,
taking into account the report and recommendation from the Leader of the Council on
the outcome of their end of year appraisal.

To make any decisions on ex-gratia payments to the Chief Executive, Strategic
Directors and Heads of Service in accordance with Financial Regulations.

To consider any recommendations for senior management restructures and make
recommendations to the Full Council.

To agree the recruitment process for the Chief Executive/ Head of Paid Service.

APPOINTMENTS SUB COMMITTEE

To shortlist and interview candidates for the post of Chief Executive and to make
recommendations to Council.

To interview and appoint staff to the posts of Strategic Director and Head of Service.

To interview candidates to act up to the Chief Executive role and make
recommendations to Council.

To interview and appoint staff to Acting Up roles in relation to Strategic Director and
Head of Service positions.

To recommend the appointment of the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer
and the Section 151 Officer.

To interview applicants for the role of Independent Person and to make

recommendations as to the appointment to Council in accordance with Section 28 of
the Localism Act 2011.

Page 114 PART 3 - SECTION E



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.1

HEARING SUB COMMITTEE

To hear and determine any grievance or disciplinary matters relating to a Statutory
Officer.

Where the disciplinary action proposes the dismissal of a Statutory Officer, to refer
the decision to an Independent Panel and the Council.

To receive any grievances or allegations of misconduct concerning non- statutory
Strategic Director or Head of Service, as referred by the Head of Paid Service, and
determine whether to commission reports from an Independent Investigator, or to
take no further action.

To hear any grievance or disciplinary matters relating to a Strategic Director or Head
of Service, as referred by the Head of Paid Service.

To decide whether to suspend a Statutory Officer.

APPEALS SUB COMMITTEE

To hear and determine any appeals made by a Statutory Officer in respect of any
disciplinary action taken against them by the Council, with the exception of where the
Council has made a decision to dismiss that officer.

To hear and determine any appeal regarding disciplinary action taken against any
Strategic Director or Head of Service.

To hear and determine any appeal relating to a grievance raised by or against a
Statutory Officer or a Strategic Director or Head of Service.

To hear appeals of any decision raised by a statutory officer or a non-statutory
Strategic Director or Head of Service relating to a decision made by the Employment
Committee outside any grievance or disciplinary process.

INDEPENDENT PANEL

To review any recommendations to dismiss a Statutory Officer and compile a
recommendation to the Full Council in respect of this decision.

Page 115 PART 3 - SECTION E



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.1

1.2

1.3

JOINT STAFF CONSULTATIVE GROUP

To advise the Council, Employment Committee and the Head of Paid Service in
relation to major issues of concern to the Council and its employees.

To consider and make recommendations in relation to any relevant matter referred to
it by the Leader/Executive, a Panel or Committee of the Council, the Chief Executive,
the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, a statutory officer, any of the recognised
trade unions or staff representatives.

To negotiate and make recommendations to the Employment Committee in relation
to

(a) amendments to the Local Terms and Conditions of Service of employees; and
(b) procedural agreements, including the disciplinary, dispute and grievance
procedures

The Group may only consider collective issues and must not consider any
disciplinary, grievance or grading issues relating to individuals.

TASK AND FINISH GROUPS

Any of the above bodies can establish Task and Finish Groups to review in detail any
matter within the scope of their Terms of Reference.

The appointing body will be responsible for establishing the Task and Finish Group’s
Terms of Reference and the timeframe in which the work will be conducted.

The membership of the Task and Finish Group will be set by the relevant body, on
the nomination of the Group Leaders.

Page 116 PART 3 - SECTION E



INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL

Introduction

1.1

Members of the Independent Remuneration Panel are appointed by the Chief
Executive after consultation with the party group leaders and subject to all decisions
being reported to Members by email.

Functions

1.2

1.3

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

To produce reports in relation to allowances payable to Members of the Council,
making recommendations to the Council as to :-

(a) the amount of the basic allowance;
(b) the roles for which a special responsibility allowance will be payable and the
amount of such allowances;

(c) any dependent carer allowances;

(d) travelling and subsistence allowances;
(e) co-optee allowances;

) pensions for members.

To produce reports, as required, by Parish Councils within the Borough of Surrey
Heath as to:-

(a) any basic allowance payable to parish members;
(b) when the allowance should be payable;
(c) any appropriate travelling and subsistence allowances.

GOVERNANCE WORKING GROUP

To keep under review the Constitution and make any recommendations to the Full
Council on revisions to existing constitutional documents, the addition of documents
to the Constitution, or the removal of documents from the Constitution, as considered
appropriate.

To keep under review the Documents which Support the Constitution, and make any
recommendations to the Head of Legal & Democratic Services on revisions to
existing Documents which Support the Constitution, the addition of documents to the
list of Documents which Support the Constitution, or the removal of documents from
the Documents which Support the Constitution, as considered appropriate

To keep under review the Terms of Reference of the Executive, Committees and
Other Bodies, including a full review at the beginning of every Council term.

To review the membership levels of the committees prior to the end of an annual
term, or as necessary.

To consider any matters relating to the Council’'s governance, as directed by the Full
Council.

Page 117 PART 3 - SECTION E



This page is intentionally left blank



PART 4

PROCEDURAL RULES

Section
A Council Procedure Rules Grey
B Executive Procedure Rules Lilac
C Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rules Cream
D Committees, Sub Committees and Other Bodies Procedure Rules Yellow
E Public Speaking Procedure Rules Pink
F Access to Information Procedure Rules Green
G Budget and Policy Framework Rules Blue
H Financial Regulations Grey
I Contract Standing Orders Lilac
J Officer Employment Rules Cream
K Substitution Procedure Rules Green
L Petitions Scheme Pink

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



PART 4 - PROCEDURAL RULES

SECTION A

COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES

1. Annual Meetings — Timing and Business

1.1 Annual Meeting of the Council following the ordinary election of
councillors

1.2 Annual Meeting in other years
1.3  Establishment of and Appointment to Committees and Working
Groups of Council
2. Ordinary meetings
3. Extraordinary meetings

3.1 Calling extraordinary meetings.
3.2 Business

4, Time and place of meetings

5. Notice of and summons to meetings
6. Cancellation of a meeting

7. Chair of meeting

8. Quorum

9. Duration of meeting

10. Public Participation and Petitions
11. Questions by members

11.1 Questions on notice at full Council
Notice of questions
Response
Supplementary question
On Minutes of the Leader, Portfolio Holders, Executive or
Committees

11A. Leader’s Question Time

PART 4 - SECTION A
Page 121



12. Motions on notice

12.1 Notice
12.2 Motion set out in agenda
12.3 Scope

12.4 Improper, Out of Order or Not Relevant Motions
12.5 Motions not Moved at the Meeting

12.6 Reference of or Dealing with Motions

12.7 Notice of Reference of Motion

12.8 Limit on Number of Motions

12.9 Motion to Replace Leader

13. Motions without notice

14. Rules of Debate

14.1  No speeches until motion seconded
14.2 Right to require motion in writing
14.3 Seconder’s speech

14.4 Content of Speech

14.5 Length of speech

14.6 When a member may speak again
14.7 Amendments to motions

14.8 Alteration of motion

14.9 Withdrawal of motion

14.10 Right of reply

14.11 Point of order

14.12 Personal explanation

14.13 Motions which may be moved during debate
14.14 Closure motions

15. Previous decisions and motions

15.1  Motion to rescind a previous decision
15.2 Motion similar to one previously rejected

16. Voting

16.1  Majority

16.2 Mayor’s casting vote

16.3 Show of hands

16.4 Roll Call Vote

16.5 Right to require individual vote to be recorded
16.6 Voting on appointments

17. Minutes
17.1 Signing the minutes

17.2 No requirement to sign minutes of previous meeting at extraordinary
meeting

PART 4 - SECTION A
Page 122



17.3

Form of minutes

18. Record of attendance

19. Exclusion of public

20. Members' conduct
20.1 Mayor standing

20.2 Standing to speak
20.3 Mayor to decide order of speaking
20.4 Only one councillor to stand
20.5 Member not to be heard further
20.6 Member to leave the meeting
20.7 General disturbance
21. Disturbance by public
21.1 Removal of member of the public
21.2 Clearance of part of meeting room
22. Suspension and amendment of council procedure rules
22.1 Suspension

22.2 Amendment

23. Interpretation of Procedure Rules

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 123



1.1

PART 4 - PROCEDURAL RULES

SECTION A

COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES

Annual Meetings - Timing and Business

Annual Meeting of the Council following the ordinary election of
councillors

Following the ordinary election of councillors, the annual meeting will take
place within 21 days of the retirement of the outgoing councillors.

This Annual Meeting will:

(i)

elect a person to preside if the Mayor is not present;

elect the Mayor;

elect the Deputy Mayor;

receive the report of the Returning Officer (as appropriate);
approve the minutes of the last meeting;

receive apologies for absence;

receive any announcements from the Mayor and/or the Head of the
Paid Service;

elect the Leader for a four year term of office;

appoint at least one scrutiny committee and such other committees and
working groups as the Council considers appropriate to deal with
matters which are neither reserved to the Council nor are executive
functions (as set out in Part 3, Table 1 of this Constitution);

agree the scheme of delegation or such part of it as the Constitution
determines it is for the Council to agree (as set out in Part 3 Table 3 of
this Constitution);

consider any business set out in the notice convening the meeting,
including motions and questions

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 124



1.2

1.3

Annual Meeting in other years

In any other years, the annual meeting will take place in March, April or May
and will conduct the business set out at 1.1 above with exception of the
election of the Leader.

Establishment of and Appointment to Committees and Working Groups
of Council

At all Annual Meetings, the Council will:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

decide which committees and working groups of Council to establish
for the municipal year;

decide the size and terms of reference for those committees and
working groups of Council;

decide the allocation of seats and substitutes to political groups in
accordance with the political balance rules;

receive nominations of councillors to serve on each committee and
working group of Council;

appoint to those committees and working groups of Council on the
nomination of the Party Group Leaders except where appointment to
those bodies has been delegated by the Council or is exercisable only
by the Leader;

(Note: whilst committees will ordinarily consist of Members, the Council
may appoint committee members who are not members of the Council
except where the committee concerned deals with the control or
regulation of the Council’s finances or of its area);

appoint chairmen and vice chairmen of the committees and working
groups of Council.

Ordinary meetings

Ordinary Meetings will usually be held in July, October, December, February
and April. Ordinary meetings will:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)
(iv)

elect a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor are not
present;

approve the minutes of the last meeting;
receive apologies for absence;

receive any declarations of interest from members;

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 125



(v) receive any announcements from the Mayor, the Leader, Members of
the Executive or the Head of the Paid Service;

(vi)  present retirement and long service awards (if any) to employees of the
Council;

(vii)  receive questions or presentations from the public, consistent with the
Public Speaking Rules at Part 4 of this Constitution;

(vii)  receive, debate and respond to any petitions presented in accordance
with the Petition Scheme at Part 4 of this Constitution;

(viii)  deal with any business from the last Council meeting;

(ix)  receive questions from Members and provide answers in accordance
with Rule 11;

(x) receive notice of any changes to the membership of Committees made
by the Chief Executive in accordance with the wishes of the political
groups;

(xi)  atthe appropriate meeting, set the Council Tax for the coming year and
at that meeting receive a statement of the Council’s financial position
by the Leader;

(xii)  receive and consider all other reports, minutes and recommendations
of the Leader, individual Portfolio Holders, the Executive and
committees;

(xiii)  receive reports about and receive questions and answers on the
business of joint arrangements and external organisations;

(xiv) consider motions in accordance with Rule 10;
(xv) consider any other business specified in the summons to the meeting;

(xvi) receive a report on key decisions taken outside policy and budget by
reason of special urgency;

(xvii) permit Members to ask questions and receive answers from the Leader
or specific Portfolio Holders in Executive Question Time;

(xviii) make decisions in relation to those items considered at the meeting
which are no longer to be regarded as exempt.

PART 4 - SECTION A
Page 126



3.1

3.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

Extraordinary meetings
Calling extraordinary meetings.

Those listed below may request the Chief Executive to call Council meetings
in addition to ordinary meetings:

(i) the Council by resolution;

(i) the Mayor;

(i)  the Monitoring Officer;

(iv)  any five members of the Council if they have signed a requisition
presented to the Mayor and he/she has refused to call a meeting or
has failed to call a meeting within seven days of the presentation of the
requisition; and

(v) a Scrutiny Committee, if it so resolves, where it believes that a decision
by the Leader, individual Portfolio Holder or the Executive was not
wholly within budget or policy.

Business

In order to preserve the use of extraordinary meetings for debates concerning
one-off, major matters the business which can be conducted at extraordinary
meetings will be confined to the item(s) of business for which it has been
called, with no consideration of previous minutes or reports from committees
etc.

Time and place of meetings

The time and place of meetings will be determined by the Chief Executive and
notified in the summons. Meetings will normally be held in the Council
Chamber at Surrey Heath House and will commence at 7.00 pm.

Notice of and summons to meetings

The Chief Executive will give notice to the public of the time and place of any
meeting in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 and the Access
to Information Procedure Rules.

At least five clear days before a meeting, the Chief Executive will send a
summons signed by him or her to every member of the Council unless a
meeting is convened at less notice and this requirement cannot be met.

The summons will give the date, time and place of each meeting and specify
the business to be transacted, and will be accompanied by such reports as
are available.

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 127



6. Cancellation of a Meeting

6.1  The Chief Executive may, after consultation with the Mayor, cancel a
scheduled meeting if, in his/her opinion, there is insufficient business to justify
calling it.

6.2 Once a meeting has been called in accordance with Rule 5 above, the
meeting will not be cancelled unless it is impractical to hold such a meeting.
The Chief Executive, after consultation with the Mayor, may rule that the
meeting is cancelled and will advise all councillors and interested parties.

7. Chair of meeting

The person presiding at the meeting may exercise any power or duty of the
Mayor.

8. Quorum

8.1  The quorum at a meeting of the Council is ten. If, after thirty minutes from the
notified start time of the meeting, a quorum is not present, the business will be
adjourned to a fixed date and time, or to the next Ordinary Meeting.

8.2  If during any meeting of the Council the Mayor, after counting the number of
members present, declares that there is not a quorum present, the meeting
will be adjourned.

8.3  When voting on a motion to remove the Leader of the Council, the quorum
required is at least three quarters of the total number of members of the
Council.

9. Duration of meeting

9.1 At 10.00pm the Mayor must ask the members present whether they wish to
adjourn the meeting immediately, conclude the business of the evening by
10.30pm or adjourn to a different date. The meeting must adjourn no later
than 10.30pm.

9.2  The Council will only suspend this Standing Order on rare occasions when
circumstances justify doing so. The motion to suspend this Standing Order
must be seconded and then put to the vote without discussion.

10. Public Participation and Petitions
10.1  Members of the public and public groups and bodies may, at ordinary
meetings, ask questions of members or make presentations in accordance

with the Council’s Public Speaking Rules set out at Part 4 of the Constitution.

10.2 Petitions at Council Meetings will be received, debated and responded to in
accordance with the Petitions Scheme (Part 4 of the Constitution).

PART 4 - SECTION A
Page 128



11.

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

Questions by members

Questions on notice at full Council

Subject to Rule 11.2, a member of the Council may ask:

e the Mayor;

e the Leader or a member of the Executive; or

e the chairman of any committee or sub-committee

a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties

or which affects the Borough of Surrey Heath. Where the question meets the

requirements of 11.2 below, the Head of Legal & Democratic Services will
give a copy of each question to every councillor attending the meeting.

Notice of questions

A member may only ask a question under Rule 11.1 if either:

(@) they have given notice in writing of the question to the Chief Executive
to arrive no later than 5 pm three clear working days before the
meeting; or
(Note: if the Council meeting is on a Wednesday, the question must be
received by 5.00 pm on the Thursday preceding the meeting providing
there are no Bank Holidays in this period.)

(b)  the question relates to urgent matters, they have the consent of the
Mayor to the question being put and the content of the question is
given to Chief Executive by 10.00 am on the day of the meeting.

Response

The question will be put and answered without discussion. An answer given
may be given:

(@) by reference to published material of the Council or that which is
readily available to the members; or

(b)  in writing.

The question and the written response will be circulated to Councillors by no
later than 2.00pm on the day of the Council meeting.

Supplementary question
(@) A member asking a question under Rule 11.1 may ask one

supplementary question without notice of the member to whom the first
question was asked. The supplementary question must arise directly

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 129



out of the original question or the reply and the answer will be given as
in 11.3 above.

(b) If an answer to the supplementary question is to be made in writing, the
answer must be circulated to all members of the Council by e-mail.

11.5 On Minutes of the decisions made by the Leader, Portfolio Holders,
Executive or Committees

A member of the Council may ask the Leader or the chairman of a committee
any question without notice upon an item of the minutes of the decisions of
the Leader, individual Portfolio Holders, the Executive or a committee when
that item is being received or under consideration by the Council.

11A. Leader’s Question Time

11A.1 The purpose of Leader’s Question Time is to allow Members to ask questions
of the Leader which relate to his/her area of responsibility.

11A.2 The Leader, will respond to questions from Members each meeting.

11A.3 The Leader may respond orally, by reference to published material or that
which is readily available to the members, or in writing. The Questions will be
put and answered without debate.

11A.4 The total time allocated to Leader’s Question Time will be no more than 20
minutes.

12. Motions on Notice
12.1 Notice

Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Rule 13, written
notice of every motion, must be received by the Chief Executive at least
seven clear days before the meeting, and be signed by the councillor(s) giving
the notice.

(Note - seven clear days does not included the day of the meeting i.e. If the
Council meeting is on a Wednesday the motion must be received by 5 p.m. on
the Friday two weeks before the meeting providing there are no Bank
Holidays in this period.)

12.2 Motion set out in agenda
Motions for which notice has been given will be listed on the agenda in the

order in which notice was received, unless the member giving notice states, in
writing, that they propose to move it to a later meeting or withdraw it.

PART 4 - SECTION A
Page 130



12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

Scope

Motions must be about matters for which the Council has a responsibility or
which affect the Borough of Surrey Heath

Motions shall contain no more than 350 words. Any amendments to motions
shall contain no more than 150 additional words.

Improper, Out of Order or Not Relevant Motions

If the Chief Executive receives a notice of motion and entertains any doubt as
to whether the motion is

(i) improper;

(ii) unlawful,

(i)  out of order;

(iv)  not relevant to a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or
which affects the Borough of Surrey Heath; or

(v)  requesting action which has financial implications that are outside the
approved budget and where the budgetary implications have not been
addressed in the motion

he or she must consult the Mayor before inserting or rejecting it. A motion
rejected in this manner must not be inserted in the agenda except upon the
written request of 10 members of the Council, at which point the Chief
Executive will accompany the motion with a written report containing the
relevant advice councillors need to take into consideration. The mover of the
motion will have the right to accompany this report with a written explanation
of their reasons for moving the motion.

Where a motion is received and the action requested is substantially similar to
the action requested in a motion already received and accepted for inclusion
on an agenda, the motion will be rejected by the Chief Executive after
consultation with the Mayor.

Motions not Moved at the Meeting

The Council will treat as withdrawn any motion not moved, either by the
member who gave notice or by some other councillor on their behalf, at the
meeting at which it appears on the summons, unless its postponement is
agreed. A motion must be seconded before any debate can take place.

Reference of or Dealing with Motions

Any motion the subject matter of which comes within the province of the

Leader, individual Portfolio Holder, the Executive or any committee(s) may be
referred without discussion to the Leader, Portfolio Holder or body concerned,
or any other body, for consideration and report or be dealt with at the meeting
at which it is moved if the Mayor considers it would be advantageous to do so.

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 131



12.7 Notice of Reference of Motion

The councillor who has moved the motion must be notified by the Head of
Legal & Democratic Services of the meetings of the body to which it has been
referred, and has the right to attend the meeting(s) and to explain the motion.

12.8 Limit on Number of Motions

No councillor must have more than two notices of motion on the same
agenda.

12.9 Motion to Replace Leader

(a)

(b)

(c)

A notice of motion to replace the Leader of the Council must state why
the signatories consider the Leader should be removed and be signed
by 10 members of the Council and received by the Chief Executive at

least five clear days before the meeting.

Subject to the provisions relating to the quorum required when voting
on such a motion (see Rule 8.2 above), at any meeting of the full
Council, a councillor may propose that "the Council has no confidence
in the Leader". The question shall, after debate, be put and, if carried
by at least two-thirds of those councillors present, the Leader shall be
removed from office.

If the Council passes a resolution to remove the Leader from office, a
new Leader will be elected at the meeting at which the Leader is
removed from office.

13. Motions without notice

The following motions may be moved without notice:

(@)
(b)
(c)
(d)

to appoint a chairman for that meeting or the remainder of the meeting;
in relation to the accuracy of the minutes of the Council;
to change the order of business in the agenda;

to receive the minutes and adopt recommendations of the Leader,
individual Portfolio Holders, the Executive, committees or officers;

to refer, or refer back, a matter to an appropriate body or individual,
providing it does not seek to amend or rescind a decision taken using
delegated authority;

in relation to the consideration of an item on the agenda, but the motion
must be relevant to that item, not introduce any new subject matter and
not seek to amend or rescind a decision taken using delegated
authority;

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 132



14.

141

(9]

Q)

(s)

to appoint a body or a person to a body, arising from an item on the
summons for the meeting;

to withdraw a motion;

to extend the time limit for speeches
to amend a motion;

to proceed to the next business;
that the question be now put;

to adjourn a debate;

to adjourn a meeting;

to suspend one or more Council Procedure Rule, except for Rules 16.5
and 17.2;

(Note: where the Council wishes to allow freer debate and remove
restrictions relating to officers and consultants speaking, councillors
speaking more than once, the time limit on speaking and the
requirement to stand, Rules 14.6, 14.7 and 20.1 need to be
suspended.)

to exclude the public and press under Section 100A(2) and Section
100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 and in accordance with the
Access to Information Rules;

to not hear further a member named under Rule 20.5 or to exclude
them from the meeting under Rule 20.6;

to give the consent of the Council where its consent is required by this
Constitution; and

to carry out a statutory duty or power of the Council not delegated by
law or the Constitution to the Leader which, in the opinion of the Mayor,
is of an urgent nature.

Rules of debate

No speeches until motion seconded

No speeches may be made after the mover has moved a proposal and
explained the purpose of it, until the motion has been seconded. When
seconding a motion or amendment, the member will speak immediately after
the member proposing the motion or amendment.

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 133



14.2 Right to require motion in writing

14.4

14.5

14.6

Unless notice of the motion has already been given, the Mayor may require it
to be written down and handed to him/her before it is discussed.

Content of Speech

Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or to a personal
explanation or point of order.

Length of speech

Except with the consent of the Mayor:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

in respect of motions moved with notice (Rule 12 above), the mover of
the motion may not speak for more than 8 minutes and the seconder 5
minutes

subject to (c), in respect of motions moved without notice (Rule 13
above), the mover and the seconder of the motion may not speak for
more than 3 minutes each

in respect of motions moved in accordance with Rule 13 (j) during
consideration of the item setting the Annual Budget, the mover of an
amendment to a motion may not speak for more than 8 minutes and
the seconder 5 minutes

any other member speaking during a debate may not speak for more
than 3 minutes, except during consideration of the item setting the
Annual Budget where they may not speak for more than 5 minutes.

When a member may speak again

A member who has spoken on a motion may not speak again whilst it is the
subject of debate, except:

(@)
(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

to speak once on an amendment moved by another member;

to move a further amendment if the motion has been amended since
he/she last spoke;

if his/her first speech was on an amendment moved by another
member, to speak on the main issue (whether or not the amendment
on which he/she spoke was carried);

in exercise of a right of reply (Rule 14.10);

to raise a point of order (Rule 14.11);

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 134



(f)

by way of personal explanation (Rule 14.12).

(For this purpose, each separate minute of the decisions of the Leader,
individual Portfolio Holder, the Executive, committee, sub-committee or joint
committee, or group of minutes being taken together will be regarded as a
separate motion.)

14.7 Amendments to motions

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and will
either be:

(1) to refer the matter to an appropriate body or individual for
consideration or reconsideration;

(i) to leave out words;

(i)  to leave out words and insert or add others; or

(iv)  toinsert or add words.

as long as the effect of (ii) to (iv) is not to negate the motion.

Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one time.
No further amendment may be moved until the amendment under
discussion has been disposed of.

Notice of intention to move a further amendment, and the nature
thereof, may, at the discretion of the Mayor be given before a vote is

taken on the amendment before the meeting.

If an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the original
motion may be moved.

If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place of

the original motion. This becomes the substantive motion to which any

further amendments are moved.

After an amendment has been carried, the Mayor will read out the
amended motion before accepting any further amendments, or if there
are none, put it to the vote.

14.8 Alteration of motion

(a)

A member may, with the consent of the Council, alter a motion of which

he/she has given notice. The Council’s consent will be signified
without discussion.

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 135



14.9

14.10

14.11

14.12

14.13

PART 4 -

(b) A member may, with the consent of both the Council and the seconder,
alter a motion which he/she has moved without notice. The Council’'s
consent will be signified without discussion.

(c) Only alterations which could be made as an amendment may be made.
Withdrawal of motion

A member may withdraw a motion which he/she has moved with the consent
of both the Council and the seconder. The Council’s consent will be signified
without discussion. No member may speak on the motion after the mover has
asked permission to withdraw it unless permission is refused.

Right of reply

(@)  The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the end of the debate on
the motion, immediately before it is put to the vote.

(b) If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion has the
right of reply at the close of the debate on the amendment, but may not
otherwise speak on it.

(c)  The mover of the amendment has no right of reply to the debate on his
or her amendment.

(d) A councillor exercising a right of reply shall confine him or herself to
answering previous speakers and shall not introduce new matters or
material. The Mayor’s ruling on this will be final.

Point of order

A member may raise a point of order at any time. The Mayor will hear them
immediately. A point of order may only relate to an alleged breach of these
Council Procedure Rules or the law. The member must indicate the Rule or
law and the way in which he/she considers it has been broken. The ruling of
the Mayor on the matter will be final.

Right to personal explanation

A member may make a personal explanation at any time. A personal
explanation may only relate to some material part of an earlier speech by the
member which may appear to have been misunderstood in the present debate
or correct an earlier statement. The ruling of the Mayor on the admissibility of
a personal explanation will be final.

Motions which may be moved during debate

When a motion is under debate, no other motion may be moved except the
following procedural motions:

SECTION A
Page 136



(@) by the mover, to withdraw a motion;

(b)  toamend a motion;

(c) to postpone consideration of a motion;

(d)  to proceed to the next business;

(e) that the question be now put;

(f) to adjourn a debate;

(g) toadjourn a meeting;

(h)  to suspend one or more Council Procedure Rules;

(i) to refer the subject of the debate to the Executive, a committee or to an
officer for report;

)] to exclude the public and press under Section 100A(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 accordance with the Access to Information
Rules; and

(k)  to not hear further a member named under Rule 20.5 or to exclude
them from the meeting under Rule 20.6.

14.14 Closure motions

(@) A member may move, without comment, the following procedural
motions at the end of a speech of another member:

(a)  to proceed to the next business;
(b)  to take an immediate vote;

(c) toadjourn a debate; or

(d)  to adjourn a meeting.

(b)  On the seconding of any of the above procedural motions, the Mayor
will proceed as follows:

Next Business

(i) If the Mayor considers the item has been sufficiently discussed,
he/she will give the mover of the original motion a right of reply
and then put to the vote the motion to move to the next
business.

An Immediate Vote

(i) If the Mayor considers the item has been sufficiently discussed,
he/she will put to the vote the motion to move to an immediate

PART 4 - SECTION A
Page 137



15.

15.1

15.2

(c)

vote. If it is passed he/she will give the mover of the original
motion a right of reply before putting his/her original motion to
the vote.

Adjourn a Debate

(i) If the Mayor considers the item has not been sufficiently
discussed and cannot reasonably be discussed on that
occasion, he/she will put to the vote the motion to adjourn the
debate without giving the mover of the original motion the right
of reply.

Adjourn a Meeting

(iv)  If the Mayor considers the item has not been sufficiently
discussed and cannot reasonably be discussed on that
occasion, he/she will put to the vote the motion to adjourn the
meeting without giving the mover of the original motion the right
of reply.

Relevance to the Question and No Amendments

A Member moving the adjournment of the debate or the meeting must
confine his/her observations to that question and no amendment can
be proposed to that motion unless it relates to the time of adjournment.
Adjourned Debate

On resuming an adjourned debate, the Member who moved the
adjournment is entitled to speak first. Thereafter, the normal rules of
debate will apply.

Second Motion to Adjourn Meeting

A second motion to adjourn the meeting cannot be made within a

period of thirty minutes from the first motion unless moved by the
Mayor.

Previous decisions and motions

Motion to rescind a previous decision

A motion or amendment to rescind a decision made at a meeting of Council
within the past six months cannot be moved unless the notice of motion is
signed by at least 10 members.

Motion similar to one previously rejected

A motion or amendment, which in the opinion of the Chief Executive, after
consultation with the Mayor, is in similar terms to one which has been rejected

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 138



16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

at a meeting of Council in the past six months, cannot be moved unless the

notice of motion or amendment is signed by at least 10 members. Once the
motion or amendment is dealt with, no one can propose a similar motion or

amendment for six months.

Voting
Majority

Unless this Constitution provides otherwise, any matter will be decided by a
simple majority of those members voting and present in the room at the time
the question was put.

Mayor’s casting vote

(a) If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Mayor will have
a second or casting vote.

(b) If the Mayor fails to vote when the main vote is taken, an equality of a
vote cannot be achieved by the Mayor casting an original vote and
following that action with a casting vote. The Mayor’s casting vote may
be used whether or not the Mayor has already voted.

(c) In the event of a tied vote, the proposer of the matter under debate
shall have the opportunity of making a further speech of no more than
3 minutes. A further vote will then immediately be taken. If deadlock
has not been broken, the Mayor must cast a vote in favour of the status
quo. The status quo will usually be interpreted as the motion falling.
Where there is a tied vote on the appointment to a position, if relevant
the Mayor will vote in favour of the current incumbent, but will
otherwise have a free vote.

Show of hands
Except where a vote is being taken at a budget decision meeting or unless a

recorded vote is demanded under Rule 16.4, the Mayor will take the vote by
show of hands, or if there is no dissent, by the affirmation of the meeting.”

16.3A Budget Decision Meeting

16.4

Immediately after any vote on the budget is taken at the budget decision
meeting, there must be recorded in the minutes of the proceedings of that
meeting the names of the persons who cast a vote for the decision or against
the decision or who abstained from voting.

Recorded Vote

If, before the Mayor begins to take a vote, three members present at the
meeting demand it, the names for and against the motion or amendment or

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 139



16.5

16.6

17.

171

17.2

17.3

abstentions from voting will be taken down in writing and entered into the
minutes.

Where the facility is available, this vote will be conducted electronically.
Where this is not possible, each member present will be called by name and
asked to indicate whether they are voting in favour of, or against the motion or
amendment or abstaining from voting.

Right to require individual vote to be recorded

Where any member requests it immediately after the vote is taken, their vote
will be recorded in the minutes to show whether they voted for or against the
motion or abstained from voting.

Voting on appointments

If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be filled by the
Council and there is no clear majority of the votes cast in favour of one
person, then the candidate who received the fewest votes must be eliminated
from the voting and a fresh vote taken. This process will, if necessary,
continue until a majority of votes has been cast in favour of one person.
Where there is only one candidate, they will be elected.

Minutes
Signing the minutes

The Mayor will sign the minutes of the proceedings at the next suitable
meeting. The Mayor will move that the minutes of the previous meeting be
signed as a correct record. The only part of the minutes that can be
discussed is their accuracy.

No requirement to sign minutes of previous meeting at extraordinary
meeting

Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of signing
the minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of schedule 12 to the Local
Government Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting), then the next following
meeting (being a meeting called otherwise than under that paragraph) will be
treated as a suitable meeting for the purposes of paragraph 41(1) and (2) of
schedule 12 relating to signing of minutes.

Form of minutes

Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact form and order
the Mayor put them.

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 140



18.

19.

20.

20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

20.5

20.6

Record of attendance

All members present during the whole or part of a meeting must sign their
names on the attendance sheets before the conclusion of every meeting to
assist with the record of attendance.

Exclusion of public

Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in accordance
with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 and the Access to
Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution or Rule 22 (Disturbance by
Public).

Members' conduct

Mayor standing

When the Mayor stands during a debate, any member speaking at the time
must stop and sit down. The meeting must be silent.

Standing to speak

When a member speaks they must stand and address the meeting through
the Mayor.

Mayor to decide order of speaking

If two of more councillors indicate their wish to speak, the Mayor will decide
the order of speaking.

Only one councillor to stand

While a councillor is speaking, all other councillors must remain seated and
silent unless rising to a point of order or in personal explanation.

Member not to be heard further

If a member persistently disregards the ruling of the Mayor by behaving
improperly or offensively or deliberately obstructs business, the Mayor may
move that the member be not heard further. If seconded, the motion will be
voted on without discussion.

Member to leave the meeting

If the member continues to behave improperly after such a motion is carried,
the Mayor may move that either the member leaves the meeting or that the
meeting is adjourned for a specified period. If seconded, the motion will be
voted on without discussion.

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 141



20.7

21.

21.1

21.2

22,

22.1

22.2

23.

General disturbance

If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, the
Mayor may adjourn the meeting for as long as he/she thinks necessary.

Disturbance by public

Removal of member of the public

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Mayor will warn the
person concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the Mayor will order their
removal from the meeting room.

Clearance of part of meeting room

If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the
public, the Mayor may call for that part to be cleared.

Suspension and amendment of council procedure rules

Suspension

All of these Council Procedure Rules except Rule 16.5 and 17.2 may be
suspended by motion on notice or without notice. Suspension can only be for
the duration of the meeting.

Amendment

Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Council Procedure Rules will,
when proposed and seconded, stand adjourned without discussion to the next
ordinary meeting of the Council.

Interpretation of Council Procedure Rules

The ruling of the Mayor as to the application of any of the Council Procedure

Rules, or as to any proceedings of the Council, must not be challenged at that
meeting of the Council.

PART 4 - SECTION A

Page 142



1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

4.1

PART 4 - PROCEDURAL RULES
SECTION B

EXECUTIVE PROCEDURE RULES

Members of the Executive

The Executive will consist of the Leader and Deputy Leader together
with at least 1, but not more than 8, councillors appointed to the
Executive by the Leader. The Leader will report the appointments, and
any changes to these appointments, to the Council.

Executive Decisions

The arrangements for the discharge of Executive functions will be set
out by the Leader. The Leader may provide for Executive functions to
be discharged by:

(i) the Leader him/herself;

(ii) the Executive as a whole;

(i)  a Committee of the Executive;

(iv)  anindividual Member of the Executive;

(vi)  an officer;

(vii) an Area Committee;

(viii) joint arrangements; or

(ix)  another local authority.

The Leader will report the arrangements, and any changes to the
arrangements, to the Council

Working Groups

The Leader/Executive may appoint such working groups as is
considered appropriate.

The Leader’s Scheme of Delegation of Executive Functions
The Leader’'s Scheme of Delegation of Executive Functions will be
determined and/or amended by the Leader. The Leader will report the

Scheme as determined, and any amendments to it, to the Council.

Executive Meetings

Page 143 PART 4 SECTION B



5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

Meetings of the Executive will be set by the Leader and included in the
calendar of meetings. The Leader may call meetings in addition to
those in the agreed calendar of meetings. The Executive will normally
meet at Surrey Heath House unless another location is agreed by the
Leader with the Chief Executive.

Public or Private Meetings

All meetings of the Executive at which decisions are taken, whether or
not they are key decisions within the meaning of the Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements)(Access to Information)(England)
Regulations 2012 will take place in public, except where the Executive
is considering exempt business.

Quorum

The Quorum for a meeting of the Executive is one third of the
membership, rounded up or 3 whichever is the larger.

How Decisions are to be taken by The Executive

Executive decisions which are to be taken by the Executive as a whole
will be taken at a meeting convened in accordance with the Access To
Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution.

The Executive will deal with proposals relating to the policy framework
or budget in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework Rules
in Part 4.

Date When Executive Decisions Take Effect

When decisions have been taken by the Executive, the Monitoring
Officer will issue to all members of the Council a summary of the
decisions as soon as reasonably practical, normally by 5 p.m. on the
following working day.

Decisions taken by the Executive can be called-in for scrutiny by a
Scrutiny Committee. The protocol for call-ins is set out in the Scrutiny
Committee Procedure Rules in Part 4. Requests for call-ins must be
submitted by 5pm on the fifth working day following the issue of the
summary of decisions. Decisions of the Executive will take effect or be
actioned six working days after the issue of the summary unless the
call-in process has been triggered.

Where a decision of the Executive is considered by the Monitoring
Officer and Chief Executive to be urgent, it can take effect immediately
the summary of the decision is published. If the decision is
subsequently called — in, the Scrutiny Committee may still review the
decision although the outcome will be not affected.

Page 144 PART 4 SECTION B



10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

11.

11.1

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

13.

13.1

Decisions by the Leader and Individual Portfolio Holders

Where the Leader or an individual Member of the Executive receives a
report which he/she intends to take into account in making an
Executive decision, then he/she will not make the decision until at least
5 clear days after receipt of that report.

The officer who prepared the report will, at the same time as giving the
report to the Leader or an individual Member of the Executive, give a
copy of it to all Members of the Council and make the report publicly
available, unless the report is exempt.

As soon as reasonably practicable after an Executive decision has
been taken by the Leader or an individual member of the Executive or
a key decision taken by an officer, the Chief Executive will prepare a
record of the decision, a statement of the reasons for it, any advice
sought or received from officers, and the options considered.

The Access to Information Procedure Rules provisions apply to the
making of decisions by the Leader or individual members of the
Executive, and decisions will be taken at a meeting convened in
accordance with those Rules.

Conduct of Executive Meetings

The Leader will chair meetings of the Executive at which he/she is
present. In the Leader’s absence, the Deputy Leader will preside. If
both are absent, the Executive will appoint a person from those present
to preside at the meeting.

Who May Attend

Members of the public may attend any meeting where decisions are
being taken by the Leader, individual Portfolio Holder or the Executive
except where exempt or confidential information may be considered.

Any member of the Council may attend a meeting where decisions are
being taken by the Leader, individual Portfolio Holder or the Executive
which is open to the public but shall sit separately from the decision
makers so that it is clear to any members of the public who are
decision makers. Attendance by any member at these meetings will be
recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

A councillor who attends a meeting where decisions are being taken by
the Leader, individual Portfolio Holder or the Executive may, when
invited to do so by the Leader (or person presiding, as appropriate),
speak at the meeting on an item the decision maker is considering
before the decision is made.

Business at Executive Meetings

At each meeting of the Executive held in public the following business
will usually be conducted:

Page 145 PART 4 SECTION B



14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

(@) apologies for absence;
(b)  consideration of the minutes of the last meeting;
(c) declarations of interest, if any;

(d) receive, debate and respond to any petitions presented in
accordance with the Petition Scheme at Part 4 of this
Constitution;

(e) receive and respond to any questions received from Members
under Rule 16 below:

() matters referred to the Executive (by either a Scrutiny
Committee or Council) for reconsideration by the Executive in
accordance with the provisions contained in the Scrutiny
Committee Procedure Rules or the Budget and Policy
Framework Rules;

(g)  consideration of reports and recommendations from Scrutiny
Committees;

(h)  matters set out in the agenda for the meeting, which shall
indicate which are Key Decisions;

(i) recommendations of the Executive’s Working Groups;

() urgent Items, subject to the Access to Information Procedure
Rules at Part 4.

Putting Items on the Executive Agenda

The Leader may put on the agenda of any Executive meeting any
matter which he/she wishes, whether or not authority has been
delegated to the Executive, a committee of it or any member or officer
in respect of that matter. The Chief Executive will comply with the
Leader’s request in this respect.

Subject to the agreement of the Leader, any member of the Executive
may ask the Chief Executive to make sure that an item is placed on the
agenda of the next available meeting of the Executive for
consideration. The proper officer will comply with any such request.

Any member of the Council may ask the Leader to put an item on the
agenda of an Executive meeting for consideration and, if the Leader
agrees, the item will be considered at the next available meeting. The
notice of the meeting will give the name of the member who asked for
the item to be considered.

Page 146 PART 4 SECTION B



15.

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

17.

171

18.2

18.3

Application of Council Procedural Rules

The following Council Procedural Rules apply to meetings of the
Executive with any references to ‘the Council and Mayor’ being
substituted by ‘the Executive and Leader or person presiding at the
meeting’.

(@) Cancellation of a Meeting - Rule 6

(b)  Duration of Meetings - Rule 9

(c)  Voting - Rule 16

(d)  Minutes - Rule 17

(e) Record of Attendance - Rule 18

(f) Members' conduct - Rules 20.5, 20.6 and 20.7
(g)  Disturbance by the Public - Rule 21

Questions by Members

A Member of the Council may ask the Leader, or a member of the
Executive, a question on any matter which relates to an Executive
function.

The question will be put and answered without debate. An answer
given may be given orally; by reference to published material of the
Council or that which is readily available to the members; or in writing.

The period for questions by Members will not last more than 15
minutes.

Conflicts of Interest

Where the Leader has a conflict of interest this should be dealt with as
set out in the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members in Part 5 of the
Council’s Constitution.

If every member of the Executive has a conflict of interest this should
be dealt with as set out in the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members
in Part 5 of the Council’s Constitution.

If the exercise of an executive function has been delegated to a
committee of the Executive, a Portfolio Holder or an officer, and a
conflict of interest arises, then the function will be exercised in the first
instance by the Executive and otherwise as set out in the Council’s
Code of Conduct for Members in Part 5.

Page 147 PART 4 SECTION B



This page is intentionally left blank



1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

5.1

PART 4 - PROCEDURAL RULES
SECTION C
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE PROCEDURE RULES

Number and Size of Committees

The Council will appoint overview and scrutiny committees (known scrutiny
committees) as set out in Article 6 and will appoint Members to each. The
committees may appoint such sub-committees and commissions/working
groups as they consider appropriate.

Who May Sit on Scrutiny Committees

Only members, who are not members of the Executive, may be appointed to
one or more scrutiny committee by the Council in accordance with the political
proportionality requirements of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.
However, no member may scrutinise a decision which she/he has voted on.

Meetings

There shall be up to 6 ordinary meetings of each scrutiny committee in each
municipal year. In addition, extraordinary meetings may be called from time
to time, when appropriate. A scrutiny committee meeting may be called by
the Chairman of the relevant committee, by any five councillors or by the
Chief Executive, as Proper Officer, if he/she considers it necessary or
appropriate.

With the exception of members of the Executive, who will only attend scrutiny
meetings at the invitation of the Chairman, any councillor may attend
meetings of any scrutiny committee of which he/she is not a member.

A councillor shall not be entitled to attend meetings of working groups unless
appointed as a member or substitute or with the agreement of the Chairman.

Quorum

The quorum for scrutiny committee meetings is one third of the membership,
rounded up.

Chairing Scrutiny Committees

The Council will appoint chairmen and vice-chairmen to committees at its
annual meeting. In the event that neither the Chairman nor Vice-Chairman
can attend a scrutiny committee meeting or are excluded due to a declaration
of interest, the committee will elect a chairman for that meeting or item as
appropriate.

Page 149 PART 4 - SECTION C



5.2  Where a single party is acting as the administration, a member of the
opposition shall normally chair the Performance & Finance Scrutiny
Committee.

5.3 At any meeting of a scrutiny committee, a councillor may propose that “the
meeting has no confidence in the chairman”. The question will, after debate,
be put and, if carried by a majority of at least two thirds of thecommittee’s
substantive membership’, the chairman will stand down and the remainder of
the meeting will be chaired by the vice-chairman or, in his or her absence (or
if he or she was the chairman subject to the vote) by a councillor elected for
that purpose by the meeting.

5.4  The first item on the agenda for the next meeting will be the election of a new
chairman for the remainder of the municipal year.

6. Work Programme

6.1 The scrutiny committees will be responsible setting their own work
programmes, subject to any directions by the Council and/or inclusion of
matters referred by the Leader/Executive/Portfolio Holders. This will normally
be drawn up for consideration at the last meeting of the previous municipal
year.

6.2  Any work programme agreed may be amended from time to time, as
necessary.

7. Agenda Items

7.1 Any member of a scrutiny committee or sub-committee shall be entitled to
give notice to the Chairman and Chief Executive (Proper Officer) that he/she
wishes an item relevant to the functions of the committee to be included on
the agenda for the next available meeting of the committee. The Committee
will consider at the next appropriate meeting and take a decision as to
whether further resources should be allocated to it.

7.2  As soon as their work programme permits, the committees will respond to
requests from the Council and the Leader, Portfolio Holder or the Executive to
review particular areas of Council activity and will consider motions referred to
them by Council.

8. Order of Business

8.1  The normal order of business at scrutiny committee meetings will be as
follows:

(@)  Apologies for absence;

" Note 1: this does not include substitute members of the committee except when acting as a
substitute in accordance with the Substitute Procedure Rules at Part 4 of this Constitution.

Page 150 PART 4 - SECTION C



9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

(b) Minutes of the previous meeting;
(c) Declarations of interest;

(d) Receive, debate and respond to any petitions presented in accordance
with the Petition Scheme at Part 4 of this Constitution;

(e) Consideration of any matter referred to the committee for consideration
in relation to the call-in of a decision;

(f) Responses of the Leader, Portfolio Holder or the Executive to any
reports and recommendations from the committee;

(@)  The business otherwise set out on the agenda for the meeting; and
(h)  Possible issues for future meetings.
Policy Review and Development

Scrutiny Committees have the right to be involved in and where appropriate
consulted on policy development, policy review, budget setting, service
scrutiny, best value reviews and reactive reviews.

In relation to the development of the Council’s approach to other matters not
forming part of its policy and budget framework, scrutiny committees may
make proposals to the Leader, Portfolio Holder or the Executive for
developments insofar as they relate to matters within their terms of reference.

Scrutiny committees may hold inquiries and investigate the available options
for developing policies and may appoint advisers and assessors to assist
them in this process. They may commission research and do all other things
that they reasonably consider necessary to inform their deliberations. They
may also ask witnesses to attend to address them on any matters under
consideration and may pay to any advisers, assessors and witnesses a
reasonable fee and expenses for doing so, within provided budget limitations
and existing resources. The Scrutiny Committee Lead Officers will advise on
resource/budgetary implications.

Conduct of Reviews
Before starting a review or enquiry, a scrutiny committee will:

(a) Define the issue/area it wishes to look at and the committee’s purpose
in undertaking the review;

(b) Indicate the type of background information and any performance or
other data the committee requires;

(c) Indicate the individuals the committee would like to interview as part of
their review (e.g. the Leader, members of the Executive, officers,
representatives from other organisations, local residents and outside
experts, etc)

Page 151 PART 4 - SECTION C



10.2

10.3

10.4

11.

11.1

11.2

12.

121

12.2

12.3

(d)  Set arealistic timescale, including meeting dates if there are to be
additional meetings to those in the calendar of meetings; and

(e) Decide whether the review is to be undertaken by the committee itself
or a working group reporting to that committee.

When a scrutiny committee plans a review or investigation, it will ensure that
the matter is not currently being investigated by the Leader, Portfolio Holder,
the Executive or officer working groups and will ensure that adequate
resources are available to achieve the work required within the timescales set.

The terms of reference for any review to be undertaken by a scrutiny
committee will be agreed by the Chairman of the committee with the
committee support officers and sent to all members of the committee for
consideration. The chairman and committee will then manage the review with
the assistance of the committee support officers.

Where a scrutiny committee conducts a review or scrutinises a matter which
also falls (whether in whole or part) within the remit of another scrutiny
committee, the Committee Chairman will agree which Committee will consider
the matter.

Reports from Scrutiny Committees

Once it has formed recommendations on proposals for development, a
scrutiny committee will prepare a formal report and submit it to the Leader,
Portfolio Holder or the Executive (if the proposals are consistent with the
existing budgetary and policy framework), or to the Council (if the
recommendation would require a departure from or a change to the agreed
budget and policy framework) as appropriate, having regard to the Council’s
available resources.

When the Council meets to consider any referral from a scrutiny committee on
a matter which would impact on the budget and policy framework, it shall also
consider the response of the Leader, Portfolio Holder or the Executive to the
proposals.

Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder Matters

The External Partnerships Select Committee has been designated the
Council's crime and disorder committee. When convened to consider such
matters the provisions of paragraphs 12.2 to 12.6 below apply.

The Committee shall meet to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other
action taken, in connection with the discharge by the responsible authorities of
their crime and disorder functions as the committee considers appropriate but
no less than once in every twelve month period.

Where the Committee makes a request in writing for information from the

responsible authorities or the co-operating persons or bodies the information
must be provided no later than the date indicated in the request. If some or all

Page 152 PART 4 - SECTION C



12.4

12.5

12.6

13.

13.1

14.

141

of the information cannot reasonably be provided on such date then that
information must be provided as soon as is reasonably possible.

The information provided should be depersonalised unless the identification of
an individual is necessary or appropriate in order to enable the Committee to
exercise its powers properly. This information should not include anything
which is likely to prejudice legal proceedings or current or future operations of
the responsible authorities, whether acting together or individually, or of the
co-operating persons or bodies.

The Committee may require the attendance before it of an officer or employee
of a responsible authority or of a co-operating person or body in order to
participate in the meeting and to answer questions. Reasonable notice must
be given of the intended date of attendance.

A report or recommendations from the Committee to a responsible authority
or to a co-operating person or body requires a written response from that
body within a period of 28 days from the date of the report or
recommendations, or, if this is not reasonably possible, as soon as practicable
thereafter.

Rights of Scrutiny Committee Members to Documents

To enable scrutiny committees to undertake their duties, each Committee will
have timely access to;

(a) all reports, supporting papers and background material, including
exempt information, considered by the Leader, Portfolio Holder or the
Executive as soon as practicable after a decision has been made,
including any information about options rejected;

(b)  such information and reports as the scrutiny committee may request
the Chief Executive or Strategic Director or Head of Service to provide
or prepare subject to the right of the Monitoring Officer to refer the
need for such work to the Council for agreement; and

(c) Members of the Scrutiny Committees shall respect the confidentiality of
confidential and exempt information and will only disclose it to those
with access rights to that information.

Members and Officers - Attendance at Scrutiny Committee Meetings
Giving Account

A scrutiny committee may scrutinise and review decisions made or actions
taken, within its remit, in connection with the discharge of any executive
functions. As well as reviewing documentation, in fulfilling the scrutiny role, it
may invite the Leader, members of the Executive or other Committee
Chairman and require the Chief Executive and/or any senior officer to attend
before it to explain in relation to matters within their remit:

Page 153 PART 4 - SECTION C



(@)  any particular decision or series of decisions;
(b)  the extent to which the actions taken implement Council policy; and/or
(c) their performance.

14.2 Where any councillor is invited or officer is required to attend a scrutiny
committee under this provision, the chairman of that scrutiny committee will
inform the Chief Executive (Proper Officer). The Chief Executive shall inform
the member(s) or officers in writing, giving at least 5 working days notice of
the meeting at which they are required to attend. The notice will state the
nature of the item on which they are required to attend to give account and
whether any papers are required to be produced for the committee. Where
the account to be given to the committee will require the production of a
report, then the member or officer concerned will be given sufficient notice to
allow for the preparation of the documentation.

14.3 Where, in exceptional circumstances, the councillor or officer is unable to
attend on the required date, then the scrutiny committee shall arrange an
alternative date for attendance, in consultation with the councillor or officer,
within a reasonable period.

15. Call-In Protocol and Procedure

15.1 A Call-in protocol is attached at Annex A which details the legal position, what
can be called in and by whom and the procedures to be followed both prior, at
and subsequent to the scrutiny committee meeting.

16. Councillor Call for Action Protocol

16.1 Scrutiny Committees will consider any matter referred to them in accordance
with the Councillor Call for Action provisions of Section 119 of the Local
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, Sections 19 and 20
of the Police and Justice Act 2006 and the Protocol attached as Annex B.

17. Conflicts of Interest

17.1  Where the Chairman has a conflict of interest this should be dealt with as set
out in the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members in Part 5 of the Council’s
Constitution.

17.2 If every member of the Committee has a conflict of interest this should be

dealt with as set out in the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members in Part 5
of the Council’'s Constitution.

Page 154 PART 4 - SECTION C



ANNEX A ANNEX A

Call - In Protocol

What Can Be Called In?

1.

The Council is responsible for the adoption of its budget and policy
framework. Once a budget or a policy framework is in place, it will be the
responsibility of the Leader to implement it.

All decisions of the Leader, individual Portfolio Holders, the Executive or a
committee of the Executive and all key decisions taken by officers under
delegated authority can be called-in. All such decisions will be published in
accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules in Part 4. Decisions of the
Council or regulatory committees cannot be called in.

A key decision is explained in the Constitution at Article 13 - Decision Making,
but in simple terms, it will be a decisions which will carry a cost or saving to
the Council in excess of £100,000, or will impact on residents of 2 or more
wards, or is made in the course of developing proposals to the Council to
amend the policy framework.

Submitting a Call-In

4.

A Schedule of Key Decisions, including a timetable for the decisions to be
considered by the Leader, Portfolio Holder, the Executive or Council, will be
published.

A summary of decisions made by the Leader, individual Portfolio Holder or the
Executive will be issued by the Monitoring Officer, normally by 5.00 p.m. the
following working day. This summary will indicate the decisions taken and
whether or not the decisions were deemed to be urgent (see paragraph 15).

A request for scrutiny of a decision made by the Leader, individual Portfolio
Holder or the Executive by a scrutiny committee must be made in writing, by
fax or by e-mail.

The request must identify the decision and state the reason(s) for requesting
the review and must be submitted by 5pm on the fifth working day following
issue of the Summary.

A call-in will be triggered if two or more councillors ask for the same decision
to be scrutinised formally.

Where only one Councillor asks for a decision to be scrutinised, whilst this
does not constitute a valid call-in under this Constitution, the matter will be
placed on the agenda for the next programmed meeting of the appropriate
Committee for discussion only. The implementation of the decision will not be
affected.

Page 155 PART 4 - SECTION C



ANNEX A ANNEX A

Acceptance of a Call-In

10.

11.

On receipt of a call-in request, the Monitoring Officer will decide, after
consultation with the appropriate scrutiny committee Chairman, whether or not
the call-in is valid. Such a request may be refused if it is:

e a decision which has been the subject of a call-in submitted within the
previous six months

e unsubstantiated - not being accompanied by a substantial reason for
consideration;

e vexatious, frivolous or defamatory;

e more appropriately dealt with by the Council’s complaints procedures; or

seeking only to delay the decision, rather than to examine its merits.

In the event that a call-in is rejected, the Monitoring Officer will submit a report
to the appropriate scrutiny committee providing the reasons for the rejection.

Urgency

12.

13.

Where a decision made by the Leader, individual Portfolio Holder, the
Executive or a committee of the Executive, or a key decision taken by an
officer, is considered by the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Executive to be
urgent, it can take effect immediately the summary of the decision is
published. If the decision is subsequently called — in, the Scrutiny Committee
may still review the decision although the outcome will be not affected.

The Executive agenda report will have contained an indication of whether the
Monitoring Officer and the Chief Executive consider that the decision will need
to be made immediately.

Valid Call-Ins

14.

Following the submission of a valid call-in, the Monitoring Officer will advise all
Members of the called-in decision(s), the reasons submitted and the
appropriate scrutiny committee. Unless otherwise agreed with the calling-in
Members, call-ins will normally be considered by the appropriate scrutiny
committee within four weeks of submission, either at the next scheduled
meeting or, if necessary, at a special meeting.

Committee Decision

15.

The appropriate scrutiny committee will consider the call-in. After
consideration, the scrutiny committee can:

a) agree with the decision which has been called in, in which case it will
be implemented with immediate effect;

Page 156 PART 4 - SECTION C



ANNEX A ANNEX A

b) agree with the decision but add informatives to submit to the decision
maker;

c) refer it to the decision maker for reconsideration, setting out in writing
the nature of any concerns. The decision maker will consider the
decision as soon as reasonably practicable (in the case of decisions
made by the Executive as a whole this would normally be expected to
be at its next meeting);

After re-consideration, the decision maker will either implement the
original decision or amend it as appropriate.

d) if it considers that the decision is contrary to the Budget or Policy
Framework, refer the matter to the Council;

e) refer it to the Council if it is considered that the consequences will be
significant. Where a decision is within the purview of the Leader,
individual Portfolio Holder or the Executive, the Council must refer the
decision back to the decision maker, where appropriate, with any
recommendations; or

f) under certain circumstances, scrutiny committees can require the
Leader, individual Portfolio Holder or the Executive to submit a report
to Council where it thinks a key decision has been taken which was not
included in the Forward Plan. The detailed procedure is set out in the
Access to Information Procedure Rules at Part 4.

Contributors

16.

17.

18.

19.

Calling-in Members are asked to indicate on submission of the call-in or as
soon as possible thereafter, which contributors they would wish to be invited
to attend consideration of the call-in.

The Chairman will consider, in consultation with the Vice-Chairman and
calling-in Members which contributors will be invited. Up to 4 contributors may
be called, including the Leader, appropriate Portfolio Holder, or lead officer.
The advice of the Monitoring Officer and Committee Lead Officer may also be
sought.

In considering whether proposed contributors are appropriate, the Chairman
should ensure that there will be a good balance between differing views. The
evidence which the invitee can give should be relevant and likely to assist the
Committee in its deliberations.

The Leader or Portfolio Holder within whose remit the decision lies will be
required to attend, if invited, as would relevant senior officers. Should the
Portfolio Holder be unable to attend, another Portfolio Holder (usually the
Leader) will be invited to attend on his or her behalf. The report author and
their senior manager will attend the meeting to provide any advice as
requested by the Committee.

Page 157 PART 4 - SECTION C



ANNEX A ANNEX A

Committee Procedure

20. The Committee will follow the procedure below and hear representations from
the relevant parties in the following order:

1. The lead councillor representing the decision maker, usually the Leader or
relevant Portfolio Holder, who will explain the decision made, why it was
made and the evidence taken into account. They will speak for up to 8
minutes.

2. The report author and/ or their senior manager, who will make comments
and provide further technical information relating to the decision. They will
speak for up to 5 minutes.

3. The calling-in councillors, who will present their reasons for calling-in the
decision and the action which they are seeking. They will speak for up to 8
minutes each. In the event that there are more than two councillors
calling-in the decision, the first two councillors will speak for up to 8
minutes each; any other calling-in councillors will speak for up to 3
minutes each, but only to raise new points which have not already been
covered.

4. Any contributors, as identified in the Protocol set out above. They will
speak for up to 5 minutes each.

5. Committee members, followed by non-committee members, will be invited
to ask questions of any contributing parties in the order setoutin 1 -4
above.

6. The calling-in councillors will make any concluding comments.

7. The lead councillor representing the decision will make any final
comments and will indicate if they are minded to agree with the action
sought by the calling-in councillors.

8. Committee members, followed by non-committee members, will then be
invited to debate the called-in decision and decide on a course of action in
accordance with paragraph 15.

21.  Points of clarification may be asked of any supporting officers at any relevant
point.

Page 158 PART 4 - SECTION C



ANNEX B ANNEX B

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

3.1

Councillor Call for Action Protocol
Introduction

The "Councillor Call for Action"(CCfA) was introduced by Section 119 of the
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and Sections
19 and 20 of the Police and Justice Act 2006.

A CCfA enables any member of the Council to refer to an appropriate scrutiny
committee any local government matter2 or any crime and disorder matter3
which affects their ward.

The power to refer a matter as a CCfA is available only where the matter is of
direct concern to the ward which the councillor represents. A councillor can
refer a matter even if no citizen has asked him/her to consider it, and there is
no requirement for councillors in multi-member wards to agree to refer a
matter.

Limitations

CCfA should be used only as a 'last resort' after all other methods of
resolution have been exhausted. The ward councillor bringing the CCfA must
be clear at the outset as to what he or she expects to get out of the process.

CCfA may not be able to solve a given problem although it can provide a
method for discussing problems and through discussion, trying to overcome
them.

Issues excluded from referral as a CCfA

The Overview and Scrutiny (Reference by Councillors) (Excluded Matters)
(England) Order 2008 excludes the following matters from referral as a CCfA:

(a) any matter which is vexatious, discriminatory or not reasonable* to be
included on the agenda for, or to be discussed at, a meeting of the
scrutiny committee.

(b) any issues where there is a complaints process, including individual
complaints concerning personal grievances or commercial issues.

(c) any matter relating to an individual or entity where there is already a
statutory right to a review or appeal (other than the right to complain to
the Local Government Ombudsman), for example; planning and
licensing applications and appeals, council tax/housing benefits
complaints and queries, and issues currently under dispute in a court of
law.

2 See Appendix 1 for definition of local government matter
3 See Appendix 1 for definition of crime and disorder matter
4 See Appendix 1 for definitions of vexatious, discriminatory or not reasonable

Page 159 PART 4 - SECTION C



ANNEX B ANNEX B

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

5.1

5.2

In addition to the above, a matter which is the same or substantially similar to
one which has been the subject of a CCfA within the period of twelve months
shall be regarded as an excluded matter

A CCfA submission should not be used instead of the Council’s existing Call-
In procedures.

The Monitoring Officer will advise and determine whether a CCfA is excluded
under this paragraph. If the Monitoring Officer rejects the CCfA, he/she will
inform the ward councillor(s) giving reasons for the decision.

Steps to be taken prior to making a Councillor Call for Action referral

A ward councillor referring a matter as a CCfA must have tried to resolve the
issue/problem themselves. Ward councillors should:

(a) Ensure that all relevant and potential routes to solution within the Council
have been followed, for example informal/formal discussions with officers
and/or cabinet members, questions at committees and petitions.

(b) Ensure that it is not an issue that is currently being or should be pursued
via the Council's complaints procedure or any other appropriate complaints
procedure.

(c) Ascertain whether or not any other form of local scrutiny is investigating
the issue,

(d) If a local crime and disorder matter whether the matter has been raised
through the Surrey Heath Partnership (incorporating the Crime and
Disorder Reduction Partnership).

(e) Ensure that all relevant partner organisations have been informed of the
issue and given enough time to resolve it, for example through formal
letters written on behalf of constituents, discussion at public meetings,
petitions or communication with local MPs.

Submitting a Councillor Call for Action

If after carrying out the steps in paragraph 4 above, the issue/problem is not
resolved, the ward councillor can refer the matter as a CCfA. To do this the
ward councillor should complete and submit to the Monitoring Officer a 'CCfA
Request Form' ( available from Democratic Services).

Following confirmation by the Monitoring Officer that the request is not
excluded under paragraph 3 above, the Chairman of the appropriate scrutiny
committee will be informed that the request has been received and that it will
be placed on the agenda for consideration by the Committee at its next
meeting. If a meeting of the Committee is not scheduled within 28 days of
receipt, a special meeting may be arranged following consultation with the
Chairman.

Page 160 PART 4 - SECTION C



ANNEX B ANNEX B

5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

The ward councillor(s) will also be informed that their referral has been
successful.

Decision of the Scrutiny Committee whether to take the matter further

The Committee’s discussion needs to be focused on these expected
outcomes and the expected outcomes should be clarified at the outset.

The Committee will consider the CCfA and the representations made by the
ward councillor(s). Ward councillors are expected to submit a brief covering
statement and setting out their views to present their CCfA to the Committee.

In considering the CCfA, the Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee, at the
request of the ward councillor(s), may invite the relevant portfolio holder (or
other member) Chief Executive or external organisation or any other
witnesses to discuss the issue with the Committee and answer any questions.
Reasonable notice will be given and all those invited should make every effort
to attend (or send an appropriate representative).

The Scrutiny Committee will decide whether or not to take the matter further
having regard to whether

(a) all reasonable attempts have been made to resolve the issue;

(b)  evidence has been supplied by the ward councillor to demonstrate that
the matter is not being progressed;

(c) a similar or related issue is in the current scrutiny work programme and
if so whether it would be more appropriate to link the issue to an
existing review;

(d) all relevant service areas or partner organisations have been informed
and have been given enough time to resolve the issue;

(e) theissue is being or should be pursued via the Council's corporate
complaints procedure or any other complaints process;

(f) the issue is currently being looked at by another form of local scrutiny.

Considering the CCfA
In considered the CCfA the Committee may decide to

(a) not take up the CCfA;
(b) deal with matter at the first meeting; or
(c) agree to investigate the matter further.

If the Committee decides to accept the CCfA referral, it should agree how and
when it intends to take the matter forward.

If it agrees to investigate the matter further, it should be included on the work
programme. The Committee may set up a working group if necessary. The
Committee should also decide which members, witnesses, partners and
officers should be invited to contribute to the investigation.

Page 161 PART 4 - SECTION C



ANNEX B ANNEX B

7.3  The ward councillor(s) will be informed in writing of the decision of the
Committee and any course of action proposed. If the Committee decides not
to take up the CCfA referral reasons for that decision must be provided.

8. Potential outcomes

8.1 Following consideration after CCfA investigations and the results of any
review, the Scrutiny Committee may:

(@)  make recommendations on the CCfA to the Leader, Portfolio Holder or
the Executive and/or other appropriate body or relevant partners
organisations; or

(b)  decide that no further action is necessary.

8.2 The ward councillor will be informed of the Committee’s decision.

Page 162 PART 4 - SECTION C



ANNEX B ANNEX B

APPENDIX 1
EXPLANATORY NOTES
Definition of a Local Government Matter

For the purpose of the Act a local government matter, in relation to a member of a
local authority is one which:

(a) Relates to the discharge of any function of the Council,

(b) Affects all or part of the electoral area for which the referring member is elected
or any person who lives or works in the area (i.e. it must be specific to a
particular locality); and

(c) Is not an excluded matter.

The guidance produced by the Centre for Public Scrutiny and Improvement and
Development Agency advises that, to give full effect to CCfA, the interpretation of
"local government matter" needs to be broader. This includes issues relating to the
Council's partners, in line with the area focus of Comprehensive Area Assessment
(CAA), and the fact that an authority's duties increasingly impact on other
organisations, and involve partners within and outside the Local Strategic
Partnership.

Definition of a Local Crime and Disorder Matter

A local crime and disorder matter, in relation to a member of a local authority, has
been defined to mean a matter concerning:

(@)  crime and disorder (including in particular forms of crime and disorder that
involve anti-social behaviour or other behaviour adversely affecting the local
environment); or

(b)  the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances that affects the electoral
area represented by the member, or the people who live or work in that area.

Definitions of "vexatious", "persistent”, "discriminatory" and "not reasonable"

Statutory regulations deal with matters that can be excluded from CCfA, stating that
"any matter which is vexatious, discriminatory or not reasonable to be included on
the agenda for, or to be discussed at, a meeting of the scrutiny committee is to be
excluded".

(@) Vexatious/Persistent

Deciding whether a request is vexatious is a flexible balancing exercise, taking into
account all the circumstances of the case. There is no rigid test or definition, and it
will often be easy to recognise. The key question is whether the request is likely to
cause distress, disruption or irritation, without any proper or justified cause. Issues
around persistency are implied by this definition. However, a persistent request may

Page 163 PART 4 - SECTION C



ANNEX B ANNEX B

well be entirely valid - it may relate to a systematic problem that has not been
effectively resolved.

CCfAs need to be looked at on their merits, rather than on the basis of who is
bringing them, or whether somebody thinks there is an ulterior motive for them being
brought. Where a request for a CCfA is clearly vexatious, detailed reasons for
coming to this decision will be given to the councillor concerned. There could,
however, be instances where changes to the scope of the CCfA, or its focus, could
make it more acceptable while still meeting the councillor's requirements.

(b) Discriminatory

A comprehensive definition of discrimination is provided at Sections 13 to 19 of the
Equality Act 2010.

(c) Notreasonable
It is suggested that, in the interests of transparency, authorities do not interpret "not
reasonable" as being the same as the legal word "unreasonable". It is best to

consider it as a qualifier to the word "vexatious", as a vexatious request is likely not
to be reasonable and a request that is not reasonable is likely to be vexatious.

Page 164 PART 4 - SECTION C



PART 4 - PROCEDURAL RULES

SECTION D

COMMITTEES, SUB COMMITTEES AND OTHER BODIES

PROCEDURE RULES

COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES - GENERAL

1.

4.1

Application

These Rules do not apply to the Executive except for Rules 23 to 29 relating
to Working Groups. Procedure Rules for the Executive and Scrutiny
Committees are already included in the Constitution elsewhere in Part 4.

Size of Committees

The size of Committees and other bodies will be decided by the Council at its
Annual Meeting.

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of committees and other bodies is set out in Part 3 of
the Constitution.

Who may sit on Committees
All councillors may be members of a committee except:

(a) Atleast 2 members of the Employment Committee will be members of
the Executive.

(b)  Atleast one member of the Executive will be appointed to the
Appointments Sub Committee.

(c) Atleast one member of the Executive will be appointed to a Hearing
Sub Committee

(d)  Atleast one member of the Executive will be appointed to an Appeals
Sub Committee

(e)  No more than 25% of the employer’s representatives on the Joint Staff
Consultative Group will be members of the Executive.

(f) No more than 10% (rounded up) of members appointed to the Planning
Applications Committee will be members of the Executive.

Page 165 PART 4 - SECTION D



5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

(d) No more than 10% (rounded up) of members appointed to the
Licensing Committee will be members of the Executive.

Substitute Members of Committees

Procedures for the appointment of substitute members of committees can be
found in the Substitution Procedural Rules at Part 4 of the Constitution.

Chairing Committees

The Council will appoint chairmen and vice-chairmen of all committees at its
Annual Meeting.

In the absence of the chairman and vice-chairman, the committee will appoint
a chairman for that meeting or part of that meeting, as appropriate. The
person presiding at the meeting may exercise any power or duty of the
chairman.

At any meeting of a committee, a councillor may propose that “the meeting
has no confidence in the chairman.” The question will, after debate, be put
and if carried by a majority of at least two thirds of the councillors present, the
chairman will stand down and the remainder of the meeting will be chaired by
the vice-chairman or, in his or her absence (or if he or she was the chairman
subject to the vote) by a councillor elected for that purpose by the meeting.

The first item on the agenda for the next meeting will be the election of a new
chairman for the remainder of the municipal year.

No member of the Executive will chair any meeting of the Planning
Applications Committee, the Licensing Committee or the Joint Staff
Consultative Group or be the vice-chairman of that Group. Where a single
party is acting as the administration, a member of the opposition shall
normally chair the Audit & Standards Committee.

Appointment of Sub-Committees

Committees may appoint such sub-committees as they consider appropriate.
The terms of reference of any sub-committee which can exercise statutory
powers, such as the Licensing Sub-Committee, are set out in Part 3 of the

Constitution.

Sub-committees shall appoint their chairman in such manner and for such
period as they may determine.

Membership and Quorum of Sub-Committees - General
With the exception of 8.2, 8.3 and 8.4 below, at least two-thirds of the

members appointed to any sub-committee will be members of the Council
unless decided otherwise by the Council.

Page 166 PART 4 - SECTION D



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

The membership of a Licensing Sub-Committee shall comprise 3 members of
the Licensing Committee. The quorum of a meeting of a Licensing Sub-
Committee is 3.

The membership of an Appeals Sub-Committee or Hearing Sub-Committee
shall comprise 3 members of the Employment Committee. The membership of
an Appointments Sub-Committee shall comprise 5 members of the
Employment Committee. The quorum for any meeting of a Sub-Committee of
the Employment Committee is 3.

The membership of a Standards Sub-Committee shall comprise 3 members of
the Audit & Standards Committee. The quorum of a meeting of a Standards
Sub-Committee is 3.

Substitute members of the Audit & Standards Committee and Employment
Committee may participate in their respective sub-committees in the event
that members of the Committee are unavailable or are otherwise unable to
participate due to conflicts of interest. In exceptional circumstances, including
where an item relates to a decision of the Employment Committee or the
committee’s membership is otherwise prejudiced the membership of a sub-
committee of a Hearing or Appeals Sub Committee may be drawn from the
wider membership of the Council, with priority towards member
representatives from the Joint Staff Consultative Group.

Substitute members of sub-committees will only be permitted where the
committee has appointed those substitutes. Substitute members may only
attend meetings to take the place of the ordinary member where that member
will be absent for the whole of the meeting.

Time and Place of Meetings

Meetings of committees or sub-committee will normally be held at Surrey
Heath House, in public, at the dates and times specified in the annual
timetable of meetings set by the Chief Executive.

Duration of Meetings

At all committee meetings, subject to 10.2 below, at 10.00pm no further items
of business will be conducted save for the conclusion of the item of business
under discussion and that the meeting be adjourned to another date if there
are outstanding items.

At meetings of the Planning Applications Committee, should only one further
application remain to be determined at 10.00pm, then the Committee may
consider that further application;

Committees are unable to suspend the Procedure Rule relating to the duration
of the meeting.

Page 167 PART 4 - SECTION D



11.

11.1

11.2

12.

121

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12A.

12A1

Special Meetings of Committees

The Chairman, the Mayor, or five members of a committee may call a special
meeting of a committee at any time.

The summons to a special meeting will set out the business to be considered,
and no other business will be considered at the meeting.

Who May Attend

Members of the public may attend any committee or sub-committee meeting
except where exempt or confidential information is being considered.

With the exception of an Appointments Sub Committee, a Hearing Sub
Committee, an Appeals Sub Committee, the Joint Staff Consultative Group or
the Employment Committee when considering any items on Part Il of the
agenda that in the view of the Monitoring Officer and Head of HR,
Performance & Communications, in consultation with the Chairman and Vice
Chairman of the Employment Committee, directly affect an individual’s
employment, any councillor may attend any committee or sub-committee
meeting.

In order to respect the balance of Member and Staff Representatives on the
Joint Staff Consultative Group, attendance at meetings by councillors who are
not members of the Consultative Group will only be agreed in exceptional
circumstances.

Attendance by any councillor at committee or sub-committee meetings will be
recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

With the exception of meetings of the Licensing Sub-Committee, a councillor
who attends a meeting of a committee or sub-committee may speak at the
meeting on any agenda item.

A councillor who has moved a motion at Council which has been referred to a
committee will be informed of the committee meeting at which it will be
considered so that he/she can attend.

Voting
Unless this Constitution provides otherwise, any matter will be decided by a

simple majority of those members voting and present in the room at the time
the question was put.

12A.2 If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chairman will have a

second or casting vote.

(a) If the Chairman fails to vote when the main vote is taken, an equality of
a vote cannot be achieved by the Chairman casting an original vote and

Page 168 PART 4 - SECTION D



following that action with a casting vote. The Chairman’s casting vote may
be used whether or not the Chairman has already voted.

(b) with the exception of (c) below, in the event of a tied vote, the proposer
of the matter under debate shall have the opportunity of making a further
speech of no more than 3 minutes. A further vote will then immediately be
taken. If deadlock has not been broken, the Chairman must cast a vote in
favour of the status quo. The status quo will usually be interpreted as the
motion falling.

(c) There will be no restriction on how the Chairman of the Planning
Applications Committee chooses to exercise a casting vote.

12A.3 The Chairman will take the vote by show of hands, or if there is no dissent, by
the affirmation of the meeting.

12A.4 If, before the Chairman begins to take a vote, three members present at the
meeting demand it, the names for and against the motion or amendment or
abstentions from voting will be taken down in writing and entered into the
minutes. Each member present will be called by name and asked to indicate
whether they are voting in favour of, or against the motion or amendment or
abstaining from voting.

12A.5 Where any member requests it immediately after the vote is taken, their vote
will be recorded in the minutes to show whether they voted for or against the
motion or abstained from voting.

13. Application of Council Procedure Rules

The following Council Procedure Rules apply to meetings of committees and
sub-committees with any references to ‘the Mayor’ being substituted by ‘the
Chairman’.

(@) Notice of and Summons to Meetings - Rule 5
(b)  Cancellation of a Meeting - Rule 6

(c) Previous decisions and motions - Rule 15
(d) Minutes - Rule 17

(e) Record of Attendance - Rule 18

() Members' conduct - Rules 2.5, 20.6 and 20.7
(9) Disturbance by the Public - Rule 21

Page 169 PART 4 - SECTION D



14.

141

14.2

14.3

14.4

15.

16.

16.1

16.2

17.

171

17.2

Quorum

The quorum for meetings of committees and sub-committees, except as
provided for below, is one third of the membership rounded up, subject to a
minimum of 2.

The quorum of the Licensing Sub-Committee is 3 members.

If after thirty minutes, a quorum is not present, the business will be adjourned
to a fixed date or time or to the next ordinary meeting.

If during any meeting the Chairman notes that there is not a quorum present
the meeting will be adjourned.

Business

At each meeting of a committee or sub-committee held in public, the following
business will be conducted:

(@) apologies for absence;

(b)  consideration of the minutes of the last meeting;

(c) declarations of interest, if any;

(d)  review of exempt items, if any;

(f) the business as set out in the agenda.

Putting Items on the Agenda

With the exception of meetings held for a specific statutory purpose, a
chairman may require the Chief Executive to put on the agenda for any
meeting, any matter which falls within the terms of reference of his/her
committee or sub-committee.

Subject to the agreement of the chairman, any member of a committee or
sub-committee, may ask the Chief Executive to place an item on the agenda
for the next available meeting of the committee or sub-committee.
Exclusion of Public and Confidentiality

Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in accordance
with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 and the Access to
Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution or Council Procedure Rule 22
(Disturbance by Public).

No person will disclose any matter dealt with in the absence of the public until

such time as the Council, committee or sub-committee has determined that
the matter can be released as information available to the public.

Page 170 PART 4 - SECTION D



17.3 In addition, the Chief Executive or Executive Head of Corporate may at any
time decide that any matter is no longer exempt within the meaning of
Schedule 12A and will advise members accordingly.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

18. Planning Applications Committee - Determining Planning Applications
and other related consent applications

18.1 The following Rules apply to meetings of the Planning Applications Committee
when determining planning applications or other related consent applications.

18.2 General

18.2.1  With the exception of the Chairman, Members of the Committee will
be seated alphabetically and clearly separate from any councillors in
attendance.

18.2.2 Any councillor in attendance may speak at the meeting in relation to
an item. In circumstances where members are not members of the
Planning Applications Committee, the first councillor may speak for
up to 8 minutes, with any subsequent councillors for up to 5 minutes.

18.2.3 At the start of the meeting, the Chairman will advise any members of
the public and press present of the roles of the members of the
Committee, the councillors in attendance and the officers.

18.3 Determination of Planning Applications and any other related consent
applications

18.3.1 The Head of Planning’s report and recommendation will be
introduced.

18.3.2 Public speaking to take place in accordance with the Procedure for
Public Participation at Meetings set out in Part 4 of the Constitution.

18.3.3 The Chairman will invite debate on the application in relation to the
Head of Planning’s recommendation.

18.3.4 The Chairman will invite a Member to make a proposal in relation to
the Head of Planning’s recommendation.

18.3.5 The Chairman will ask for a seconder.

18.3.6 The proposal, once seconded, will be put to the vote. If the vote is
lost, the Chairman will seek an alternative proposal.

18.3.7 Voting will be undertaken electronically or by a show of hands but
the names of those members voting in favour, those voting against

Page 171 PART 4 - SECTION D



19

18.3.8

18.4

18.4.1

18.4.2

and those abstaining will be called out by an officer so that the
names can be recorded on the audio record and in the minutes of
the meeting. Where there is a unanimous vote this procedure does
not need to be followed and the Chairman will state this for the
record.

Members may not participate in the debate or vote in connection with
any application unless they are present for the whole consideration
of that application.

Decisions Made Contrary to the Head of Planning’s
Recommendation

Where the Committee makes a decision to REFUSE an application
contrary to the officers’ recommendation, Members must give clear
reasons for that decision and identify the planning reasons for refusal
prior to the vote being taken. The exact wording of those reasons
may be delegated to the Head of Planning to determine after
consultation with the Chairman, Vice Chairman and ward councillors.

Where the Committee makes a decision to APPROVE an application
contrary to the officers’ recommendation, Members must give clear
reasons for that decision, identify the conditions to be imposed and
the reasons for the imposition of those conditions prior to the vote
being taken. The exact wording of the conditions and the reasons
for their imposition may be delegated to the Head of Planning to
determine after consultation with the Chairman, Vice Chairman and
ward councillors.

Public Participation at Planning Applications Committee

Public speaking in relation to any application being considered by the
Committee will only be permitted in accordance with the Procedure for Public
Participation at Meetings set out in Part 4 of the Constitution.

STANDARDS HEARING SUB COMMITTEE

20

Procedure at meetings of Standards Sub Committees

When a written allegation of a complaint against a member of the Borough
Council or a parish council within the Borough Council's area has been

received, the Sub Committee will follow a set procedure which is set out in the
Documents which support the Constitution.

Page 172 PART 4 - SECTION D



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES

21.

Appointment of Licensing Sub-Committees

The establishment of and appointment of members and reserve members of
Licensing Sub-Committees, which are sub-committees of the Licensing
Committee, is delegated to the Head of Legal & Democratic Services.

SUB-COMMITTEES OF THE EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE

22.1

22.2

The Appointments Sub Committee will be supported by a senior officer and a
Human Resources officer.

The Hearing Sub Committee and Appeals Sub Committee will be supported
by a Human Resources officer. Where considered appropriate, legal or other
independent advisors may also be present at the meeting. The affected
employee is entitled to be accompanied by a Trade Union representative or
another colleague, as set out in the Council’s relevant Human Resources
Policy.

WORKING GROUPS

23.

24,

241

24.2

25.

26.

Appointment, duration, constitution and terms of reference

The Council, the Executive and every committee and sub-committee may
appoint working groups and determine their duration, constitution and terms of
reference.

Membership

Membership of a working group need not necessarily be drawn from the
appointing body but will generally do so. Except for the Executive, the
membership of working groups will reflect the political balance of the Council.

Membership of a working group will generally comprise councillors. However,
if the appointing body considers it to be appropriate, officers of the Council or
persons from outside the authority may be appointed as full or co-opted
members.

Substitutes

Unless otherwise decided by the appointing body, substitutes are permitted to
serve as members of working groups at any meeting at which another
member of the same political group is absent for the entire meeting. Where
possible the same substitute will attend for the sake of continuity.

Appointment of Chairman

Working groups will appoint their chairman in such manner and for such
period as they may determine.

Page 173 PART 4 - SECTION D



27.

27.1

27.2

27.3

28.

29.

Who May Attend

The public may not attend meetings of Working Groups.

Councillors who are not appointed Members of a Working Group may attend a
meeting at the discretion of the Chairman subject to the prior approval of the
Chairman and notification to the Democratic Services Manager.

Councillors who are the appointed substitutes of a Working Group may attend
any meeting of the Working Group, whether or not the appointed Member is
present.

Application of Council Procedural Rules

The following Council Procedural Rules apply to meetings of working groups
any references to ‘the Mayor’ being substituted by ‘the Chairman’.

(@) Voting - Rule 16
(b) Record of Attendance - Rule 18

Proceedings to remain Confidential
The proceedings of meetings of Working Groups will remain as confidential

until they have been made public with the authority of the Council, the
Executive, a committee or sub-committee, as appropriate.

Page 174 PART 4 - SECTION D



1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

PART 4 - PROCEDURAL RULES

SECTION E

PUBLIC SPEAKING PROCEDURE RULES

INTRODUCTION

The Council allows members of the public to present petitions, speak at
meetings and make presentations at meetings of the Council and to speak at
Planning Applications Committee. Public speaking at meetings will only be
permitted in accordance with these Procedure Rules.

PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS AT COUNCIL MEETINGS

Except at the Annual Meeting, public speaking in relation to petitions will be
conducted at meetings of the Council in accordance with the Petitions
Scheme set out at Part 4, Section L of this Constitution.

QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC AT COUNCIL MEETINGS

Except at the Annual Meeting, a maximum of thirty minutes will be allocated to
allow members of the public, or formally constituted public groups or bodies
previously registered with the Head of Legal & Democratic Services, to ask
questions of an Executive Portfolio Holder or Chairman of any Committee
provided

(@) itis relevant to some matter over which the Council has powers or
duties or which specifically affects the Borough or part of it, or its
residents; and

(b) it does not relate to planning or licensing applications or personal,
exempt or confidential matters.

Questions will be heard in the order received. Where an individual submits
more than one question for a meeting, one question of their choice will be
prioritised and included in the order received, with any further questions heard
after any questions received from other members of the public. Any questions
that have not been heard once the thirty minutes have passed will receive a
written response from the relevant Member.

Questions must be limited to 125 words. Any words exceeding this limit will
not be published or considered as part of the question.

Questions that contain criticism directed at a named officer will be rejected by

the Head of Legal & Democratic Services. In such cases, the questioner will
be given an opportunity to submit a revised question.

Page 175 PART 4 - SECTION E



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Questions and written responses will be published by 2pm on the day of the
meeting.

The questioner will be permitted to ask a short supplementary question
provided it is relevant to the original question and does not introduce a new
subject matter. The Member to whom the question is directed may choose
whether to answer the question orally at that time or defer for a written
response within seven days.

Questions and responses will not be matters for debate.

Any person or body wishing to ask a question must submit the question in
writing to the Head of Legal & Democratic Services at least three clear
working days before the Council meeting (i.e. if the meeting is on a
Wednesday, the question must be received by 5 pm on the preceding
Thursday).

If the Head of Legal & Democratic Services decides that the proposed
question does not meet the criteria in 3.1(a) and (b) above he/she will reject it
and advise the questioner accordingly.

The Head of Legal & Democratic Services, in consultation with the Monitoring
Officer, has discretion to reject or defer a question received for a Council
meeting in the pre-election period.

PRESENTATIONS AT COUNCIL MEETINGS

The Chief Executive, after consultation with the Mayor and Leader of the
Council, may invite recognised public bodies or groups, or individuals, to
make a presentation at a Council meeting, in relation to matters of major
policy or where there is substantial interest by the public.

Matters to be the subject of the presentation must not relate to planning or
licensing applications, personal, exempt or confidential matters.

The Chief Executive will issue the invitation to make a presentation to a body,
group or individual not less than 14 days before the date of the Council
meeting concerned.

The body, group or individual must notify the Chief Executive, in writing, at
least 5 clear working days before the Council meeting of its/his/her intention to
accept the invitation (i.e. if the meeting is on a Wednesday notice must be
received by 5 pm on the preceding Tuesday). A copy of any material which
it/he/she intends to produce at the meeting must also be received by the Chief
Executive by the same deadline.

Presenters will be allowed a maximum of 15 minutes.

Page 176 PART 4 - SECTION E



4.6

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.

Following the presentation Members will be permitted to ask questions of the
presenter.

DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS BY FULL COUNCIL

The Council has reserved to itself the power, in exceptional circumstances, to
determine large-scale planning applications relating to land owned by the
Council, or elsewhere if the proposed development is likely to have a very
significant impact on the community, as determined by the Head of Planning,
after consultation with the Leader of the Council and Chairman of the
Planning Applications Committee.

When determining these large-scale planning applications, with the exception
detailed in 5.3 below, the rules for public participation at meetings of the
Council will be those which apply at meetings of the Planning Applications
Committee as set out below.

The number of speakers both in objection to and in support of the application
will be determined by the Head of Legal & Democratic Services after
consultation with the Leader of the Council.

PUBLIC SPEAKING AT PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

Criteria to Trigger the Public Speaking Procedure

6.1

6.2

6.3

Public speaking at Planning Applications Committee meetings will be
permitted in respect of a planning application and any other related consent
applications to be determined by the Committee, where

(a) there have been 10 or more written representations from separate
households, or a petition signed by more than 50 signatories with addresses,
in respect of an application for development within an urban area or village
settlement, as defined by the Development Plan or

(b) there have been 5 or more written representations from separate
households, or a petition signed by more than 25 signatories with addresses,
in respect of an application for development outside an urban area or village
settlement, as defined by the Development Plan.

In order to be counted in relation to the public speaking procedure, the
representations or petitions must have been received no later than 10 working
days before the date of the Committee meeting.

Where an application triggers the public speaking procedure, all those who
have submitted written representations in compliance with paragraphs 6.2
above, will be notified and invited to register to speak at the Committee
meeting.

Allocation of speaking

Page 177 PART 4 - SECTION E



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

A maximum of four persons will be permitted to speak on each application as
follows:

(@) 2 persons speaking in objection to the application;
(b) 2 persons speaking in support of the application.

The applicant or their agent will be offered one slot to speak in support of the
application.

A Residents’ Association, Business Association or Amenity Society,
previously registered under this scheme, which has submitted a
representation in respect of the application and registered to speak at the
committee, will be entitled to one of the speaking slots. Should there be more
than one organisation registering to speak, the slot will be allocated on a first
come, first served basis.

An individual can only speak once on any application.

Only those persons from addresses within the vicinity of the site will be
eligible to speak at the meeting. The vicinity will vary according to the nature
of the proposed development and its potential impact on the community. The
Head of Planning will determine the circumstances in which this will apply.

Subject to the above, the spaces will be allocated on a first come, first served
basis. All applications to speak must have been registered no later than 3 and
a half clear working days prior to the meeting (i.e. noon on Tuesday preceding
the meeting if the meeting is on a Monday.)

An individual or organisation wishing to speak can only register for a speaking
slot which corresponds with the nature of the representation they have
submitted, namely in objection or support.

The registered speaker may appoint another person to speak on their behalf
or elect to share their time with other speakers.

In the event that the application of the above Procedure Rules do not apply or
would result in unfairness, the Head of Legal & Democratic Services, after
consultation with the Chairman of the Planning Applications Committee, be
authorised to exercise discretion in agreeing the allocation of the public
speaking slots in relation to any particular planning application

Speaking at the Meeting

6.13

6.14

A maximum of four minutes will be allocated to each speaker.

If a speaker has elected to share their allocated time with another speaker the
time allocation will run continuously.

Page 178 PART 4 - SECTION E



6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

Public speaking will precede the Committee’s debate on the application.
Members of the public speaking in opposition to an application will speak
before those speaking in support of an application.

The speakers will be required to confine their presentations to relevant
material planning issues.

No material, including plans, photos, letters, or statements can be handed to
the Committee members at, or just before, the committee meeting. Any such
material may be submitted directly to Committee members and copied to the
relevant planning officer.

Members may only ask the speakers questions for the purposes of

clarification. The speakers will not be allowed to ask questions of Members or
officers.

Page 179 PART 4 - SECTION E



This page is intentionally left blank



3.1

PART 4 - PROCEDURAL RULES

SECTION F

ACCESS TO INFORMATION PROCEDURE RULES

Scope

These rules apply to all meetings of the Council, overview and scrutiny
committees, area committees (if any), the Audit & Standards
Committee, the Employment Committee and regulatory committees
and meetings of the Executive (together called meetings).

Additional rights to information

These rules do not affect any more specific rights to information
contained elsewhere in this Constitution or the law.

Rights to Attend Meetings

Members of the public may attend all meetings subject only to the
exceptions in these rules.

Notices of meeting

The Council will give at least five clear working days' notice of any
meeting by publishing a notice on the Council’'s website and by posting
details of the meeting at Surrey Heath House, Knoll Road, Camberley
(the designated office) and on the Council’s Website.

Access to agenda and reports before the meeting

The Council will make copies of the agenda and reports open to the
public available for inspection on the Council’'s Website and at the
designated office at least five clear working days before the meeting. If
an item is added to the agenda later, or where reports are prepared
after the summons has been sent out, the revised agenda, and/or late
report will be open to inspection from the time the item was added to
the agenda or as soon as the report is completed.

Supply of copies

The Council will supply copies of:

(@) any agenda and reports which are open to public inspection;

(b)  any further statements or particulars necessary to indicate the
nature of the items in the agenda; and

(c) if the Chief Executive thinks fit, copies of any other documents
supplied to councillors in connection with an item

Page 181 PART 4 — SECTION F



7.1

8.1

8.2

to any person on payment of a charge for postage, copying and any
other necessary costs.

Access to minutes etc after the meeting

The Council will make available copies of the following for six years
after a meeting:

(@) the minutes of the meeting or records of decisions taken,
together with reasons, for all meetings, excluding any part of the
minutes of proceedings when the meeting was not open to the
public or which disclose exempt or confidential information;

(b)  asummary of any proceedings taken in the exempt part of the
meeting where the open minutes would not provide a reasonably
fair and coherent record;

(c) the agenda for the meeting; and

(d) agenda reports relating to items when the meeting was open to
the public.

Background papers
List of background papers

The officer in whose name the report appears will set out in every
report a list of those documents (called background papers) relating to
the subject matter of the report which in his/her opinion:

(@) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important
part of the report is based; and

(b)  which have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the
report but does not include published works or those which
disclose exempt or confidential information (as defined in Rule
10).

Public inspection of background papers

The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after
the date of the meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list
of background papers.

Summary of public's rights

A written summary of the public’s rights to attend meetings and to
inspect and copy documents must be kept at and available to the public
at Surrey Heath House, Knoll Road, Camberley (The Council Offices).
(As the Constitution must be available to the public these Rules
constitute the written summary.)

Page 182 PART 4 — SECTION F



10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

11.

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

14.

14.1

Exclusion of access by the public to meetings
Confidential information requirement to exclude public

The public must be excluded, by resolution, from meetings whenever it
is likely in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the
nature of the proceedings that confidential information would be
disclosed.

Exempt information discretion to exclude public

The public may be excluded, by resolution, from meetings whenever it
is likely in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the
nature of the proceedings that exempt information would be disclosed.
Meaning of confidential information

Confidential information means information given to the Council by a
Government Department on terms which forbid its public disclosure or
information which cannot be publicly disclosed by Court Order.

Meaning of exempt information

Exempt information means information falling within the 10 categories
(subject to any qualification) defined in Appendix | to these Rules.

Exclusion of access by the public to reports

If the Chief Executive thinks fit, the Council may exclude access by the
public to reports which in his or her opinion relate to items during
which, in accordance with Rule 10, the meeting is likely not to be open
to the public. Such reports will be marked "Not for publication" together
with the category of information likely to be disclosed.

Application of Rules to the Executive

In addition to Rules 1 to 11, Rules 13 to 19 also apply to the Executive.
Rights to Attend Meetings

Further to Rule 3, any member of the public, may in any publicly
available medium, reproduce, or provide commentary in relation to, any
document supplied to that person or made available for inspection by
members of the public.

Background papers

Further to Rule 8, the Council will, at least 5 clear days before the
meeting, publish on the Council’s Website the background papers

listed in agenda reports and make available copies at the Council
Offices for public inspection.

Page 183 PART 4 — SECTION F



15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

16.

Procedure before Holding Private Meetings of the Executive

The Council will give at least 28 clear days’ notice of any private
meeting of the Executive by publishing a notice on the Council’s
website and by posting the notice at the Council Offices. The Notice
will include a statement of the reasons for the meeting to be held in
private.

At least five clear days before a private meeting the Executive must
make available at the Council Offices and on the Council’'s website a
further notice of its intention to hold a meeting in private. This notice
will include:-

(@) a statement of the reasons for the meeting to be held in private;

(b)  details of any representations received by the Executive about
why the meeting should be open to the public; and

(c) a statement of its response to any such representations.

Where the date by which a private meeting must be held makes
compliance with this rule impracticable, the meeting may only be held
in private where the Executive has obtained agreement, that the
meeting is urgent and cannot be reasonably deferred, from:-

(@)  the Chairman of the relevant Scrutiny Committee; or

(b) if there is no such person, or if the Chairman of the relevant
Scrutiny Committee is unable to act, the Mayor, or in his/her
absence the Deputy Mayor.

As soon as reasonably practicable after the Executive has obtained
agreement under rule 13.3 to hold a private meeting it must make
available at the Council Offices and on its website a notice setting out
the reasons why the meeting is urgent and cannot be reasonably be
deferred.

Procedure Before Taking Key Decisions

Subject to Rule 18 (general exception) and Rule 19 (special urgency),
a key decision (as defined in Article 13.3 of the Constitution) may not
be taken unless:

(@) anotice has been published in connection with the matter in
question;

(b)  atleast 28 clear working days have elapsed since the
publication of the notice; and

(c)  where the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Executive
or its committees or by the Leader or individual Portfolio
Holders, notice of the meeting has been given in accordance
with Rule 4 (notice of meetings).

Page 184 PART 4 — SECTION F



17.

17.1

17.2

18.

The Schedule of Key Decisions
Publication of the Schedule of Key Decisions

The Schedule of Key Decisions will be published at least 28 clear days
prior to each meeting of the Executive.

Contents of the Schedule of Key Decisions

The Schedule of Key Decisions will contain matters which there is
reason to believe will be subject of a key decision to be taken during
the period covered by the Schedule. Other significant decisions to be
taken by full Council will be included for information in the Schedule.
The Schedule will describe the following particulars where the
information is available or might reasonably be obtained:

(@) the matter in respect of which a decision is to be made;

(b)  where the decision taker is a body, its name and details of
membership and where the decision taker is an individual,
his/her name and title;

(c) the date on which, or the period within which, the decision will
be taken;

(d) alist of the documents submitted to the decision maker for
consideration in relation to the matter in respect of which the key
decision is to be made;

(e) the address from which, subject to any prohibition or restriction
on their disclosure, copies of, or extracts from, any document
listed is available:

(f) that other documents relevant to those matters may be
submitted to the decision maker and

(g)  the procedure for requesting details of those documents (if any)
as they become available.

General exception

Where notice of a matter which is likely to be a key decision, has not
been published at least 28 clear days prior to the date on which the
decision is to be made, then subject to Rule 19 (special urgency), the
decision may still be taken if:

(@) the decision must be taken by such a date that it is impracticable
to defer the decision in order to give the requisite notice;

(b)  the Chief Executive has informed the chairman, or if he is not
available, the vice-chairman, of the relevant scrutiny committee
or if there are no such persons, each member of that committee

Page 185 PART 4 — SECTION F



19.

19.1

19.2

20.

20.1

in writing, by notice, of the matter to which the decision is to be
made;

(c) the Chief Executive has made copies of that notice available to
the public at the Council Offices and published on the Council’s
Website; and

(d) atleast 5 clear working days have elapsed since the Chief
Executive complied with (b) and (c).

Special Urgency

If by virtue of the date by which a decision must be taken Rule 16
(general exception) cannot be followed, then the decision can only be
taken if the decision taker (if an individual) or the chairman of the body
making the decision, obtains the agreement of the chairman, or if he is
not available, the vice-chairman, of the relevant scrutiny committee that
the taking of the decision cannot be reasonably deferred. If there is no
chairman or vice-chairman of the relevant scrutiny committee, or if the
chairman or vice-chairman of the relevant scrutiny committee is unable
to act, then the agreement of the Mayor or in his /her absence the
Deputy Mayor will suffice.

As soon as reasonably practical after the decision maker has obtained
agreement under Rule 19.1 that the making of the decision is urgent
and cannot reasonably be deferred, the decision maker must make
available a notice setting on the reasons that the meeting is urgent and
cannot reasonably be deferred at the office of the Council and on the
Council’s website.

Report to Council
When a scrutiny committee can require a report

If a scrutiny committee thinks that a key decision has been taken which
was not included in the Schedule of Key Decisions and was not

(@)  the subject of the general exception procedure (Rule 18); or

(b)  the subject of an agreement with a relevant scrutiny committee
chairman, vice-chairman or the Mayor or Deputy Mayor (Rule
17);

the committee may require the Leader/Executive to submit a report to
the Council within such reasonable time as the committee specifies.
The power to require a report rests with the committee, but is also
delegated to the Monitoring Officer, who shall require such a report on
behalf of the committee when so requested by the chairman or any 5
Members of the relevant scrutiny committee. Alternatively the
requirement may be raised by resolution passed at a meeting of the
relevant scrutiny committee.

Page 186 PART 4 — SECTION F



20.2

20.3

21.

211

21.2

Leader’s/Executive’s report to Council

The Leader/Executive will prepare a report for submission to the next
available meeting of the Council. However, if the next meeting of the
Council is within 7 days of receipt of the written notice, or the resolution
of the committee, then the report may be submitted to the meeting after
that. The report to Council will set out particulars of the decision, the
individual or body making the decision, and if the Leader is of the
opinion that it was not a key decision the reasons for that opinion.

Reports on special urgency decisions

In any event the Leader will submit a report to the Council, at least on
an annual basis, on the Executive decisions taken in the circumstances
set out in Rule 17 (special urgency). The report will include the number
of decisions so taken and a summary of the matters in respect of which
those decisions were taken.

Record of decisions

After any meeting of the Executive or any of its committees or following
decisions made by the Leader or individual Portfolio Holder, the Chief
Executive will produce a record of every decision taken as soon as
practicable. The record will include:

(@) record of the decision including the date it was made;
(b)  arecord for the reasons for the decision;

(c) details of any alternative options considered and rejected at the
Executive meeting at which the decision was made;

(d) arecord of any conflict of interest relating to the matter decided
which is declared by any member of the Executive which made
the decision; and

(e) inrespect of any declared conflict of interest, a note of
dispensation granted by the Council’s Head of Paid Service.

As soon as practicable after an individual member/officer has made an
executive decision, that member/officer must produce a record of that
executive decision which includes:

(@)  record of the decision including the date it was made;
(b)  arecord for the reasons for the decision;

(c) details of any alternative options considered and rejected by the
member/officer when making the decision;

(d) arecord of any conflict of interest declared by any member of
the Executive who is consulted by the member/officer which
relates to the decision; and

Page 187 PART 4 — SECTION F



22,

221

22.2

22.3

23.

23.1

23.2

23.3

23.4

(e) inrespect of any declared conflict of interest, a note of
dispensation granted by the Council’s Head of Paid Service.

Scrutiny committees access to documents

Rights to copies

Subject to Rule 23.2 below, a scrutiny committee will be entitled to
copies of any document which is in the possession or control of the
Leader/Executive and which contains material relating to

(@) any business transacted at a meeting of the Executive; or

(b) any decision taken by an individual member of the Executive; or
(c) any executive decision taken by an officer of the authority.

The Executive must provide a document that falls under Rule 20.1 as
soon as reasonably practicable and in any case no later than 10 clear
days after the Executive receives the request.

Limit on rights

A scrutiny committee will not be entitled to any document that is in draft
form.

Additional rights of access for members
Material relating to business

All members will be entitled to inspect any document which is in the
possession or under the control of the Leader/Executive and contains
material relating to any business transacted at a meeting or decision
made by an individual member of the Executive. Any document will be
available in accordance with Rule 5.1.

Material relating to key decisions

All members of the Council will be entitled to inspect any document
(except those available only in draft form) in the possession or under
the control of the Leader/Executive which relates to any key decision.
Material in which a Member has an interest

A Member shall not knowingly inspect and shall not call for a copy of
any document relating to a matter in which he/she has a professional
interest or in which he/she has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.

Nature of rights

These rights of a member are additional to any other right he/she may
have.

Page 188 PART 4 — SECTION F



24. Offences

24.1 A person who has custody of a document that relates to an executive
decision (agenda, reports, background papers or decisions) which is
required to be available for inspection by members of the public
commits an offence if, without reasonable excuse, that person:-

(a) intentionally obstructs any person exercising a right conferred
under these rules to inspect, or to make a copy of the whole or
part of the document; or

(b) refuses to supply a copy of the whole or part of the document in
accordance with these rules.

24.2 A person who commits an offence under Rule 23.3 is liable on

summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 1 on the standard
scale.

Page 189 PART 4 — SECTION F



APPENDIX |

EXEMPT INFORMATION

Categories of Exempt Information (see also Qualifications below)

1.

2.

Information relating to any individual.
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person (including the authority holding that information).

Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or
contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any
labour relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the
Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority.

Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege
could be maintained in legal proceedings.

Information which reveals that the authority proposes:-

(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person; or

(b)  to make an order or direction under any enactment.

Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection
with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

(a) Information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality.

(b) Information which relates in any way to matters concerning
national security.

(c) Information presented to a standards committee, or to a sub-
committee of a standards committee, set up to consider any
matter under regulations 13 or 16 to 20 of the Standards
Committee (England) Regulations 2008, or referred under
section 58(1) (c) of the Local Government Act 2000.

Qualifications

1.

Information falling within Category 3 above is not exempt information
by virtue of that paragraph if it is required to be registered under:-

(@) the Companies Act 1985;

(b)  the Friendly Societies Act 1974,

(c)  the Friendly Societies Act 1992;

(d)  the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978;
(e)  the Building Societies Act 1986; or

Page 190 PART 4 — SECTION F



(f) the Charities Act 1993.

Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed
development for which the local planning authority may grant itself
planning permission pursuant to Regulation 3 of the Town and Country
Planning General Regulations 1992.

Information which:-

(@) falls within any of Categories 1 to 7 above; and

(b)  is not prevented from being exempt by virtue of Qualifications 1
or 2 above, is exempt information if and so long, as in all the
circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the

exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information.

Page 191 PART 4 — SECTION F



This page is intentionally left blank



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

PART 4 - PROCEDURAL RULES

SECTION G

BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK RULES

THE FRAMEWORK FOR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

The Council is responsible for the adoption of its budget and policy framework
as set out in Article 4 of the Constitution. Once a budget or a policy
framework is in place, it is the responsibility of the Leader to implement it.

PROCESS FOR DEVELOPING THE FRAMEWORK

The process by which the budget and policy framework shall be developed is
as follows:

The Leader will include in the Forward Plan a timetable for making proposals
to the Council for the adoption of any plan, strategy or budget that forms part
of the budget and policy framework or any amendment to it. This will include
its arrangements for consultation on those proposals.

The Forward Plan will be published on the Council’s Web Site and updated at
the beginning of each month. The consultation period allowed shall in each
instance be not less than 4 weeks.

At the end of the consultation period, the Leader/Executive will draw up firm
proposals having regard to the responses to that consultation. If a scrutiny
committee wishes to respond to the Leader/Executive in that consultation
process, then it may do so. As the scrutiny committees have responsibility
for determining their own work programmes, it is open to each committee to
investigate, research or report in detail with policy recommendations before
the end of the consultation period.

The Leader/Executive will take any response from a scrutiny committee into
account in drawing up firm proposals for submission to the Council. In
considering the matter, the Council shall have before it the Leader/Executive's
proposals and any report from any relevant overview and scrutiny committee.

The Leader/Executive may at any time formally request a scrutiny committee
to consider and make recommendations to the Leader/Executive on any
proposals relating to the budget or policy framework which the
Leader/Executive is considering or intends to consider.

Once the Leader/Executive has approved the firm proposals, these proposals

will be referred to the Council for decision at the earliest opportunity. In
reaching a decision the Council may adopt the Leader’s/Executive's

Page 193 PART 4 - SECTION G



2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

212

2.13

proposals, amend them, refer them back to the Leader/Executive for further
consideration or, in principle, substitute its own proposals in their place.

If it accepts the recommendation of the Leader/Executive without amendment,
the Council may make a decision which has immediate effect, unless the
Council specifies otherwise. Otherwise it may only make an in-principle
decision. In either case, the decision will be made on the basis of a simple
majority of votes cast at the meeting.

The decision will be publicised in accordance with the Council's Procedure
Rules on Access to Information and a copy shall be given to the Leader. The
notice of decision shall be dated and shall state either that the decision shall
be effective immediately (if the Council accepts the Leader’s/Executive's
proposal without amendment) or (if the Leader’s/Executive's proposals are not
accepted without amendment) that the Council's decision will be come
effective on the expiry of 5 working days after publication of the notice of
decision, unless in that period the Leader objects to it and informs the Chief
Executive, in writing, of that objection and the reasons for the objection.

Where such notification of objection is received under Rule 2.9 above, the
Chief Executive, after consultation with the Mayor, will call a meeting of the
Council to be held within a period of 28 days from the date the objection has
been lodged and the decision shall not be effective pending that meeting. At
that Council meeting, the decision of the Council shall be reconsidered in the
light of the objection, which shall be available in writing for the Council.

The Council, at the meeting required under 2.9 above, may either approve the
Leader’s/Executive's proposals by a simple majority of votes cast at the
meeting or approve a different decision that does not reflect the
recommendations of the Leader/Executive by a simple majority.

The final decision taken will be publicised in accordance with the Council's
Procedure Rules on Access to Information and will be implemented
immediately unless the Council specifies otherwise.

In approving its budget each year, the Council may specify, in addition to such
matters dealt with in the Financial Regulations (in Part 4 section H of the
Constitution), the extent to which the Leader/Executive can agree virements
within that budget and incur supplementary expenditure.

The Council shall also determine the degree to which in-year changes can be
agreed by the Leader/Executive to the policy framework in accordance with
paragraphs 5 and 6 of these Rules (virement and in-year adjustments). Any
changes to the budget or policy framework outside the parameters set by the
Council shall be submitted to the full Council for approval unless Rule 3 below
applies (ie decisions outside policy and budget framework).

DECISIONS OUTSIDE THE BUDGET OR POLICY FRAMEWORK

Page 194 PART 4 - SECTION G



3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

Subject to the provisions of paragraph 5 (virement) and 6 (in-year changes)
the Leader/Executive, individual Portfolio Holders, officers or joint
arrangements discharging executive functions may only take decisions which
are in line with the budget and policy framework. If any of these bodies or
persons wishes to make a decision which is contrary to the policy framework,
or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the budget approved by full
Council, then that decision may only be taken by the Council, subject to Rule
4 below.

If the Leader/Executive, individual Portfolio Holders, officers or joint
arrangements discharging executive functions want to make such a decision,
they shall take advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or the Section 151
Officer as to whether the decision they want to make would be contrary to the
policy framework, or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the budget.

If the advice of either of those officers is that the decision would not be in line
with the existing budget and/or policy framework, then the decision must be
referred by that body or person to the Council for decision, unless the decision
is a matter of urgency, in which case the provisions in Rule 4 (urgent
decisions outside the budget and policy framework) shall apply.

URGENT DECISIONS OUTSIDE THE BUDGET OR POLICY FRAMEWORK

The Leader/Executive, individual Portfolio Holders, officers or joint
arrangements discharging executive functions may take a decision which is
contrary to the Council's policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in
accordance with the budget approved by full Council if the decision is a matter
of urgency. If the decision is an urgent key decision, as well as a decision
outside policy or budget, the relevant procedures (set out elsewhere in Part 4)
must also be followed.

Such a decision may only be taken:

(i) if it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of the full Council;
and

(i) if the chairman, or in his/her absence, the vice chairman of a relevant
scrutiny committee agrees that the decision is a matter of urgency, and
that agreement is given in writing .

The reasons why it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of full
Council and the consent of the chairman or vice chairman of the relevant
scrutiny committee to the decision being taken as a matter of urgency must be
noted on the record of the decision. In the event of a matter affecting more
than one scrutiny committee, the Chief Executive or the Monitoring Officer
shall determine which chairman or vice chairman shall be consulted. Where
the chairman or vice chairman of a scrutiny committee is not available for any
reason, the Mayor, or in his/her absence, the Deputy Mayor shall be
consulted.

Page 195 PART 4 - SECTION G



4.4

4.5

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

7.1

7.2

Before a decision is taken, the Leader/Executive or decision-taker shall carry
out, so far as it is reasonable, consultations with ward members where it
affects a particular ward or wards and inform Group Leaders of the decision
required. A record of the consultations must be given to the Monitoring
Officer.

Following the decision, the decision taker will provide a full report to the next
available full Council meeting explaining the decision, the reasons for it and
why the decision was treated as a matter of urgency.

VIREMENT

The Council sets virement limits within which decision-makers can exercise
discretion in approving or otherwise financial transfers within the budget. The
detail relating to virement is contained in the Council's Financial Regulations
in Part 4 of the Constitution.

Steps taken by the Leader/Executive, individual Portfolio Holders, officers or
joint arrangements discharging executive functions to implement Council
policy shall not exceed those budgets allocated to each budget head. Beyond
that limit, approval to any virement across budget heads shall require the
approval of the full Council.

The Leader/Executive is authorised to incur supplementary expenditure in any
year, up to a limit of £250,000, which does not have an adverse revenue
impact, subject to there being no cash-limited budgetary restraint being in
place.

IN-YEAR CHANGES TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

The responsibility for agreeing the budget and policy framework lies with the
Council, and decisions by the Leader/Executive, individual Portfolio Holders,
officers or joint arrangements discharging executive functions must be in line
with this Framework. No changes to any policy and strategy which make up
the policy framework may be made by those bodies or individuals unless
those changes are necessary to ensure compliance with the law, ministerial
direction or government guidance.

CALL-IN OF DECISIONS OUTSIDE THE BUDGET OR POLICY
FRAMEWORK

Where a scrutiny committee is of the opinion that a decision of the
Leader/Executive is, or if made would be, contrary to the policy framework, or
contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the Council's budget, then it shall
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or Section 151 Officer.

In respect of functions which are the responsibility of the Leader/Executive,

the Monitoring Officer's report and/or Section 151 Officer's report shall be to
the Leader/Executive with a copy to every member of the Council.

Page 196 PART 4 - SECTION G



7.3

7.4

7.5

Regardless of whether the decision is delegated or not, the Leader/Executive
must decide what action to take in respect of the Monitoring Officer's report
and to prepare a report to full Council in the event that the Monitoring Officer
or the Section 151 Officer conclude that the decision was a departure, and to
the scrutiny committee if the Monitoring Officer or the Section 151 Officer
conclude that the decision was not a departure.

If the decision has yet to be made, or has been made but not yet
implemented, and the advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or the Section
151 Officer is that the decision is or would be contrary to the policy framework
or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the budget, the scrutiny
committee may refer the matter to full Council. In such cases, no further
action will be taken in respect of the decision or its implementation until the
Council has met and considered the matter.

The Council shall meet within 28 days of the request by the scrutiny
committee. At the meeting it will receive a report of the decision or proposals
and the advice of the Monitoring Officer and/or the Section 151 Officer. The
Council may take one of the following actions:

(1) endorse a decision or proposal of the executive decision taker as
falling within the existing budget and policy framework. In this case no
further action is required, save that the decision of the Council be
minuted and circulated to all councillors in the normal way;

or

(i) amend the Council's Financial Regulations or policy concerned to
encompass the decision or proposal of the body or individual
responsible for that executive function and agree to the decision with
immediate effect. In this case, no further action is required save that
the decision of the full Council be minuted and circulated to all
councillors in the normal way;

or

(i)  where the full Council accepts that the decision or proposal is contrary
to the policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with
the budget, and does not amend the existing framework to
accommodate it, require the Leader/Executive to reconsider the matter
in accordance with the advice of either the Monitoring Officer or the
Section 151 Officer.

Page 197 PART 4 - SECTION G



This page is intentionally left blank



PART 4 - PROCEDURAL RULES

SECTION F
FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

JULY 2021

1.

1.1

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.1.3

1.1.4

1.1.5

Scope and Context of Financial Regulations
Scope

Financial Regulations are the basic rules applicable to key areas of financial
administration. They must be available to and followed by all officers,
members and agents acting for the Council. Together with the Procedure
Rules, they regulate the conduct of Council business. The Financial
Regulations, including advice, guidance and accounting instruction notes
issued to underpin the Financial Regulations, apply to all services of the
Council.

Financial Regulations form part of the Council’s Constitution which is
published on the Council’s Website.

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for maintaining the Council’s Financial
Regulations, and they must be reviewed at least every 5 years. Financial
limits detailed in Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders must be
reviewed at least every 2 years. The Strategic Director of Finance and
Customer Services will, from time to time, issue advice, guidance and
accounting instruction notes to underpin the Financial Regulations, ensure
compliance with specific statutory provisions, and reinforce best professional
practice. Members, officers, and others acting on behalf of the Council are
required to comply with such advice and guidance.

All staff within the Council are responsible for ensuring that Financial
Regulations are followed where the regulations are relevant to the officer’s
work. All staff should uphold the main principles of the Regulations and
ensure that their actions help to demonstrate that the Council is achieving
value for money. It is the responsibility of the Chief Executive and the
Corporate Management Team to ensure that the Financial Regulations are
complied with. Failure to follow Financial Regulations and Contract Standing
Orders must be reported immediately to the Section 151 Officer and could be
treated as a disciplinary offence. If serious, the breach may also be reported
to the Leader and/or the Executive.

Strategic Directors and Heads of Service will ensure that their staff are aware
of the existence, and content, of the Council’s Financial Regulations,
accounting instruction notes and other corporate guidance, and ensure
compliance with them.

Page 199



1.1.6

1.1.7

1.2

1.2.1

1.3

1.3.1

21

211

21.2

Financial Regulations also apply to agents and consultants acting for the
Council and to services carried out under agency arrangement, unless
specifically exempted by the relevant Strategic Director or Head of Service
with the agreement of the Section 151 Officer. In these cases, the
circumstances of and reasons for such an exception must be recorded by the
relevant Strategic Director or Head of Service.

Any transfer of work from one service to another must consider issues of
compliance and accountability. Early clarification and agreement within the
Corporate Management Team will help to reduce the risk of any problems
escalating or remaining unresolved.

Financial Responsibilities

The roles and responsibilities of members and officers are set out within the
Council’s Constitution. The purpose of the Financial Regulations is to provide
an overview of the respective financial roles and responsibilities of members
and officers within the Council. Specific financial responsibilities are set out in
more detail throughout the subsequent sections of the Regulations. Detail of
the financial responsibilities of the Council, the Cabinet, various committees,
the Chief Executive, the Section 151 Officer, the Monitoring Officer and other
Strategic Directors Strategic Directors and Heads of Service is provided in the
Council Constitution.

Scheme of Delegation for Financial Management

The Scheme of Delegation for Financial Management is set out in Section 6 of
the Constitution. This defines how the financial responsibilities set out within
these Financial Regulations are reserved or delegated to officers.

Financial Planning
Policy Framework

The Council’s Constitution sets out the roles and responsibilities for members
and officers in managing and controlling the Council’s Finances. The Strategic
Director of Finance and Customer Services has authority to amend these
Financial Regulations, following consultation, if necessary for effective
supervision and control, or to ensure full compatibility with the Council’s
Constitution.

Revenue budget and capital programme:

Every year a capital programme and estimate of revenue income and
expenditure must be submitted to Full Council, after consideration by the
Executive. The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services is
responsible for collating these estimates and reports on them to the Full
Council, with any comments and recommendations from the Corporate
Management Team (CMT).

Page 200



213

214

21.5

21.6

217

Treasury Management Strategy:

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will propose
prudential indicators and a policy for the revenue provision for the repayment
of debt (referred to as the ‘Minimum Revenue Provision’) annually to the
Council in advance of the start of the financial year that is consistent with the
Council’s revenue budget and capital programme proposals. This strategy will
comply with CIPFA’s Codes of Practice on Treasury Management and the
Prudential Framework for Capital Finance, relevant regulations and with the
Council’'s own Treasury Management Policy Statement and Treasury
Management Practices. It will set the parameters within which investment and
borrowing activity will be managed during the next financial year.

Medium Term Resources Strategy (MTRS):

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will also carry out
periodic reviews of the Council’s Medium Term Resources Strategy (MTRS).
The MTRS brings together key assumptions about financing resources
(including Council Tax, NNDR and Government grants) as well as spending
pressures over the medium to longer term. This enables the Council to plan
for financial risks and thus inform the setting of service financial targets for the
annual revenue budget and capital payments guidelines. The setting of
financial targets within the available resource envelope is completed with
reference to the priorities set within the Corporate Plan.

Income and Charging Policy

Strategic Directors and Heads of Service must comply with the Council’s
income and charging policy for the supply of goods or services and, in
consultation with the Executive Head of Financial Services, review fees and
charges annually, as part of the corporate planning process. An annual
statement on fees and charges will be published on the Council’s website in
alignment with the budget setting timetable.

Pay Policy Statement

The pay policy statement will be prepared as required by regulations and
approved by Council. It will set out the Council’s policy on the level and
elements of remuneration for each Chief Officer, the remuneration of other
paid employees, and the relationship between the remuneration of its Chief
Executive and other officers. It is also required to address other specific
aspects of pay remuneration such as remuneration on recruitment, increases
and additions to remuneration, use of performance related pay and bonuses,
termination payments and transparency.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will ensure that
reports are presented to Council, as part of the annual budget setting process.
The Leader/Executive will consider the aggregate effect of these programmes
and estimates on the Council’s financial resources. After consulting on
proposed amendments and deciding on the supporting resources to be used,

Page 201



21.8

2.2

2.2.1

222

223

224

2.3

the Leader/Executive will submit them to the Council for approval,
recommending the transfer from the Collection Fund for the following financial
year.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services must report to the
Leader/Executive on the level of financial resources recommended for use
each financial year and keep the Leader/Executive informed of the Council’s
finances and financial performance.

Budgetary Control - Revenue Budget

The Council operates within an annual cash limit, approved when the annual
budget is set. To ensure that the Council does not over-spend in total, each
service is required to manage its own expenditure and income recovery within
the cash limited budget allocated to it. Budget management also ensures that
once the Council has approved the budget, the resources are used for their
intended purposes and are properly accounted for.

Estimates of income and expenditure on revenue accounts must be prepared
in the required form by senior managers in consultation with the Strategic
Director of Finance and Customer Services.

The Leader/Executive must receive and approve annual revenue estimates
from the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services in accordance
with any set timetable and guidance. These must be prepared by Strategic
Directors or Heads of Service, collated, and reviewed by the Strategic Director
of Finance and Customer Services and should show for both income and
expenditure:

¢ The actual result for the last completed year;

¢ The original estimate for the current financial year;

¢ The probable result (including any supplementary estimates) for the current
financial year;

¢ Estimated income and expenditure for the next financial year at current pay
and price levels; and

¢ An explanation of any major variations.

Where the Council has approved and adopted a cash limited budget any
additional expenditure must be met by increased income or from savings
within approved budgets. The inclusion of items in approved revenue
estimates or capital programmes is evidence of approval to spend on them.
Once proposed savings have been approved by the Leader/Executive, the
Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will amend the budget
accordingly.

Budget Monitoring - Revenue Budget

Page 202



2.3.1

23.2

233

234

2.3.5

2.3.6

For the provision of services under their control, Strategic Directors or Heads
of Service may undertake expenditure of any type within approved budgets
including the signing of contracts or agreements, provided the Council’s
Contracts Procedure Rules are followed and the advice of the legal and
procurement is taken on all contracts of £50,000 and over in value, and any
with unusual or potentially onerous clauses (see Contracts Procedure Rules
Section I). Procurement should be notified to relevant officers and members
by email where necessary. Strategic Directors and Heads of Service may
undertake the day to day running and operation of services, including the
control, purchase and disposal of stores and maintenance and repair of all
buildings, land, and equipment within the remit of their service area, provided
they have the budget, in accordance with the policies laid down by the Council
or the Leader/Executive in these Financial Regulations and supporting
Council Procedure Rules.

Once the budget is approved by the Council, Strategic Directors and Heads of
Service are authorised to incur expenditure in accordance with the estimates
that make up the budget. Strategic Directors and Heads of Service must
however maintain effective budgetary control within their service(s) to ensure
that spending is contained within the annual cash limit.

Strategic Directors and Heads of Service must not commit expenditure that
would result in an approved budget being exceeded. Prior approval must be
sought from the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services to
increase the budget either by virement or by a supplementary estimate before
additional commitments are made.

Strategic Directors and Heads of Service will:

¢ Ensure that all income and expenditure is properly recorded and accounted
for;

e Ensure that an appropriate budget holder structure is in place to ensure that
responsibility is assigned for each item of income and expenditure under their
control;

¢ Ensure that individual budgets are not overspent;

¢ Ensure that a budget monitoring process is in place; and

¢ Regularly report to Management.

Such reports will be prepared, in consultation with the Strategic Director of
Finance and Customer Services, upon the service’s projected ‘controllable net
expenditure’ compared with its budget.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will ensure that
each budget holder receives or has access to timely information on income
and expenditure for each budget, which is sufficiently detailed to enable them
and their managers to fulfil their budgetary responsibilities.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will monitor

performance against the Council’s budget on an on-going basis and will
advise upon the Council’s overall financial position. Specifically, the Strategic

Page 203



24

241

2.5

2.5.1

252

Director of Finance and Customer Services will prepare reports to present to
Executive on a quarterly basis. These financial overview reports will:

¢ Provide a comparison of the Council’s projected income and expenditure
and the latest approved budget;

¢ Include an assessment of the Council’s treasury investments; and seek
approval to changes to the approved budget (including virements).

Overspending and Supplementary Estimates

When an expenditure budget might be overspent or income budget not met,
the Strategic Director or the Head of Service must consult the Strategic
Director of Finance and Customer Services and then give advance notice to
the Leader/Executive, explaining both the reasons for and the means of
financing any variation. Any overspending or income shortfall must be covered
within annual estimates, or by a supplementary estimate. The Budget
Manager must prepare a Supplementary Estimate bid for consideration by
CMT and approval by the Leader/Executive. It should be noted that
Supplementary Estimates are only granted in exceptional circumstances and
may require Full Council approval.

Scheme of Virement

Strategic Directors and Heads of Service must ensure that spending remains
within the service’s overall cash limit, and that spending does not exceed
individual policy budget headings. It is however permissible, in certain
circumstances, to switch resources between approved budget headings,
subject to obtaining the necessary approval. The switching of resources
between approved policy budget headings is referred to as a virement.

Virements may be approved in accordance with the delegated authorities set
out below, subject to the following:

e All corporate priorities, service, performance, and budget targets must be
maintained,;

e All corporate guidelines and policies must be followed;

¢ Conditions of service and the approved establishment must be complied
with;

¢ A single “one-off” budget must not be transferred to fund a new ongoing item
of expenditure;

¢ Budgets not under effective control of the budget holder must not be vired
e.g., rates or insurance; and

¢ Virement cannot be used to change a service base budget for future years.

Value of Virement Delegation Evidence Required

Up to £1,000 Not permitted — to be Not permitted

managed within budget

£1,000 to £9,999 Budget holder and Written authorisation

Strategic Director of from Strategic Director

Page 204




Finance and Customer of Finance and
Services Customer Services

£10,000 and over Budget holder, Strategic | Written authorisation

Director of Finance and | from Strategic Director
Customer Services and | of Finance and

Chief Executive Customer Services and
Chief Executive (usually
by way of a minute from
the Corporate
Management Team)

253

2.6

2.6.1

26.2

26.3

If the proposed transfer affects budget heads controlled by another Strategic
Director or Head of Service the transfer must be authorised by both affected
members of the Corporate Management Team.

Treatment of Year-end balances - Carry Forwards

In certain circumstances, it is permissible to carry unspent budget forward for
use in the following year.

Provision for carry forward of unspent capital budget items is made under
capital programme arrangements, whereby spend may be projected over
several years. This is subject to approval by Full Council.

In the first quarter of a new financial year Strategic Directors or Heads of
Service may apply to carry forward part of a revenue budget not spent, or of
income not collected from one financial year to the next (minimum value
£1000). A brief description of the relevant circumstances and explanation of
the need for carry forward must be prepared by the Strategic Director or the
Head of Service and authorised by the Chief Executive. All such requests will
be aggregated and considered collectively on one occasion annually. The
approval process for aggregate value of carry forward requests is set out
below:

Up to £1,000 Not permitted

£1,000 - £25,000 Chief Executive (normally by way of

a minute from Corporate
Management Team)

£25,000 and over Executive

2.7

271

Capital Programme

The Strategic Directors and Heads of Service must prepare capital bids in
accordance with the timetable prepared by the Strategic Director of Finance
and Customer Services. These will then be considered by the Corporate
Management Team for review and submission to Executive and Full Council
for approval. Each bid must include the following details:

e Name of scheme;

Page 205




2.7.2

273

274

2.7.5

¢ Project officer responsible for delivering the scheme on time, to budget and
in accordance with the specification;

. Timescale and any limiting factors/constraints;

¢ Robust estimated total cost of project including appropriate levels of
contingency;

e The apportionment of estimated costs between financial years (where the
scheme will not be delivered within the financial year in which it is authorised);
¢ Estimated annual revenue costs on project completion (e.g., additional
staffing, goods, services, and maintenance); and

¢ Estimated revenue savings or additional income as a result of the capital
investment.

Any proposed capital project not previously included in the approved Capital
Programme must be the subject of a separate Executive report for
recommendation to Full Council, in consultation with the Strategic Director of
Finance and Customer Services.

The report must detail:

Project officer responsible for delivering the scheme on time, to budget and in
accordance with the specification;

Reasons why the scheme was not included in the annual Capital Programme
approved by Full Council in February preceding the start of the financial year;
Timescale and any limiting factors/constraints;

Financial costs and benefits analysed over all relevant elements;

Any return on investment;

Estimated annual revenue costs on project completion (e.g., additional
staffing, goods, services, and maintenance); and

Estimated revenue savings or additional income as a result of the capital
investment.

Once Full Council approves a Capital Programme, the nominated Project
Officer must arrange for the land and resources needed to be acquired. The
Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services must report to the
Leader/Executive on how the Capital Programme will be funded, for onward
recommendation to Full Council in the February preceding the start of the
financial year.

The Project Officer must ensure that estimates for capital schemes must be
robust and appropriate levels of benchmarking are undertaken to properly
assess market prices. Estimates should be regularly reviewed to ensure that
anticipated project costs are consistent with estimates included in the Capital
Programme. Subject to section 2.7.5 below, if the Project Officer considers
that the relevant estimate in the Capital Programme may be inaccurate due to
any change in market prices or the need for additional works or services, the
Project Officer must seek approval for additional funding without delay.

Any proposal to increase the provision for a project within an approved Capital

Programme by the lesser of 5% of that provision or £10,000, must be
submitted to the Leader/Executive, with reasons for the proposed change and

Page 206



276

2.17.7

2.7.8

2.8

2.8.1

28.2

2.8.3

284

the financial effects for both capital and ongoing revenue. Any proposal for
deletion of a scheme from the Programme must be submitted to the Leader/
Executive.

Expenditure is classified as capital expenditure when:

e It results in the acquisition, construction, or the addition of subsequent costs
to non-current (i.e., fixed) assets that will be held by the Council for use in the
production or delivery of services, for rental to others or for administrative
purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial
year,

e It is defined by Regulation as capital (e.g., where expenditure that would
ordinarily be treated as capital relates to an asset that the Council has no
future direct control over or is unlikely to receive any benefit from);

e it is classified by Government Direction as capital.

However, expenditure on assets meeting the capitalisation criteria outlined
above may nevertheless be charged to revenue rather than capital, if they are
below the de-minimis limit of £10,000, as set out in the Council’s annual
Statement of Accounting Policies.

Where expenditure meets the capitalisation criteria set out above, and is
excess of the Council’s de-minimis limits, it will be classified as capital
expenditure, even if provision exists within the Revenue Budget to fund the
work. Similarly, where specific financing (e.g., government grant) is provided
to facilitate a project, this will not determine the accounting treatment of the
expenditure. That is, the accounting treatment is determined according to the
type of expenditure, and not by the funding source.

Maintenance of Reserves and Balances

Reserves are maintained as a matter of prudence. A general reserve (i.e., the
General Fund Balance) is maintained as a contingency fund and earmarked
reserves are held for specific earmarked policy purposes.

For each reserve established, the purpose, usage (including the timeframe for
usage) and basis of transactions will be clearly articulated in an annual report
to the Audit & Standards Committee. Authorisation to finance expenditure
from reserves will require the approval of the Strategic Director of Finance and
Customer Services unless alternative arrangements were agreed when the
reserve was established.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will advise upon
prudent levels of reserves and balances for the Council, considering the
degree of risk in the budget for the Council over the medium and longer term,
in the financial reports submitted to Full Council in the February in advance of
the financial year.

Under section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 the Strategic
Director of Finance and Customer Services must report to Council if there is

Page 207



3.1

3.1.1

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.24

or is likely to be unlawful expenditure or an unbalanced budget. This would
include situations where reserves have become seriously depleted and it is
forecast that the Council will not have the resources to meet its expenditure in
a particular financial year.

Accounting Records and Financial Systems
Accounting Records

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services determines the
accounts, accounting procedures and financial records of the Council and its
officers and must approve and advise on records and procedures in services,
and any changes to them.

The principle of segregation of duties must be followed. If this is not possible
for operational reasons, then other methods of control approved by Internal
Audit must be in place.

Prime financial records must not be altered without such alteration being
clearly auditable. Where alterations are made to records passing between
services, the officer making the alteration must notify the originating officer of
all changes made.

Annual Statement of Accounts

The Council has a statutory responsibility to prepare its accounts to present a
true and fair view of the financial performance and results of its activities
during the year and is responsible for approving and publishing those annual
statements in accordance with the timetable specified in the Accounts and
Audit Regulations as amended from time to time.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services is responsible for
selecting suitable accounting policies, and for applying them consistently, to
ensure that the Council’s annual statement of accounts is prepared in
compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom and other relevant accounting standards and statutory
provisions.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will issue
accounting instruction notes on closure of the accounts, including a timetable,
annually. All budget holders must comply with these accounting instructions
and supply the information requested by the dates specified.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services must sign and date
the Statement of Accounts, thereby confirming that the accounts give a ‘true
and fair’ view of the financial position of the Council at the accounting date
and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March. The Strategic
Director of Finance and Customer Services is responsible for making proper
arrangements for the audit of the Council’s accounts.

Page 208



3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.4
3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

Financial Systems

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services has responsibility
for ensuring that the Council’s financial systems are sound, properly
maintained and are held securely.

Strategic Directors and Heads of Service must ensure that prior approval is
obtained from the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services to
operate any financial system within or on behalf of their area of responsibility.

Risk Management

It is the overall responsibility of the Performance and Finance Committee to
review the Council’'s Risk Management Policy and Strategy and the Corporate
Risk Register.

The Corporate Risk Management Group is responsible for preparing the
Council’'s Risk Management Policy and Strategy, and for promoting it
throughout the Council where appropriate, and to review and update the risk
register

Strategic Directors or Heads of Service must have regard to the advice of the
Risk Management Group and adhere to the Council’s Risk Management
Policy and Strategy.

Insurance

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services must arrange all
insurance cover and negotiate all claims in consultation with other officers, as
necessary. The Council must review its level of risk cover at least annually.

Strategic Directors and Heads of Service must keep the Strategic Director of
Finance and Customer Services informed of:

All new or emerging risks;

Additional properties or vehicles that need to be insured;

Any alterations to service delivery affecting existing insurances; and
Any special risks regarding contracts.

They must review all insurances in consultation with the Strategic Director of
Finance and Customer Services as and when necessary, consulting the
Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services on the terms of any
indemnity that the Council is asked to provide.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services must maintain
appropriate records detailing all insurances arranged for the Council and keep
Strategic Directors or Heads of Service informed, as necessary. Strategic
Directors or Heads of Service must keep records of all plant, vehicles,
furniture, and equipment under their control, to be available for inspection by
the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services.

Page 209



3.54

3.5.5

3.5.6

3.5.7

3.5.8

3.6

3.6.1

3.6.2

3.6.3

3.6.4

In the event of any potential loss, liability, damage, or other event likely to lead
to a claim, Strategic Directors or Heads of Service must promptly notify and
provide a written report to the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer
Services. Officers must never verbally admit liability, take any action or record
in any way an admission of liability on behalf of the Council.

All employees of and voluntary workers for the Council must be included in a
suitable fidelity guarantee policy.

Unless qualifying as a small claim (under £200), an insurance claim should be
made where possible and no payments made to third parties in lieu of or
advance for damage to third party property. Strategic Directors or Heads of
Services are responsible for ensuring that claims are completed in the manner
prescribed by the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services has authority to
make ex-gratia payments of up to £200 for any single claim.

Strategic Directors or Heads of Services must obtain details of insurance
cover arranged by organisations that own or lease buildings on Council held
land at least annually.

Preventing Fraud and Corruption

The Council has an Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy and maintains a culture
that will not tolerate fraud or corruption. It is the responsibility of the Head of
Human Resources to maintain the Council’s Anti-fraud and Corruption
Policy.

In accordance with the Council’s Speaking UpPolicy, all suspected
irregularities must be reported in the first instance to line management or
failing this to any Executive Head or Head of Service, the Monitoring Officer,
the Council’s external auditors, or the Internal Audit Manager. The Head of
Human Resources is responsible for the maintenance and operation of the
Speaking Up Policy.

To avoid giving rise to suspicion about the honesty and integrity of the Council
or its employees, or giving the impression of corruption or improper behaviour,
all interests of a personal and/or financial nature with external bodies or
persons who have dealings with the Council, or any other interests which
could conflict with an officer’s duties, must be declared in accordance with the
Code of Conduct for Officers.

Officers must be cautious regarding offers of gifts and hospitality as
acceptance can give the impression of improper behaviour or favour. The
Council’s Code of Conduct for Officers explains how offers of gifts and
hospitality are to be dealt with, including what can or cannot be accepted and
what must be declared. The Chief Executive must ensure that a gifts and
hospitality register is established and maintained.

Page 210



3.6.5

3.6.6

3.6.7

3.6.8

3.6.9

4.1

411

All Council officers and elected members are required to complete a
declaration of interest form annually. This must be returned to the Council
Monitoring Officer and the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer
Services within required timescales.

Officers should be aware of and have regard to risks of money laundering.
Money laundering is the process that turns money obtained illegally or through
criminal activity into funds that appear lawful and can therefore be spent as if
they were from legal sources. Examples of money laundering offences include
tax evasion, theft, fraud, bribery, corruption, smuggling, modern slavery,
human trafficking, drug trafficking and illegal arms sales.

The definition of money laundering is broad. Money laundering is a process
whereby criminals:

. Retain, disguise, and conceal the proceeds of their crimes; or
o Raise, consolidate, or retain funds for use in financing terrorism.

In UK law money laundering is defined in the Proceeds of Crime Act
(2002) and includes all forms of handling or possessing criminal property,
including possessing the proceeds of one's own crime, and facilitating any
handling or possession of criminal property.

Criminal property (defined in POCA) constitutes or represents a person's
benefit from criminal conduct where the alleged offender knows or suspects
that the property in question represents such a benefit. Criminal property may
take any form, including money or money's worth, securities, tangible
property, and intangible property.

Any suspected attempts to use the Council to launder money must be
reported to the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services who is
also the Council’'s Money Laundering Reporting Officer.

To mitigate the risks of the Council being used to launder money cash
payments in excess of £5,000 will not be accepted except with the prior
approval of the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services.

In accordance with the Council’s Bribery Policy and Procedure, the detection,
prevention and reporting of bribery and other forms of corruption are the
responsibility of all those working for the Council or under its control.

Audit Requirements

External Audit

The basic duties of the external auditor are defined in the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014. ‘Local audit’ relates to the audit procedure which
must be followed by all local authorities, fire authorities, Police and Crime

Commissioners, Clinical Commissioning Groups, and various related bodies
in England. The procedures require the auditor to review and report upon:

Page 211



41.2

41.3

41.4

41.5

4.2

4.2.1

422

e The Council’'s Accounts;

e  Whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing
financial resilience and

e  Whether the Council has proper arrangements for securing value for
money (i.e., through economy, efficiency, and effectiveness).

The primary role of external audit is to report on the Council’s financial
statements and to carry out such examination of the statements and
underlying records and control systems as are necessary to reach their
opinion on the statements and to report on the appropriate use of funds. Their
duties will be in accordance with advice set out by the Public Sector Audit
Appointments (PSAA) organisation.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services, in conjunction with
the external audit lead officer advises on the development of the annual audit
plan, leads on any negotiations related to the annual audit fee and advises the
Executive and Members on their responsibilities in relation to external audit
and issues arising from the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter (the ISA160
report).

Strategic Directors and Heads of Service are required to ensure that external
auditors are given access at all reasonable times to premises, personnel,
documents, and assets, and provided with information and explanations which
the external auditors consider necessary for the purposes of their work, in the
timescales required.

Strategic Directors and Heads of Service are also required to consider and
respond promptly to recommendations in audit reports, ensure that agreed
actions arising from audit recommendations are carried out in a timely and
efficient fashion and in line with the timescale agreed with the external auditor,
and report on progress.

Internal Audit

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services is responsible for providing an
adequate and effective internal audit of all Council activities. The duties and
functions of Internal Audit are regulated in the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards, and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

Internal Audit is governed by terms of reference and the Audit Charter agreed
by Members. Internal Audit will review and report on all the activities and
operations of the Council as a service to management. The purpose of these
reviews is to:

e Promote economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in the use of Council
resources and thereby secure value for money;

e Ensure systems are in use to protect the Council against fraud and other
irregularites;

¢ Ensure that records are kept, and that information produced is reliable,
necessary, and appropriate;

Page 212



423

424

4.3

4.3.1

4.3.2

5.1

5.1.1

¢ Appraise and report on compliance with established policies, plans and
procedures;

¢ Produce a full position statement on cause and effect where fraud or any
other improper act is suspected, that either directly or indirectly affects the
Council’s finances or assets.

Report key findings to management and flag areas for improvement through
audit recommendations

On production of identification, officers from the Internal Audit team may:

e Enter any Council premises or land;

¢ Access all records, documents and correspondence relating to any Council
transactions;

¢ Require and receive any explanations needed concerning any matter under
investigation;

¢ Require any Council employee to produce cash, stores, or any other Council
property under their control.

When any actual or suspected irregularity arises concerning cash, stores or
other Council property, or any suspected irregularity in Council business,
officers must immediately notify the Strategic Director of Finance and
Customer Services and the Monitoring Officer who will investigate and report,
as necessary. Where irregularities involve either Council Members or officers,
the Chief Executive will be responsible for decisions to involve the police.

Audit of Unofficial Funds

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will advise on the
keeping and audit of unofficial funds, that is any funds associated with Council
business, supervised, or managed by council officers, but not part of Council
funds or Council trust funds, i.e., charities. Officers invited to act as Honorary
Treasurers of unofficial funds must notify their line manager and the Strategic
Director of Finance and Customer Services for approval before accepting the
position.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services can require any
officer holding unofficial funds to provide a true account in writing of all money
and property in their charge, of all receipts and payments with vouchers and
other records supporting the accounts, and a list of persons to or from whom
money is due detailing amounts for each.

Control of Resources

Security

The Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and Heads of Service are
responsible for the security of all buildings, stocks, stores, equipment, cash,
documents, and other assets under their control. The Strategic Director of

Finance and Customer Services must be consulted whenever security might
be inadequate or special arrangements are needed.

Page 213



5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

5.2.4

5.2.5

5.3

Maximum limits for cash holdings must be agreed with the Strategic Director
of Finance and Customer Services and cannot be exceeded without their
permission, to manage risk and to prevent invalidating insurance cover.

Keys to safes, cash boxes, strong rooms and security systems must be
always held by the officers responsible for them, and access kept restricted at
all times . The loss of any such keys must be reported to the Strategic Director
of Finance and Customer Services at once and no new keys cut without
agreement from the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services.

The Head of Human Resources, Performance & Communication is
responsible for the proper security and privacy of electronic data. The Chief
Executive, Strategic Directors and Heads of Service are each responsible for
ensuring compliance with Data Protection Act 2018 in their respective
services, and for ensuring all staff are aware of their obligations under the Act.

Asset Registers and Inventories

Strategic Directors or Heads of Service are responsible for setting up and
maintaining an inventory of all items under their control with a replacement
value of over £1000. Inventories must be kept up to date, in a form agreed
with the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services.

Details of all purchases or disposals, including make and model, asset serial
number if known, and approximate replacement value must be included on
inventories at the time of purchase, sale or disposal and notified to the
Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services. In respect of any
disposal, Strategic Directors or Heads of Service are required to ensure that
the means of disposal achieves best value and all documentation is
completed to effect the transfer of legal title and all risks to the buyer. All
disposals must be in accordance with the Council’s Disposal Policy.

Head of Human Resources, Performance & Communication is responsible for
maintaining a central inventory of computer equipment.

Strategic Directors or Heads of Service are responsible for the care and
custody of all equipment held in their respective services. Council property
must not be removed or used except in the ordinary course of business, or in
accordance with specific directions from the Strategic Director or Head of
Service concerned.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services is responsible for
the maintenance of a corporate register of the Council’s fixed assets. This
asset register must be maintained in accordance with the requirements of the
CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK and any
other underlying accounting standards.

Property Transactions

Page 214



5.3.1

5.3.2

5.4

5.4.1

5.5

5.5.1

In the course of its business, the Council may enter into a variety of property
agreements, including (but not limited to):

¢ Freehold sales and purchases;
¢ Long leasehold disposals and acquisitions
e Short leases as tenant and as landlord;
e Section 106 and/or CIL agreements as landowner; [NB: This is about to
change as the Government has published a White Paper on alternatives to
S106 and CIL]
¢ Release of covenants;
e Compulsory acquisitions and land compensation claims;
e Taking and granting easements;
¢ Option Agreements;
¢ Lease surrenders and exit agreements (including dilapidations).

The Head of Legal Services is authorised to undertake all actions in relation to
the administration of the Council’s estate and property portfolio except the
following matters which are reserved to the Executive:

(a) Acquisitions or disposal of land or property with a value in excess of
£25,000;

(b) the grant or renewal of all commercial leases in excess of 2 years
that do not reflect market conditions in terms of value or risk;

(c) the grant of all leases for the purposes of development or
refurbishment schemes including building leases;

(d) the grant or renewal of all leases where the Head of Legal Services
considers referral to the Executive is appropriate

Leases

The maijority of leases are standard, non-controversial and meet the Council’s
policies and objectives. The granting or renewal of leases should only be
referred to the Executive for decision if the lease is not a standard lease or is
a controversial lease and will be subject to the above thresholds. Such
thresholds are to be reviewed every 2 years. The Leader of the Council, under
the allocation of portfolio holder responsibilities, has responsibility for the
Council’'s Property Portfolio and is regularly updated in relation to the grant
and renewal of leases.

Consumable Stocks and Stores
Strategic Directors or Heads of Service will make adequate arrangements for
the care and custody of consumable stocks and stores held by their services

and will maintain inventory records that document the purchase and usage of
these items.

Page 215



5.5.2

5.5.3

554

The stock of such items should be maintained at an appropriate level and be
subject to a regular physical check. Discrepancies must be investigated and
pursued to a satisfactory conclusion.

The Strategic Directors or Head of Service must produce a stock certificate at
each financial year end, confirming the number and value (i.e., value
representing the lower of cost or net realisable value) of items held as at 31st
March.

Stocks and stores must be removed from the Council’s financial records when
obsolete (i.e., when they cannot be sold or consumed) or when no longer held
(i.e., due to theft or other loss). Thresholds for stock write-off are set out
below:

Value of stock write-off | Delegated to Evidence required

Up to £4,999 Strategic Director of Completion of write-off

Finance and Customer form
Services or any other
Executive Head

£5,000 and over Executive Minute from meeting of

the Executive

5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

5.6.3

5.6.4

5.6.5

5.6 Investments, Borrowing and Trust Funds

All money in the hands of the Council is to be aggregated for the purposes of
treasury management under the control of the Strategic Director of Finance
and Customer Services.

This Council adopts the key recommendations of CIPFA’s Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (2017) (the Code).

The Council has created and will maintain:

¢ A treasury management policy statement, stating the policies and approach
to risk management of its treasury management practices; and

¢ Suitable treasury management practices (TMPs), setting out the way the
Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives, and prescribing
how it will manage and control those activities.

The content of the policy statement and TMPs will follow the
recommendations contained in the Code, subject only to amendment where
necessary to reflect the particular circumstances of this Council. Such
amendments will not result in the Council materially deviating from the Code’s
key recommendations.

The Council will receive reports on its treasury management policies from the
Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services, detailing practices and
activities, and including, as a minimum, an annual strategy and plan in
advance of the year, a mid-year review and an annual report after its close, in
the form prescribed in its TMPs.

Page 216




5.6.6

5.6.7

5.6.8

5.6.9

The Council delegates responsibility for the implementation its treasury
management policies and practices to the Leader/Executive and for the
execution and administration of treasury management decisions to the
Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services who will act in
accordance with the Council’s policy statement and TMPs and CIPFA’s
Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury Management.

The Council nominates the Audit and Standards Committee to be responsible
for the effective scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies.

All negotiable instruments, financial bonds and securities held in the name of
the Council, or its nominees must be held securely by the Strategic Director of
Finance and Customer Services or the Council’s bankers unless the Council
has authorised the use of an outside agent.

In consultation with the Leader or relevant Portfolio Holder, the Strategic
Director of Finance and Customer Services may engage external Investment
Fund Managers to manage the authority’s investments. The terms and
conditions of any engagement will be determined by the Strategic Director of
Finance and Customer Services and include a requirement that any such
managers must report regularly to and attend review meetings with Council
representatives.

5.6.10 All trust funds must, wherever possible, be in the Council’s name and always

5.7

5.7.1

5.7.2

5.7.3

5.7.4

comply with the requirements of the Charity Commissioners. Unless the trust
deed states otherwise, officers and councillors (except when acting in a
private capacity) acting as trustees must give all related securities etc. to the
Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services for safekeeping. (See
section 4.3 above on the Audit of Unofficial Funds for general management
guidance.)

Bank Accounts

All arrangements with the Council’s bankers must be made or approved by
the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services, who is authorised to
operate necessary banking, Credit and Purchasing Card Accounts and other
banking arrangements, as well as providing any appropriate instruction or
indemnity required by the Council’s bankers.

All bank accounts must be in the name of Surrey Heath Borough Council. All
payment forms and other debit and credit forms must be ordered by the
Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services, who must make proper
arrangements for their security.

The Council does not make payment by cheque, other than on authorised
imprest accounts.

All bank accounts must be reconciled to supporting records periodically in line

with timetables and directions issued by the Strategic Director of Finance and
Customer Services.

Page 217



5.8

5.8.1

5.8.2

5.8.3

5.8.4

5.9

5.9.1

Petty Cash Accounts

Wherever possible, corporate Purchas Cards should be used for low value
transactions and where there are no mandated procurement contracts in
place. However, in the limited circumstances when Purchase Cards cannot
be used, the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services may
provide petty cash accounts to meet minor expenditure on behalf of the
Council.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services or Chief Accountant
will:

o Prescribe rules for operating these accounts;

. Determine the amount of each imprest account;

o Instruct services to maintain a record of all transactions and cash
advances made; and

o Periodically review the arrangements for the safe custody and control

of these advances.

Requests for additional funds to be transferred into petty cash accounts must
be made to the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services.
Arrangements for such transfers will be made by the Chief Accountant,
following direction from the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer
Services.

Employees operating an imprest account will:

Obtain and retain vouchers to support each payment from the imprest
account. Where appropriate, an official receipted VAT invoice must be
obtained;

Make adequate arrangements for the safe custody of the account including
access to the account;

Produce cash and all vouchers to the total value of the imprest amount.
Record transactions promptly;

Reconcile and balance the account at least monthly; reconciliation sheets to
be signed and retained by the imprest holder;

Ensure that the float is never used to cash personal cheques or to make
personal loans and that the only payments into the account are the
reimbursement of the float and change relating to purchases where an
advance has been made; and

Provide the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services with a
certificate of the value of the account held at 31 March each year.

Intellectual Property
Intellectual property is a generic term that includes inventions and writing. It is
a category of property that includes intangible creations of the human intellect.

There are many types of intellectual property, and some countries recognize
more than others. The most well-known types are copyrights, patents, and

Page 218



5.9.2

6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.3

trademarks. If an employee creates these during employment, then, generally,
they belong to the employer, not the employee.

Strategic Directors or Heads of Service will ensure that their staff are not
carrying out private work in Council time and that their staff are aware of the
Council’s rights regarding intellectual property. Instances of where intellectual
property may be, or has been, created should be referred to the Head of Legal
Services.

Income
Income Collection Systems

Effective income collection systems are necessary to ensure that all income
due to the Council is identified, collected, receipted, and banked properly.
Wherever possible, income should be collected in advance of supplying goods
or services.

It is the responsibility of Strategic Directors or Heads of Service to ensure that
staff authorised to act on their behalf in respect of income collection are
clearly identified. These officers must supply the Finance Department with
details relating to work done, goods supplied, services rendered or other
amounts due, to enable invoices to be raised promptly for sums due to the
Council, and to ensure that such amounts are properly recorded as due to the
Council.

Charging Policies

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will establish an
income and charging policy for the supply of goods or services. This will be
reviewed and approved periodically by the Executive.

Strategic Directors or Heads of Service must set annual discretionary fees
and charges in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder and Strategic
Director of Finance and Customer Services. An annual statement on fees and
charges will be published on the Council’s website as part of the budget
setting process.

Any new charge or change that involves potentially sensitive issues must be
agreed with the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader.

One-off services may be undertaken, and associated charges set by the Chief
Executive, Strategic Director or Head of Service concerned, subject to
availability of resources and consideration of any sensitive issues by the Chief
Executive in consultation with the Leader.

Income Collection

Page 219



6.3.1

6.3.2

6.4

6.4.1

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will agree the
arrangements for the collection of all income due to the Council and approve
the procedures, systems, and documentation for its collection.

In relation to the collection of income, Strategic Directors or Heads of Service
will ensure that:

¢ All money received by, or on behalf of, the Council is paid fully and promptly
into the appropriate Council bank account in the form in which it is received;

¢ Income is not used to cash personal cheques or other payments;

¢ Appropriate details are recorded onto paying-in slips to provide an audit trail;
¢ A record is kept of money received directly by employees of the Council;

e The receiving officer signs for the transfer of funds, and the transferor
retains a copy;

e Wherever possible, at least two employees are present when post is opened
so that money received by post is properly identified and recorded; this
requirement must be met where post regularly contains money. If this
requirement cannot be met, then arrangements must be reviewed by Internal
Audit;

e Money collected and deposited is reconciled to the appropriate bank
account on a regular basis;

¢ The responsibility for cash collection is separated from that for identifying the
amount due and that responsibility for reconciling the amount due is
separated from handling of the amount received;

¢ Income is only held on premises up to levels approved by the Strategic
Director of Finance and Customer Services. All such income will be locked
away to safeguard against loss or theft, and to ensure the security of cash
handling;

¢ Any discrepancies between amounts deposited and amounts shown as
received (actual vs expected income) are recorded and promptly investigated,
with Internal Audit notified immediately of any amounts over £20. If not
corrected, any shortfall must be made good at a later deposit at the discretion
of the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services;

¢ All appropriate income documents are retained and stored for the defined
period in accordance with the Council’s document retention policy and
schedule;

¢ The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services is advised of
outstanding income relating to the previous financial year as soon as possible
after 31 March, and in line with the timetable for closure of the accounts
issued by the Finance Department.

Income Collection — Sales

The Council collects income directly from service users at several sites (e.g.,
Camberley Theatre / Windle Valley Centre). This is generally collected via
cash tills or similar systems. It is important that accurate records are
maintained for income collected in this way. Where direct sales are made to
service users, Heads of Service must ensure that proper procedures for
collection of income are in place:

Page 220



6.4.2

6.4.3

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

6.6

6.6.1

¢ At the start of each session, the responsible officer must count the cash float
and sign for its accuracy;

e At the close of each session, income collected must be reconciled to records
on the till or similar record. This should be signed off by the officer who has
operated the till or similar system;

¢ Where possible, two officers should be present whenever cash is counted;

e In addition, any cash float remaining at the close of the session should be
signed for by the officer working on the till; and

¢ Bank paying-in slips must be reconciled to income collection records.

Where income is collected at one-off events at remote sites (such as open-air
concerts or shows) the Strategic Director or Head of Service must ensure that
arrangements are in place to enable income collected to be reconciled to a
record of sales made. Internal Audit must be consulted to ensure
arrangements are secure. Any cash collected should be counted in the
presence of two officers where possible, and banked at the earliest
opportunity. Appropriate security arrangements must also be made should
cash collected need to be held overnight before it can be banked.

Officers must ensure that secure arrangements are in place for the storage of
cash and cheques until they are banked. Cash should only be stored at
Camberley Theatre or Surrey Heath House.

Debt Recovery

Strategic Directors or Heads of Service will define which officers in their
business unit may raise a debt on the Council’s behalf.

Once debts are raised, Strategic Directors or Heads of Service have a
responsibility to assist the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer
Services in collecting the debts that they have originated, by providing any
further information requested by the debtor, and in pursuing the matter on the
Council’s behalf. This will be done in accordance with the Council’s Corporate
Debt Management Policy.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will provide regular
reports to Executive Heads to enable them to pursue debts. Strategic
Directors or Heads of Service must use this information to ensure that debts
are followed up promptly. Debts must be followed up in line with timescales
set out in Corporate Debt Management Policy.

Evidence of action to collect debts should be retained. This helps decision-
making should debts require write-off by the Executive.

Debt Write-off and Release of Securities
The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will review
outstanding debts on a regular basis and has discretion to take prompt action

to write-off debts no longer deemed to be recoverable in law following
consultation with the Leader, Portfolio Holder for Finance and Head of Legal

Page 221



6.6.2

Services. A delegated decision notice must be published to record any
decision to write off debt pursuant to this section 6.6.1 and reported to the
Executive as soon as possible.

No bona fide debt may be cancelled, other than by formal write off. The
approval required to write off any such debt is as follows:

Value of Debt Delegated to: Evidence required

Up to £1,500 Strategic Director of Authorised debt write-

Finance and Customer off form
Services and Head of
Service

£1,500 and over Executive Minute from meeting of

Executive

The appropriate accounting adjustments must be made following approval to write-
off a debt.

6.6.3

6.7

6.7.1

6.7.2

6.7.3

6.8

6.8.1

No officer may release any security, warranty, or guarantee in favour of the
Council, unless contractually obliged to do so, without the written approval of
the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services or the Executive as
appropriate.

Credit Notes

A credit note to replace a debt can only be issued to correct a factual
inaccuracy or administrative error in the calculation and/or billing of the
original debt, and not to write-off a debt that is deemed to be uncollectable.

Credit notes can only be raised by officers in line with limits set out in
authorised signatory schedules. Appropriate documentation must be retained
to confirm reason for the credit note and to show it has been properly
authorised.

All credit notes must be authorised by an appropriate budget holder who is a
designatory authorised signatory for credit notes. Strategic Director of Finance
and Customer Services.

Sponsorship and Contributions in Kind

Offers of sponsorship, or contributions in kind from outside organisations with
a total value of less than £1,000 may be arranged and agreed by the Strategic
Director or Head of Service concerned after consultation with the Chief
Executive and the Leader, or appropriate Portfolio Holder. Sponsorship of less
than £1,000 will be reported to the Leader and Executive twice yearly.

Page 222




6.8.2

6.9

6.9.1

Offers of sponsorship or contributions in kind from outside organisations with
a total value of over £1,000 must be approved by the Leader or Executive. All
arrangements for sponsorship must comply with the Code of Conduct for
Officers. The Monitoring Officer will maintain a list of all sponsorship
arrangements.

Grants and Other Income

Any income received by the Council which is not included within the annual
budget and arising from, for example, grants, windfalls, or gifts must be
notified to the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services as soon
as it is identified. Authorisation for the use of this income must be obtained
from:

Value of income Delegation

Less than £1,000 Strategic Director of Finance and

Customer Services

£1,000 to £9,999 Chief Executive in consultation with

the Leader

£10,000 and over Executive

6.9.2

6.9.3

6.9.4

7.1

7.1.1

Strategic Directors or Heads of Service must, as appropriate, ensure that all
funding notified by external bodies is received and properly recorded in the
Council’'s accounts. This will include ensuring that claims for funding are made
by the due date, and in accordance with the funding conditions.

Strategic Directors or Heads of Service must be clear as to any conditions
attached to grants and other income from third parties and ensure systems
are put in place to demonstrate compliance with these conditions. This should
include systems to ensure grants are spent within the correct time period.

Strategic Directors or Heads of Service must satisfy audit requirements in
respect of external funding claims. This includes maintaining appropriate
records that accord with the funding conditions and making these available to
the auditors as required.

Orders and Payments
Orders

Public money must be spent with demonstrable probity and in accordance
with the Council’s policies.

Officers involved with engaging contractors, and/or with purchasing decisions,
have a responsibility to declare:

Any links or personal interests that they may have with purchasers, suppliers
and/or contractors; and

Any gifts or hospitality offered by, or received from, purchasers, suppliers
and/or contractors.

Page 223




7.1.3

714

All works, goods and services must be ordered in accordance with the
Council’s Contract Standing Orders and Procurement Guidance. All officers
involved in placing orders with third parties must be familiar with these
documents.

Current thresholds for orders of goods and services from third parties are set
out below:

Total value (including VAT) Procedure

Up to £4,999 At least one written quote in writing

and in advance

£5,000 to £49,999 At least three written quotes in

writing and in advance

£50,000 and over The responsible officer must contact

the relevant responsible officerfor
guidance; A contract number is
required; At least three written
tenders in advance; Due attention
must be given to national
procurement rules regarding the
value of the contract

7.2

7.2.1

7.2.3

Ordering Works, Goods and Services

Official orders must only be raised, in advance of the supply of goods or
services, on the Council’s purchasing system by officers with appropriate
system access. Orders for work, goods and services must:

Be approved by an appropriate authorised signatory;

Entered on the purchasing system with details of the nature and quantity of
work, goods or services required, the relevant contract, expenditure code and
agreed or estimated price;

Apply the appropriate VAT rate; and

Be coded to an appropriate cost centre with adequate budgetary provision.

The authoriser of an order must be satisfied that:

The works, goods and services ordered are appropriate and needed; (ii)
There is adequate budgetary provision; and

Quotations or tenders have been obtained, if necessary, in accordance with
the Contract Standing Orders and Procurement Guidelines.

The purchase order must be properly reviewed by the authorising officer. By
approving the purchase order, the authorising officer is confirming that the
order has been let in line with Contract Standing Orders and Procurement
Guidelines.

Page 224




724

7.2.5

7.3

7.3.1

7.3.2

7.3.3

7.3.4

7.4

Authorised purchase orders should be sent to the supplier to ensure details of
the goods or services expected from the supplier are clearly set out.

Purchase orders must be raised on the purchasing system for all work goods
or services to be supplied to the Council. The only exceptions are:

e Supply of public utilities;

¢ Periodic payments such as rent or rates;

e Suppliers registered under HMRC’s Construction Industry Scheme; or

¢ Other items approved by the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer
Services.

In these cases, approval to place orders without purchase orders must be
obtained from the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services.

Receipt of Works, Goods and Services

Works, goods and services must be checked upon receipt to ensure they

have been delivered in accordance with the order. The supplier should be
contacted if there are any discrepancies between orders and the goods or
services received.

Details of goods and services received should be recorded by staff with
appropriate access on the Council’s purchasing system, using the goods
receipting function. Where possible, information to support goods received
notes, such as delivery notes or timesheets, should be stored on the
purchasing system.

Where approval has been obtained to purchase from a supplier without using
the Council’s purchasing system, then the Strategic Directors or Heads of
Service must ensure that proper records are retained to show that goods or
services ordered have been delivered by the supplier.

The Council will not pay suppliers in advance for goods or services. This is to
avoid circumstances where monies are paid out, but suppliers fail to deliver
goods or services that have been paid for. If a supplier insists on payment in
advance of receipt of goods, then the procuring officer should consider using
a different supplier. Exceptions to this are:

¢ Rent or rates, where payment in advance is contractually due;

¢ Software licences and software upgrades where payment in advance is
contractually due;

¢ Course or conference bookings where advance payment is required to
secure a booking;

¢ Other circumstances where written approval for payment in advance of
receipt of goods or services has been obtained from the Strategic Director of
Finance and Customer Services.

Setting Up New Suppliers and Changes to Supplier Details

Page 225



7.4.1

7.4.2

7.5

7.5.1

7.5.2

7.5.3

754

7.5.5

7.5.6

7.5.7

Officers must ensure the validity of supplier information when sourcing goods
or services from new suppliers or changing details of existing suppliers. This
is to reduce the risk of fraud.

The procuring officer must confirm key information such as business address,
VAT number, and bank account details by email or telephone, and enter
details of how these have been confirmed before any new supplier or changes
to existing suppler details changes will be accepted and actioned by the
Finance Department.

Payment of Accounts

The normal method of paying sums due from the Council is BACS. Separate
arrangements are in place for payments using Purchase Cards (see
paragraph 7.10). Payments by other methods may only be used at the
discretion of the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services.

All invoices received by officers must be forwarded to the Finance Department
as soon as they are received to ensure that the Council meets prompt
payment performance targets. Invoices are stored electronically on the
Council’s finance system. Hard copy invoices are not retained.

Officers must ensure that suppliers send proper VAT invoices to the Council
when seeking payment. The Council will not pay against statements issued by
suppliers as this increases the risk of duplicate payments.

All invoices must include a purchase order number, where applicable. Failure
to include this information will mean the invoice is returned to the supplier.

Certification of invoices for payment may only be carried out by officers with
an appropriate authorised signatory limit for invoice authorisation (see
paragraph 12). Before certifying an invoice for payment, a signatory must be
satisfied that:

e The works, goods or services have been satisfactorily received;

e The sum due for payment is properly incurred and covered by approved
budgets;

¢ The invoice is not in dispute;

¢ The invoice has not been previously paid;

¢ The prices, extensions, calculations, trade discounts, other allowances,
credits, and treatment for VAT are correct.

All invoices will be scanned into the Council’s finance system once they have
been received by the Finance Department. At this point a “for invoice
authorisation” email will be generated by the Council’s finance system and
sent to an appropriate authorised signatory.

Within 7 days of receipt of the email, the authorised signatory must, on
completion of the checks set out in paragraph 7.5.5 above, authorise the
invoice as ready for payment on the Council’s finance system. If this is not
possible, an alternative authorised signatory should complete this work.

Page 226



7.6

7.6.1

7.6.2

7.6.3

1.7

7.7.1

7.7.2

7.8

7.8.1

7.9

7.9.1

710

Payment of Accounts — Invoices Without Purchase Orders

Where invoices are received for suppliers where no purchase order has been
raised (see paragraph 7.2.4) then a BACS voucher form will need to be
completed by the Service Department.

This will be scanned into the finance system and a “request for invoice
authorisation” email generated by the Council’s finance system and sent to an
appropriate authorised signatory. The process at paragraph 7.5.6 must then
be followed.

In exceptional circumstances, the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer
Services may authorise a payment where no invoice has been received. In
these circumstances a BACS voucher must be completed by an appropriate
authorised signatory to confirm that:

e The work, goods, services, refunds, rebates, or other commitments have
been properly received or will be received or accounted for; and
e The sum due for payment is provided for in approved budgets.

Financial Year-end

As soon as possible after 31st March, and no later than a date in April set by
the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services each year, the Chief
Executive, Strategic Directors and Heads of Service must each notify the
Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services of all outstanding
revenue expenditure for the previous financial year relating to works, goods or
services ordered and supplied during that year.

By 31st March each year, the Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and Heads
of Service must ensure that all capital expenditure occurring in that year has
been properly certified and passed for payment. No account may be taken of
expenditure in the year incurred by contractors but not certified or paid by the
Council.

Loans and Advances

Only the Chief Executive (or a properly authorised officer) is responsible for
raising and certifying requisitions for making approved loans and advances.

Payments Relating to Purchase of Land and Property

Accounts for payments relating to purchase of land or property must be
supported by details of the land or property including location, the vendor’s
name, the purchase price, and all associated expenses, and be certified by
the Chief Executive (or a properly authorised officer).

Corporate Purchase Cards

Page 227



7.10.1 The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services may allocate
corporate Purchase cards to nominated officers on completion of an
application form signed by the appropriate Strategic Director or Head of
Service.

7.10.2 All officers allocated corporate Purchase Cards must follow guidance on how
to use these cards and account for expenditure incurred as set out in the
Purchase Card guidance notes, issued to officers by the Finance Department.

7.10.3 Corporate Purchase Cards and PIN numbers are personal to the cardholder
and may not be used by other officers. Corporate Purchase Cards may not be
used to:

¢ Obtain cash advances;

¢ For personal purchases;

¢ To buy goods and services with a value in excess of £1,000 (unless
expressly authorised with a higher limit at card issue); or

e To buy goods and services covered by a contract.

7.10.4 Details of expenditure incurred on corporate Purchase Cards will be included
in the spend data that the Council publishes to comply with the requirements
of the Transparency Code 2015. Officers must consider the impact of this
information when using corporate Purchase Cards.

7.10.5 For any Officer that holds a Purchase Card and due to leave the Council, the
Purchase Card must be returned to the Finance Department prior to the
Officer’s last day of service.

8. Contracting
8.1  Financial Appraisals and Insurance

8.1.1 The Chief Executive, Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services,
Strategic Director or Head of Service concerned must be satisfied that the
tenderer is able to fulfil a contract satisfactorily before any contract is entered
into. The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services must verify the
financial status of tenderers for contracts over £50,000, and for any other
contract where such a check is considered necessary. A financial appraisal
should also be undertaken before any contract is extended or negotiated for
an additional period.

8.1.2 The Strategic Director or Head of Service must supply relevant insurance
details to the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services (who will
advise on necessary limits) for all contracts with an anticipated spend in
excess of £50,000. Insurance documentation must be obtained for all
contracts valued at £50,000 or over, although it is considered best practice
that contract officers should request and obtain insurance details from
suppliers for all contracts over £5,000.

Page 228



8.2 Contract Management and Payment of Contractors

8.2.1 For each contract, the Chief Executive, Strategic Director or Head of Service
must nominate a contract manager who will be responsible for complying with
Standing Orders and Guidelines, properly maintaining all contract
documentation, obtaining all necessary sub-contractor tax certificates, and
forwarding them to the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services
before payment is made.

8.2.2 A register of all contracts over £50,000, known as the Contracts Register, and
all other contracts under seal, must be maintained and kept updated by the
responsible officer. The register must record all payments and show the state
of account on each contract between the Council and its contractors together
with any other payments and related professional fees. (Contracts based on
schedules of rates and for which individual job orders are placed are
exempted from this Regulation.) Officers should notify the responsible officer
of any such contract details in excess of £50,000 as above using the pro
forma on-line form found on the intranet.

8.2.3 Where contracts of £50,000 or less are placed on official orders or other
schedule of rates tenders allow for payment by instalments, the relevant
Contract Manager must keep a record to show the state of account for each
contract together with any other payments and related professional fees, in a
form approved by the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services.
Contracts of £5,000 or less must not be paid by instalment.

8.2.4 Purchase orders must be raised on the Council’s purchasing system for all
contracts entered into by the Council. Payment of contractors will be made
following the process set out at paragraph 7.5 above.

8.3  Purchase of IT equipment

8.3.1 In accordance with the Council’s Information Security Policy, ICT Equipment
must always be purchased, tagged, and installed by the ICT Team. This is to
ensure assets are adequately insured, authorised, and properly logged.

9. Salaries, Wages, Pensions and Expenses
9.1 Salaries, Wages and Pensions

9.1.1 Head of Human Resources, Performance & Communication pays salaries,
wages, pensions, compensations etc. to all employees or former employees
of the Council, under arrangements approved and controlled by the Strategic
Director of Finance and Customer Services.

9.1.2 The Chief Executive, Strategic Director or Head of Service concerned must
notify the Head of Human Resources, Performance & Communication who will
in turn notify the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services as soon
as possible of anything affecting such payments, particularly:

Page 229



¢ Appointments, resignations, dismissals, retirements, redundancies, deaths,
suspensions, secondments, and transfers;

e Absence from duty due to sickness, maternity, compassionate or unpaid
leave;

¢ Changes in remuneration for employees on Surrey Heath Borough Council
conditions of contract;

e Changes in remuneration apart from normal increments, pay awards and
agreements affecting all other employees;

e Information necessary to maintain records of service for superannuation,
income tax, national insurance, and similar matters.

9.1.3 All employees will be appointed in accordance with the Regulations of the
Council and the approved establishments, grades, and rates of pay.

9.1.4 All time records or other pay documents must be in a form set or approved by
the Executive Head of Transformation. Line managers are responsible for
approving officer timesheets, as necessary.

9.2 Travel, subsistence, and other allowances

9.2.1 The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services is responsible for
the payment of expense claims by staff in accordance with the Council’s travel
and subsistence policy. Mileage claims and parking fees are the responsibility
of Head of Human Resources, Performance & Communication and are paid
through iTrent,the HR/payroll system.

These officers will:

e Make arrangements for paying all authorised travel and subsistence claims;
and

¢ Ensure that taxable allowances and benefits are accounted for, recorded, and
submitted, where appropriate, to HM Revenue and Customs.

9.2.2 Certification of travel and subsistence claims means that journeys were
authorised, and expenses properly and necessarily incurred for business
purposes, and that allowances are properly payable by the Council, ensuring
that cost-effective use of travel arrangements is achieved.

9.2.3 All claims for payment of officers’ car allowances, subsistence allowances,
travelling and incidental expenses incurred on official duty must be properly
certified by an authorised officer and submitted to Payroll or Finance as
appropriate on the approved form available on the Council’s intranet or
through iTrent. The signatory must ensure that proper documentation to
support mileage and other items claimed has been supplied by the claimant.

9.2.4 All claims for the payment of work or qualification training and course
expenses (provided prior approval for the course has already been granted),
including related subsistence and travel expenses, must be signed off by an
authorised signatory in the same service. The claim should be submitted to
Human Resources for certification. Claims for conference expenses must be

Page 230



9.2.5

9.2.6

9.3

9.3.1

9.3.2

9.3.3

934

9.3.5

10.

10.1

signed by a properly authorised officer and submitted to the Strategic Director
of Finance and Customer Services.

Payments to members, including co-opted members of the Council or its
committees must be made by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services on
receipt of the properly completed claim form.

Certification by or on behalf of the Chief Executive, Strategic Director or Head
of Service means that the certifying officer is satisfied the journeys were
authorised, expenses properly and necessarily incurred and that the
allowances are properly payable by the Council.

Ex-Gratia Payments

Ex-gratia payments are one-off payments made to an employee or former
employee as a gesture of goodwill, and not because there is a legal or
contractual obligation to do so. They include settlement agreements and other
payments made for loss of office.

All ex-gratia payments made to staff below Head of Service level must be
approved by the Chief Executive, after consultation with the Strategic Director
of Finance and Customer Services and the Head of Human Resources,
Performance & Communication.

All ex-gratia payments made to the Chief Executive, Strategic Directors, or
Heads of Service must be approved by the Employment Committee, unless
the decision is reserved to the Full Council.

Any ex-gratia payments to the Chief Executive, another Statutory Officer, or
the Head of Human Resources, Performance & Communication, as agreed by
the Employment Committee or Full Council, must be authorised by two of the
three Statutory Officers: the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer, or the
Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services. In the absence of these
officers, the Deputy Monitoring Officer or Deputy Section 151 Officer can
authorise these payments. An officer must not authorise a payment to
themselves.

Any ex-gratia payments to Strategic Directors or Heads of Service, excluding
Statutory Officers and the Head of Human Resources, Performance &
Communication, as agreed by the Employment Committee, must be
authorised by the Head of Human Resources, Performance & Communication
and one of the Statutory Officers.

Taxation

Compliance with Tax Regulations

10.1.1 The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services is responsible for

ensuring compliance with all relevant taxation regulations and guidance that

Page 231



affect the Council either directly, because of its own activities, or indirectly,
because of service delivery through external partners.

10.1.2 To enable The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services to fulfil
the requirements of this role, Strategic Directors and Heads of Service will
ensure that the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services is
consulted on all proposals that may alter or affect the Council’s tax liability.

10.1.3 Certifying officers must confirm that all suppliers of goods, works or services
have complied with VAT legislation and have correctly completed payment
documentation in accordance with instructions issued by HMRC.

10.1.4 The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services will maintain the
Council’s tax records, make all tax payments, receive tax credits, and submit
tax returns by their due date, as appropriate.

11. Transparency and Partnerships

11.1.1 To provide transparency in its stewardship of public funds the Council will
make information available to the public in relation to its spending, regardless
of value. Monthly payment transactions made via corporate Purchase Cards,
employee expenses and accounts payable are available to be viewed or
downloaded via the Council’s website.

11.1.211.2.1 The Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and Heads of Service may
enter into partnerships and similar joint undertakings on behalf of the
authority, subject to consideration and approval by Corporate Management
Team and the Leader/Executive. Partnership transactions must comply with
these Financial Regulations and Procedure Rules, unless otherwise specified
by the partnership and agreed by the Strategic Director of Finance and
Customer Services.

12. Authorised Signatories
12.1 Powers Delegated to Officers

12.1.1 Under the Scheme of Delegation of Functions to Officers in the Constitution of
the Council, authority to undertake financial transactions is delegated to senior
managers and certain nominated officers. However, delegation to other
officers may be necessary for practical purposes. These delegations form
lines of accountability that must be clear, well communicated and regularly
reviewed. They will provide control through appropriate levels of authorisation,
limited numbers, and the proper separation of duties.

12.1.2 Delegations within services must be arranged under agreed procedures for
authorised signatories. Strategic Directors or Heads of Service must supply
the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services with the following
information on the standard form found on the Council’s intranet:

e The name and job title of the officer;
¢ The delegated financial limits to be applied to the officer; and

Page 232



¢ A specimen signature from the officer, countersigned by the Head of
Service.

Any changes to authorised signatory limits within a service must be advised in
the same way.

12.1.3 Internal Audit will process new and amendments to existing signatory powers
as well as maintain records of officers authorised to make financial
transactions. Existing signatory powers are published on the Council’s intranet
and are reviewed periodically.

12.1.4 By exception signatory powers may be temporarily increased as a one-off in
order to meet a genuine business need and where they are time critical. Such
changes must be approved in writing in advance by the Chief Executive or
theSection 151 Officer Strategic Directorand should be notified to Internal
Audit so that the appropriate records can be amended and to provide an audit
trail. Changes must be on a short term basis and the officer’s signatory
powers reverted back to their substantive levels as soon as they are no longer
required.

12.1.5 Any suspected breaches of authorised signatory limits should be reported

immediately to Internal Audit. Breaches of agreed limits may be subject to
internal audit review and may result in disciplinary action.

Page 233



This page is intentionally left blank



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

2.2

PART 4 - PROCEDURAL RULES
SECTION |

CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS

Introduction — Purpose of the Contract Standing Orders

Purchasing decisions and processes are important because the money
involved is public money. The purpose of these Contract Standing Orders is to
provide a structure within which purchasing decisions are made and
implemented and which ensure that the Council:

a) Furthers its corporate objectives

b) Uses its resources efficiently

c) Purchases quality goods, services and works

d) Safeguards its reputation from any implication of dishonesty or
corruption.

Purchasing by the Council, from planning to delivery, shall incorporate (where
appropriate) principles of sustainability, efficiency, whole life costing and cost
savings.

These Contract Standing Orders are made in accordance with the
requirements of Section135 of the Local Government Act 1972.

These Contract Standing Orders do not provide guidelines on what is the best
way to purchase works, supplies (goods) and services. They set out minimum
requirements to be followed. Further information and guidelines are set out in

the Council’s Purchasing Guide that accompanies this document.

References to “Regulations” means the Public Contracts Regulations 2015
and references to the “Transparency Code” mean the Transparency Code
2015.

General Principles — Application and Compliance with Contract Standing
Orders

These Contract Standing Orders apply to the purchase by or on behalf of the
Council of works, supplies (goods) and services. Concession contracts must
follow the requirements under the Concession Contracts Regulations 2016
and the Transparency Code. ldentifying and awarding concession contracts
are uncommon and Responsible Officers should take advice from legal
services.

These Contract Standing Orders apply to all contracts including all purchase
orders and contractual arrangements entered into by or on behalf of the

Page 235 PART 4 - SECTION |



2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

Council, except for the specific types of contracts and purchasing methods
which are listed in 2.3.

These Contract Standing Orders do not apply to:

a) Employment contracts
b) Contracts relating solely to the purchase or sale of interests in land
c) Contracts for retention of legal counsel and the appointment of expert

witnesses in legal proceedings

d) Service level agreements setting out the conditions which the Council

applies to its funding of particular voluntary sector bodies.

e) Post Entry Training Schemes
f) When for technical or artistic reasons connected with the protections of

exclusive rights the goods services or works may be provided by only a
particular service provider

g) Contract modifications permitted by law under section 72 of the Public

Contracts Regulations 2015.

h) Contracts providing for the delegation of the Council’s functions.

i)

Contracts providing for cooperation between the Council and other
public sector bodies where the structure of cooperation is exempt from
the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and any other applicable laws.
Contracts awarded under a framework agreement or dynamic
purchasing system. Responsible Officers must follow the rules and
requirements of using frameworks or dynamic purchasing systems.

General Principles Applying to All Contracts

There should be written evidence of all purchases.

Standard contract clauses shall be used in all contracts of a value of £5,000 or
more. The standard contract clauses can be provided by Legal Services and
may also available on the Intranet. Contracts may be awarded based on a
supplier's standards terms of conditions subject to any modifications
requested by legal services.

Each contract shall include standard clauses, or those indicated where
applicable dependant on the nature of the contract, on

Anti-Fraud and Corruption

Prevention of Assignment

Equal Opportunities

Health and Safety

Freedom of Information Act 2000

TUPE and workforce matters as applicable

Child Protection and Safeguarding Children where applicable
Liquidated Damages where applicable

Protocol for performance data sharing by contractors where applicable.

Page 236 PART 4 - SECTION |



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1

As a minimum, all contracts of a value of £5,000 or more shall include clauses
which set out:

a) The works, supplies (goods), services, material, matters or things to be
carried out or supplied

b) The time within which the contract is to be performed

¢) Mechanisms for variation and extension

d) Clarity on the balance of risk

e) Clear payment mechanism and price schedule or clause.

f) Quality requirements and/or standards which must be met

g) Requirements on the contractor to hold and maintain appropriate
insurances

h) What happens in the event that the contractor fails to comply with its
contractual obligations (in whole or in part)

i) Requirements on the contractor to comply with all relevant equalities
and health and safety legislation

j) That the Council shall be entitled to cancel the contract and recover
losses in the event that the contractor does anything improper to
influence the Council to give the contractor any contract or commits an
offences under the Bribery Act 2010, Modern Slavery Act 2015 or
s117(2) Local Government Act 1972.

Written contracts shall not include non-commercial terms unless these are
necessary to achieve best value for the Council. In this context, “non-
commercial” means requirements unrelated to the actual performance of the
contract. A more detailed list of non commercial consideration is contained in
section 17 of the Local Government Act 1988.

All contracts shall include relevant specifications and/or briefs/technical
requirements which are prepared taking into account the need for
effectiveness of delivery, quality, sustainability and efficiency (as appropriate)
and the information set out in the Council’'s Purchasing Guide.

All contracts of a value of £50,000 or more or which involve a substantial risk
to the Council must be subject to a written risk assessment, which should be
kept on the contract file held by the responsible officer.

Regulatory Context

All purchasing shall be conducted in accordance with Regulatory Provisions
which are:

a) All relevant statutory provisions
b) Relevant Statutory guidance

c) Any EU Rules and EC Treaty Principles which are adopted and
reflected in UK legislation.

d) The Council’'s Constitution including these Contract Standing Orders,
the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and Scheme of Delegation

Page 237 PART 4 - SECTION |



4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

e) The Council’'s Purchasing Guide and other policies and procedures of
the Council as appropriate.

In the event of conflict between the above, the UK Legislation will take
precedence, followed by Statutory guidance, then the Council's Constitution,
the Council’s Purchasing Guide and guidelines, policies and procedures.

Responsibilities of Strategic Directors, Head of Service, Budget
Managers and Responsible Officers

Each Strategic Director and Head of Service shall have overall responsibility
for the purchasing undertaken by his/her Service and take immediate action in
the event of breach of these Contract Standing Orders

Each Budget Manager shall be responsible for the purchasing undertaken by
his or her area and shall be:

a) accountable to the relevant Strategic Director or Head of Service for the
performance of his/her duties in relation to purchasing

b) comply with the Council's decision making processes and scheme of
delegation

c) the authorised signatory within the scheme of delegation or by sub-
delegation

A Responsible Officer is an officer with responsibility for conducting
purchasing processes for the purchase of works, supplies (goods) or services
on behalf of the Council.

A Responsible Officer’s duties in respect of purchasing are to ensure:

a) compliance with all Regulatory Provisions and integrity of the tender
process

b) compliance with the relevant statutory provisions and the Council’s
requirements relating to declarations of interest affecting any
purchasing process

c) that there is an appropriate analysis of the requirement, timescales,
procedure and documentation to be used

d) the purchasing process, from planning to delivery incorporates (where
appropriate) principles of sustainability, efficiency, whole life costing
and cost savings

e) compliance with the Council's decision making processes

f) that all contracts of a value of £5,000 or more are included on the
Council’s Contract Register after contract signing/sealing

g) that proper records of all contract award procedures, waivers,
exemptions and extensions are maintained, with separate files for each
purchase of a value of £5,000 or more

h) that value for money is achieved

i) that adequate and appropriate security (such as a bond or guarantee)
is taken to protect the Council in the event of non-performance.

Page 238 PART 4 - SECTION |



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

6.1

6.2

j) Contract award notices are published for all contracts of a value greater
than £25,000 and for all contracts awarded pursuant to framework
agreements or dynamic purchasing systems regardless of value.

k) For all contracts over £5,000, that new suppliers can demonstrate
satisfactory trading history with reference to accounts or references
from previous employers.

In considering how best to procure works, supplies and services, Strategic
Directors, Heads of Service, Budget Managers and/or Responsible Officers
(as appropriate in the context), shall take into account wider contractual
delivery opportunities and purchasing methods such as the use of Framework
agreements, joint procurement with other authorities and e-procurement
methods, and the availability of local authority charging and trading powers
under the Local Government Act 2003.

It is a disciplinary offence to fail to comply with these Contract Standing
Orders and the Council’s Purchasing Guide. All employees have a duty to
report breaches of Contract Standing Orders to the Section 151 Officer or the
Monitoring Officer.

It is the responsibility of every officer or member engaged in awarding and
assessing contracts and tenders to ensure that they have no potential conflict
of interest with any of the potential tenderers for contracts with the Council.
This includes any interests by their close associates or family members. If
officers or members become aware of any such conflict of interest they should
draw the matter to the attention of the Monitoring Officer immediately who will
then decide whether the interest is prejudicial or not. Failure to declare an
interest would be considered a disciplinary offence. If you are in any doubt
about a potential conflict of interest speak to the Monitoring Officer first.

Any officer or Member who suspects any misconduct or corruption in relation
to the purchase by or on behalf of the Council of works, supplies (goods) and
services must refer to the Council’s Whistleblowing Code which can be found
on the intranet and follow the guidance contained within.

Scheme of Delegation

Council purchasing may only be undertaken by officers with the appropriate
delegated authority to carry out such tasks as set out in the Council's Scheme
of Delegation. Officers with delegated authority may only delegate to other
officers who have the appropriate skills and knowledge for the task and such
delegation shall be recorded in writing by the officer delegating the task and
notified to the relevant Strategic Director and Head of Service..

Each Strategic Director and Head of Service shall inform officers, where
appropriate, of the extent of any delegated authority and applicable financial
thresholds.

Financial Thresholds, Key Decisions and Procedures

Page 239 PART 4 - SECTION |



7.1

The table below sets out the general rules applying to the choice of
purchasing procedure for contracts at the stated threshold values.

7.2  There is a general presumption in favour of competition. Wherever possible
contract opportunities over £5,000 should be advertised by way of a public
notice using the Council’s contract portal.

7.3  The public notice referred to at 7.2 will usually be via the Council’s electronic
tendering portal but it may also be appropriate to advertise on the Council’s or
other websites or in the press and/or trade publications.

7.4  The award of any contract which is a key decision is also an Executive
function. Strategic Directors and Heads of Service are authorised to award
contracts that are not key decisions.

8. Table setting out financial thresholds and procedures
Total Value £ Type of Contract Procedure to be used

Up to £4,999 Works, supplies and At least one quote in
services advance
£5,000 to £49,999 Works, supplies and Contract Number required
services At least 3 written quotes
requested in advance
Over £50,000* Works, supplies and Contract Number required
services At least 3 written tenders
received and processed
through the Council’s
tender portal.
Key decisions are
contracts with a total
value of more
than£100,000 or for any
contract for a terms of
years with a value greater
than £25,000 per annum
and total contract value
over £100,000 exclusive
of indexation. The mean
average to be used where
annual payments are
uneven.

8.1  Where contracts are of a type and value that mean the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 apply care must be taken to ensure that the correct and
most appropriate procedure is used and assistance on the choice and use of
procedure should be sought from Procurement.

8.2  The Council has determined that any decision which involves income or

expenditure over £100,000 (or £100 million if it relates to treasury
management matters) or greater than £25,000 per annum for a contract with a

Page 240 PART 4 - SECTION |



8.3

8.4

9.1

9.2

9.3

term of years and total contract value over £100,000 is a key decision.
Therefore a decision by the Leader/Executive to commit the Council to
expenditure (e.g. to agree to enter a contract or delegate such authority to an
officer) of £100,000 or more or more than £25,000 per annum over the whole
length of the contract (including any options to extend) is a key decision and
the steps set out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules (Part 4,
Section F of the Constitution) must be followed. Notice of the intention to take
a key decision must be published in the Schedule of Key Decisions at least 28
clear days before that decision is taken.

A key decision taken by an officer or any decision (regardless of the amount
of the contract) taken by the Leader/Executive cannot be implemented until
the end of the call-in period or the scrutiny of that decision has been
completed (as set out in the Leader and Executive Procedure Rules (Part 4,
Section B of the Constitution refers). Accordingly, in determining a timetable
for the commencement of any contract, officers should take in account
provision for scrutiny.

Regarding any process to request quotes, Responsible Officers must ensure
that they consider the best means to access the widest market for works,
goods or services. Officers should also be mindful to be as inclusive as
possible when requesting quotes and this may be achieved by requesting
more than 3 quotes and rotating between suppliers for subsequent
procurements. Responsible Officers must also be mindful on how they can
promote the inclusion of local suppliers in all procurements to enhance social
value and achieve best value.

Financial Thresholds and Processes Applying to Approval and
Execution of Contracts

For contracts over the relevant threshold in the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (in force at the time), you must consult with procurement and legal at the
earliest opportunity and in any event before deciding on the purchasing
procedure or going to advert.

When a decision is made to award a contract then the Responsible Officer
must, in addition to complying with his/her general obligations under these
Contract Standing Orders ensure, in particular, that:

a) the appropriate approvals have been obtained to authorise that
decision; and

b) where appropriate, a standstill period complying with the Rules in the
Regulations is incorporated into the final award process.

Any contracts valued at £50,000 or above may be executed as a deed under
the Council’s common seal. Officers authorised to seal contracts may
determine whether or not it is appropriate to execute contracts under the
Council’'s common seal. For example, for construction contracts such officers
may consider a 12 year limitation period (as opposed to the standard 6 year
period) is beneficial to cover latent defects. This benefit is only available if

Page 241 PART 4 - SECTION |



10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.

11.1

12.

121

12.2

12.3

contracts are sealed. Officers with appropriate delegated authority may sign
contracts which are not required to be sealed. .

Calculating the Contract Value

The starting point for calculating the contract value for the purposes of these
Contract Standing Orders is that the contract value shall be the genuine pre-
estimate of the value of the entire contract excluding Value Added Tax. This
includes all payments to be made, or potentially to be made, under the
entirety of the contract and for the whole of the predicted contract period
(including proposed extensions, options and any ongoing revenue costs).

There shall be no artificial splitting of a contract to avoid the application of the
provisions of the Regulations and/or these Contract Standing Orders.

Where Responsible Officers are considering repeat orders with a particular
contractor, they must ensure that the cumulative value of the contract remains
below the threshold used for the original contract award. If it is likely that the
cumulative value of the contract would exceed such threshold, Responsible
Officers should seek advice from legal or procurement on the options to
ensure compliance with these Contract Standings Orders and Regulations.

Principles Underlying Tendering Processes and Tender Evaluation

All tendering procedures (including obtaining quotes), from planning to
contract award and signature, shall be undertaken in a manner so as to
ensure:

a) Sufficient time is given to plan and run the process

b) Equal opportunity and equal treatment

c) Openness and transparency

d) Probity

e) Outcomes that deliver sustainability, efficiency and cost savings (where
appropriate).

Submission and Opening of Tenders
An Invitation to Tender shall be issued by the Council for all contracts over
£50,000 and tenders shall be submitted in accordance with the requirements

of the Invitation to Tender.

It is a requirement that all tenders over £50,000 shall use the Council’s
electronic tendering portal unless the portal is not available.

If the portal cannot be used then all tenders received shall be:
a) addressed to the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services

b) in a sealed envelope marked “Tender” followed by the contract number
and name to which it relates

Page 242 PART 4 - SECTION |



12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

14.

141

c) kept in a locked cabinet by the Strategic Director of Finance and
Customer Services or his/her nominee
d) retained unopened until the date and time specified for its opening.

No tender received after the time and date specified for its opening shall be
accepted or considered by the Council unless the relevant Budget Manager is
satisfied that there is sufficient evidence of the tender having been dispatched
in time for it to have arrived before the closing date and time, or other
exceptional circumstances apply and the other tenders have not been
opened.

Where Tenders are expected to have a value in excess of £100,000, and the
electronic tendering portal has NOT been used then they shall be opened in
the presence of the appropriate Portfolio Holder or another Executive
Member, a member of Internal audit or Strategic Director of Finance and
Customer Services or his/her nominee and the Responsible Officer nominated
by the relevant Budget Manager.

The Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services or the member of
internal audit shall undertake the completion of the Record of Receipt of
Tender Documents book including names and addresses, date and time of
opening and value. All taking part in the opening shall sign the book

The tender opening process for physical tenders is set out in detail at
Appendix 1 to these contract standing orders.

Evaluation of Quotes and Tender

All quotes and tenders shall be evaluated in accordance with evaluation
criteria which was included with the original tender pack to tenderers. Tenders
subject to the Regulations shall be evaluated in accordance with the
Regulations.

Save in exceptional circumstances approved in advance by the relevant
Service Manager, all contracts shall be awarded on the basis of the quote or
tender which represents best value for money to the Council and not on the
basis of lowest price.

The procurement documents must set out a clear and robust evaluation
methodology and Responsible Officers must investigate any Tenders or
Quotes which appear abnormally low.

Waivers
The requirement for the Council to follow these standing orders may be
waived in the following circumstances except requirements to comply with the

Transparency Code and post contract award procedures still apply:

a) For contracts which are not subject to the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 for which the work, supply or service is required as a matter of

Page 243 PART 4 - SECTION |



14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

15.

15.1

15.2

urgency and a delay would be likely to lead to financial loss, personal
injury or damage to property; or

b) Where it can be demonstrated that there is a genuine single source of
supply for the works/goods/service required

c) the circumstances set out in the Public Contract Regulations 2015
Regulation 32 apply (whether or not the contract is of a type which is
subject to the application of the Regulations); or

d) the contract is awarded under a framework agreement of a type where
a competition has already been undertaken on behalf of the Council; or

e) at the discretion of the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer who
may proceed in a manner most expedient to the efficient management
of the service/Council with reasons recorded in writing.

A Responsible Officer, who seeks a waiver of Contract Standing Orders, shall
do so only in advance and only in exceptional circumstances. Further
guidance on what may constitute exceptional circumstances permitting waiver
of these Contract Standing Orders is set out in the Council’s Purchasing
Guide.

All waivers from these Contract Standing Orders must be:

a) Fully documented

b) Subject to the completion of the Council’s standard waiver request form
to be submitted in advance to the Monitoring Officer and Section 151
Officer which shall include reasons for the waiver which demonstrate
that the waiver is genuinely required

c) Applications for waivers which are a result of poor contract planning will
rarely be considered genuinely exceptional.

All decisions on waivers must take into account:

a) Probity
b) Best value for money principles.

For contracts subject to the Regulations, any waiver from the requirement for
competition must meet the conditions set out in the Regulations in addition to
the general requirements above.

The Monitoring Officer will inform the relevant Portfolio Holder when a waiver
is granted and these will be reported to the Performance and Audit Scrutiny
Committee on an annual basis.

Extensions to Existing Contracts

Contracts can be extended where this was an option contained within the
original tender notice. Any extension on these grounds must be notified to
finance so they can update the contract register

Any other request for an extension will be considered as a request for a
waiver of procurement rules or modification permitted by the Public Contracts

Page 244 PART 4 - SECTION |



16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

17.

171

18.

18.1

Regulations 2015 and as such will only be granted in exceptional
circumstances.

Purchasing Schemes

A Responsible Officer may use Purchasing Schemes subject to the following
conditions and the Council’s Purchasing Guide.

Responsible Officers must check in advance that:

a) The Council is legally entitled to use the Purchasing Scheme

b) The purchases to be made do properly fall within the coverage of the
Purchasing Scheme

c) The establishment and operation of each Purchasing Scheme is in
compliance with the Regulations (where they apply) and meets the
Council's own requirements

A “Purchasing Scheme” may include:

a) Contractor prequalification lists such as “Constructionline”

b) Framework arrangements

c) Purchasing arrangements set up by central purchasing bodies and
commercial organisations

d) Consortium purchasing

e) Collaborative working arrangements

Where a Purchasing Scheme is used then there shall be a whole or partial
exemption from the obligations under these Contract Standing Orders in
respect of the choice and conduct of procedures to the extent permitted and
indicated in the Council’s Purchasing Guide.

Where tenders have been invited on behalf of any consortium or collaboration
of which the Council is a member, then the Procurement Rules adopted by
that body, provided they are the lead organisation, may be observed if they
differ from these rules. The responsible officer must satisfy himself that the
organisation concerned has complied with the Regulations if applicable.

Review and Changes to these Contract Standing Orders

These Contract Standing Orders shall be reviewed and updated on a regular
basis.

Transparency Code
For all contracts over £5,000 the following details must be published on the

Council’'s Contracts Register. Responsible Officer must liaise with the
Council’'s Procurement Officer regarding updating the Contracts Register.

Page 245 PART 4 - SECTION |



a) reference number

b) title of agreement

c) local authority department responsible

d) description of the goods and/or services being provided

e) supplier name and details

f) sum to be paid over the length of the contract or the estimated annual
spending or budget for the contract

(g) Value Added Tax that cannot be recovered

(h) start, end and review dates

(i) whether or not the contract was the result of an invitation to quote or a
published invitation to tender

(j) whether or not the supplier is a small or medium sized enterprise and/or a

voluntary or community sector organisation and where it is, provide the

relevant registration number

(
(
(
(
(
(

Page 246 PART 4 - SECTION |



Appendix 1
Tender opening
Instructions to opening officers

Present: Appropriate Portfolio Holder or another Executive
Member
Internal Audit Manager or Sec 151 Officer
Responsible Officer

Requirements: Unopened tenders
Tender Book

1. General

1.1Before opening the tenders the Internal Audit manager or Sec 151 Officer shall
check with the Post room that there are no tenders in the safe or at main
reception or in the post box at the designated time for receipt; and that all tenders
received up to that date are in his possession.

1.2 All tenders given to the member of internal audit should be properly sealed, dated
and timed on receipt and show no signs of being tampered with. Where there is
evidence of tampering the tender may still be opened but the member of internal
audit shall make a statement to that effect in the tender book

1.3The Member of Internal audit shall ensure prior to opening that each set of
tenders to be opened are identifiable as relating to the same scheme. At this
stage the internal audit manager should ascertain whether any late tenders have
arrived (see Note 2 below).

1.4 Tenders should be opened as soon as possible and arrangements should be
made in advance of that time with both Council Officers and Councillor to
facilitate the procedure.

1.5The Internal audit manager shall not destroy any of the tender envelopes but
shall return them to the department who invited the tenders who shall consider
their future retention. All envelopes relating to opened late tenders shall be kept.

1.61f due to unusual circumstances a problem arises which is not covered by this

code and cannot be resolved advice should be immediately sought from the
Head of Legal Services.

1.7 The details of each tenderer and the value shall be recorded in the Tender
register. The register shall be signed by all present to indicate that it represents a
true record.

2. Late tenders

2.1A late tender is any tender arriving after the designated time on or after the
appointed day.

Page 247 PART 4 - SECTION |



2.21In respect of all such tenders the envelopes shall be endorsed "late tender" and
shall specify the time and date received together with the signature of the
receiving officer.

Page 248 PART 4 - SECTION |



E-Tender opening
Instructions to opening officers

Present: Responsible Officer
Requirements: Unopened E-tenders
3. General

3.1 The Responsible Officer shall set the date and time of automated Tenderbox
Closure on the Delta E-Sourcing portal.

3.2The Responsible Officer shall ensure that E-Tenders are opened, viewed and
stored in accordance with Data Protection Act Principles and associated Council
policies. Furthermore the Responsible Officer will ensure that E-Tenders are only
accepted if submitted through the Delta E-Sourcing portal.

3.3E-Tenders shall be made available for the viewing of the Appropriate Portfolio
Holder or another Member of the Executive, Internal Audit Manager or Section
151 Officer should they request this.

3.41f due to unusual circumstances a problem arises which is not covered by this
code and cannot be resolved advice should be immediately sought from the
Head of Legal Services.

3.5The Responsible Officer shall ensure that the documents comprising each E-
Tender shall be retained in the corresponding Tenderbox on the Delta E-Sourcing
portal in line with the Council’s document retention policies.

4. Late E-Tenders

4.1A late E-Tender is any tender not submitted at the point of Tender Closure on the
Delta E-Sourcing portal. It is not possible for E-Tenders to be received in this
scenario and it is not acceptable to receive late E-Tenders through any other
channel.

Page 249 PART 4 - SECTION |



This page is intentionally left blank



1.1

1.2

PART 4 - PROCEDURAL RULES
SECTION J
OFFICER EMPLOYMENT RULES

Recruitment and appointment
Declarations

(@)  The Council will draw up a statement requiring any candidate for
appointment as an officer to state in writing whether they are the
parent, grandparent, partner, child, stepchild, adopted child, grandchild,
brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew or niece of an existing councillor or
officer of the Council; or of the partner of such persons.

(b)  No candidate so related to a councillor or an officer will be appointed
without the authority of the Chief Executive or an officer nominated by
him/her.

Seeking support for appointment

(@)  Subject to paragraph (c), the Council will disqualify any applicant who
directly or indirectly seeks the support of any councillor for any
appointment with the Council. The content of this paragraph will be
included in any recruitment information.

(b)  Subject to paragraph (c), no councillor will seek support for any person
for any appointment with the Council.

(c) Nothing in paragraphs (a) and (b) above will preclude a councillor from
giving a written reference for a candidate for submission with an
application for appointment.

Recruitment of Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive), Strategic
Directors and Heads of Service

Where the Council proposes to appoint the Head of Paid Service (Chief
Executive), Strategic Directors, and Heads of Service and it is not proposed
that the appointment be made exclusively from among existing officers, the
Council will:

(@) draw up a statement specifying:

(i) the duties of the officer concerned; and

(i) any qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person to be
appointed;

Page 251 PART 4 — SECTION J



(c)

make arrangements for the post to be advertised in such a way as is
likely to bring it to the attention of persons who are qualified to apply for
it; and

make arrangements for a copy of the statement mentioned in
paragraph 1 to be sent to any person on request.

Appointment of Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive)

(@)

(b)

The Full Council will approve the appointment of the Head of Paid
Service (Chief Executive) following the recommendation of such an
appointment by a committee or sub-committee of the Council. That
committee or sub-committee must include at least the Leader or one
Member of the Executive.

The Full Council may only make or approve the appointment of the
Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) where no well-founded
objection, as determined by the Monitoring Officer, has been made by
the Leader or any Member of the Executive.

Appointment of Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer (Chief
Finance Officer)

(@)

(b)

The Full Council will approve the appointment of the Monitoring Officer
and Section 151 Officer (Chief Finance Officer).

The Full Council may only make or approve the appointment of the
Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer (Chief Finance Officer)
where no well-founded objection, as determined by the Monitoring
Officer, has been made by the Leader or any Member of the Executive.

Appointment of Strategic Directors and Heads of Service

(@)

(b)

A committee or sub-committee of the Council will appoint the Strategic
Directors and Heads of Service. That committee or sub-committee
must include at least the Leader or one Member of the Executive.

An offer of employment as the Strategic Director or Head of Service will
only be made where no well-founded objection, as determined by the
Monitoring Officer, from the Leader or any Member of the Executive
has been received.

Other appointments

(a)

Officers below Head of Service
Appointment of officers below Heads of Service level is the

responsibility of the Head of Paid Service or his/her nominee, and may
not be made by councillors.

Page 252 PART 4 — SECTION J



(b) Deputy Monitoring Officer and Deputy Section 151 Officer

The appointment of the Deputy Monitoring Officer is the responsibility
of the Monitoring Officer and the appointment of the Deputy Section
151 Officer is the responsibility of the Section 151 Officer.

7. Disciplinary action
(@) Suspension

The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and the Section 151
Officer may be suspended by the Council, the Employment Committee
or, where short notice is required, by the Head of HR, Performance and
Communications on the instruction of the Employment Committee
Chairman for up to 10 working days pending further decision by the
Employment Committee, whilst an investigation takes place into
alleged misconduct.

(b) Disciplinary Process

Any disciplinary action taken in respect of a Statutory Officer will be
conducted in accordance with the following:

(i) Any allegations of misconduct will be referred to a Hearing Sub
Committee which will decide whether to appoint an Independent
Investigator to investigate the allegations or whether no further
action should be taken.

(ii) Where an investigation is appointed, that Hearing Sub
Committee will receive the investigator’s report and consider
whether to refer the matter to a new Hearing Sub Committee, or
whether no further action should be taken.

(i) A Hearing Sub Committee will consider whether the allegations
are substantiated and, if so, whether one of the following
outcomes is appropriate:

a) Dismissal;

b) Disciplinary action short of dismissal;

c) Informal action, such as training or mentoring;
d) No further action.

(iv)  In cases where the recommended action is dismissal of a
Statutory Officer, an Independent Panel will be appointed in
accordance with Regulations and the decision maker must have
regard to (A) any advice, views and recommendations of the
panel, (B) the conclusions of any investigation into the proposed
dismissal and (C) any representations from the relevant officer.

! Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015

Page 253 PART 4 — SECTION J



(c)

(V) In cases where the recommended action is dismissal of a
Statutory Officer, the decision will be referred to the Full Council
for decision, having followed the process at (iv) above.

(vi)  An Appeals Sub Committee will consider any appeals by a
Statutory Officer to any disciplinary action taken against them
where the action imposed falls short of dismissal.

Any initial disciplinary action taken in respect of non-statutory Strategic
Directors and Heads of Service will be dealt with under authority
delegated to the Head of Paid Service. However, it may on occasion be
appropriate for a matter to be referred by the Head of Paid Service to
Members, in which case the matter will be conducted in accordance
with (i) — (iii) above.

(vii)  An Appeals Sub Committee will consider any appeals by a non-
Statutory Strategic Directors and Heads of Service to any
disciplinary action taken against them.

(viii)  All Disciplinary processes considered by Councillors will be
carried out in accordance with the Disciplinary & Grievance
Policy and Procedures for Statutory and non-Statutory CMT
Officers in the Council’s HR Policies and Procedures.

Officers below Head of Service

Councillors will not be involved in the disciplinary action against any
officer below Head of Service level except where such involvement is
necessary for any investigation or inquiry into alleged misconduct,
though the Council’s disciplinary, capability and related procedures, as
adopted from time to time may allow a right of appeal to members in
respect of disciplinary action.

Dismissal

Councillors will not be involved in the dismissal of any officer below Head of
Service level except where such involvement is necessary for any
investigation or inquiry into alleged misconduct, though the Council’s
disciplinary, capability and related procedures, as adopted from time to time
may allow a right of appeal to members in respect of dismissals.

Grievances

Any grievances raised by or against Statutory Officers will be heard by a
Hearing Sub Committee. Any appeals will be heard by an Appeals Sub
Committee.

Page 254 PART 4 — SECTION J



Except in cases where (c) applies, any grievances raised by or against a non-
Statutory Strategic Director or Head of Service will be dealt with by the Head
of Paid Service.

Any grievances raised by or against a non-Statutory Strategic Director or
Head of Service must be referred by the Head of Paid Service for
determination by a Hearing Sub Committee, where reasons of impartiality, or
other relevant considerations, make it appropriate to do so.

Any appeals relating to grievances for Statutory Officers and non-Statutory
Strategic Directors or Heads of Service will be referred to an Appeals Sub
Committee for determination.

All Grievances considered by Councillors will be carried out in accordance

with the Disciplinary and the Grievance Policy and Procedures for Statutory
and non-Statutory CMT Officers in the Council’'s HR Policies and Procedures.

Page 255 PART 4 — SECTION J



This page is intentionally left blank



1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

PART 4 - PROCEDURE RULES

SECTION K

SUBSTITUTION PROCEDURE RULES

INTRODUCTION

The Council recognises that the purpose of the Local Government
(Committees and Political Groups) Regulations is to ensure that, in the
decision-making process, the political balance of and representation on
committees and sub-committees is maintained. This Scheme for the use of
substitutes has been adopted to ensure this principle is maintained.

APPLICATION

The scheme will apply to all committees, sub-committees and working groups
except

(i) the Executive and any Executive sub-committee;
(i) the Licensing Committee; and

(i)  the Licensing Sub-Committees, Standards Sub-Committees, and the 3
sub-committees of the Employment Committee, whose members and
substitute members are appointed by officers under the Scheme of
Delegation of Functions to Officers.

The Committees, Sub Committees and Other Bodies Procedure Rules provide
for substitute members of the Audit & Standards Committee and the
Employment Committee to participate in sub committees in certain
circumstances.

NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT

The Council, when establishing committees and working groups of the
Council, will also appoint substitutes to those bodies on the nomination of the
political group leaders. Substitutes to other working groups will be appointed
by the establishing body as appropriate.

The number of substitutes appointed will relate to the number of seats that
each political group or grouping has on the body concerned as follows:

= More than 10 seats — 4 substitutes
= 6 to 10 seats - 3 substitutes

= 2 to 5 seats - 2 substitutes

= 1 seat - 1 substitute.

Page 257 PART 4 - SECTION K



3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

5.1

5.2

On appointment, it shall be the responsibility of a substitute member to keep
up to date with the business of the body to which he or she has been
appointed to ensure effective decision making.

ATTENDANCE

It is the responsibility of the member to arrange for an appointed substitute to
attend when he or she is unable to do so, and inform their party group leader
Only the appointed substitute members of a body may serve as a member of
that body.

A substitute may only serve as a member at any meeting at which another
member of the same political group is absent for the entire meeting. A
substitute may not be appointed for specific items and no substitutions may be
made during the course of the meeting, except as referred to in 4.6 below.

Immediately prior to the commencement of a meeting (or, if appropriate, on
his or her arrival if the meeting has started) the appointed substitute will
advise the Chairman and those present that he or she is attending as a
substitute member.

If an appointed member attends a meeting after arranging for a substitute
member to attend, the substitute member will continue as a voting member of
the committee. If a substitute, however, has not arrived by the
commencement of the meeting and the original appointed member is present,
then the appointed member will continue as a voting member of the
committee.

Where a substitute member has attended a meeting which is adjourned to a
subsequent date, the appointed member may attend the reconvened meeting
as the voting member, provided that the meeting is not part way through the
consideration of an item or issue.

Any member attending as the appointed substitute will be entitled to travelling
and subsistence allowance in accordance with the scheme approved by the
Council.

VOTING

The substitute member will be entitled to speak and vote in his or her own
capacity, and is not constrained by the views of the member for whom he or
she is substituting.

No substitute member for the Planning Applications Committee or any other
committee or sub-committee making quasi-judicial decisions may vote unless
he or she has been present for the entire consideration of the item under
discussion.

Page 258 PART 4 - SECTION K



5.3  No substitute member for the Planning Applications Committee may vote on
any matter unless they have received suitable training.

Page 259 PART 4 - SECTION K



This page is intentionally left blank



1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

PART 4 - PROCEDURE RULES

SECTION L

PETITIONS SCHEME

INTRODUCTION

The Council welcomes petitions as a way in which people can let the Council
know their concerns.

A petition will be treated as such if it is identified as being a petition, or if it
seems to the Head of Legal & Democratic Services that it is intended to be a
petition. A petition created both on-line and on paper will only be treated as
being a single petition if the action requested is identical. The paper element
of the petition must be received by the Council before the date of the closure
of the on-line element.

In the event that 2 petitions are submitted by different petition organisers
where the action requested is identical, the first petitioner to submit their
petition will, where relevant, have the opportunity to present their petition to a
meeting.

2. GUIDELINES FOR SUBMITTING A PETITION

2.1

2.2

2.3

Petitions submitted to the Council must include

2.1.1a clear and concise statement covering the subject of the petition, state
what action the petitioners wish the Council to take,

2.1.2the name and address and signature of people in support of the
petition, and

2.1.3the name, address and contact details of the petition organiser. (If the
petition does not identify a petition organiser, the Council will contact
signatories to agree who should act as the organiser).

Petitions which are considered by the Council’s Monitoring Officer to be
vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate will not be accepted.

Petitions submitted in the period immediately before an election or referendum

may be dealt with differently. The reasons for this, and possible revised
timescales, will be explained.

Page 261



2.4

If a petition does not follow the guidelines set out above, the Council may
decide not to do anything further with it. In this instance the petitioner will be
informed of the reasons for this decision.

3. ACTION ON RECEIPT OF PETITIONS

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

An acknowledgement will be sent to the petition organiser within 10 working
days of receiving the petition. If the Council can do what the petition asks for
the acknowledgement may confirm that the action requested has been taken.
Otherwise the acknowledgement will inform the petitioner of the action the
Council will take and, where relevant, the details of the meeting it is referred
to. It will also be published on the Council’'s website.

The response from the Council will depend upon the number of signatures
received:

Number of signatures Minimum response

received

up to 99 A response from the relevant officer
100 to 499 A response from the relevant Portfolio

Holder or relevant committee Chairman

500 or more Referred to the Executive or Full Council
or relevant standing Committee *

If the petition reaches the required number of signatures to trigger a referral to
Executive or Full Council then the acknowledgment will confirm this and inform
the petitioner when and where the meeting will take place. If the petition needs
further investigation, the petitioner will be informed of the steps the Council
proposes to take.

No action will be taken in respect of any petition considered by the Council’s
Monitoring Officer to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate. The
reasons for this will be explained in the acknowledgement of the petition.

The scheme will not apply when the petition concerns a planning or licensing
application, is a statutory petition (for example requesting a referendum on
having an elected mayor), or relates to a matter where there is already an
existing right of appeal, such as council tax banding and non-domestic rates,
or where other procedures apply.

Details of all the petitions submitted to the Council will be published on the
Council’'s website, except in cases where this would be inappropriate.

Page 262



Whenever possible the Council will also publish all correspondence relating to
the petition (all personal details will be removed).

4. RESPONSE TO PETITIONS

4.1

4.2

The Council’s response to a petition will depend on what a petition asks for
and how many people have signed it, but may include one or more of the
following:

taking the action requested in the petition
considering the petition at meeting of the Executive or the Council
holding an inquiry into the matter
undertaking research into the matter
holding a public meeting
holding a consultation
holding a meeting with petitioners
referring the petition for consideration by one of the council’s scrutiny
committees
calling a referendum
Owrltlng to the petition organiser setting out the Council’s views about
the request in the petition

APAAMAEAD
RS\ NG, NS "GN . \ . W —
NN WN

B
—_—
= ©

In addition to these steps, the Council will consider all the specific actions it
can potentially take on the issues highlighted in a petition.

5. DEBATES AT FULL COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE MEETINGS

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

A petition containing 500 or more signatures will be debated by either the Full
Council the Executive, or relevant standing Committee depending on the
issue. This will usually be at the next meeting, although on some occasions
this may not be possible and consideration will then take place at the following
meeting.

The petition organiser will be given five minutes to present the petition at the
meeting and the petition will then be debated. The Council, the Executive or
relevant standing Committee will decide how to respond to the petition at this
meeting. They may decide to take the action the petition requests, not to take
the action requested for reasons put forward in the debate, or to commission
further investigation into the matter, for example by a relevant committee.

Where a petition is heard at a meeting of the Executive, the Chairman will
ensure that all Members in attendance at the meeting are given an opportunity
to speak on the matter to ensure there is a full debate on the petition.

The petition organiser will receive written confirmation of this decision and
confirmation will be published on the Council’'s website.

6. E-PETITIONS

Page 263



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

The Council accepts e-petitions provided they are created and submitted
through the Council’s e-petitions facility website at www.surreyheath.gov.uk.

E-petitions must follow the same guidelines as paper petitions as set out in
this scheme.

The petition’s creator must provide their name and postal email addresses.
The petition creator must specify how long the petition will be open for
signatures, up to a maximum of 12 months.

The Council may take up to five working days after receiving an e-petition to
publish it online. This will allow the Council time to determine if the petition is
suitable for publication.

If the Council decides it is unable to publish the petition for some reason, the
petitioner will be contacted within five working days to explain. The petitioner
will be given the opportunity to change and resubmit the petition if they wish. If
this is not done within 10 working days, a summary of the petition and the
reason why it has not been accepted will be published under the ‘rejected
petitions’ section of the website.

When an e-petition has closed for signature, the Democratic Services
Manager will send an acknowledgement within 10 working days.

A petition acknowledgement and response will be emailed to everyone who
has signed the e-petition and elected to receive this information. The
acknowledgment and response will also be published on the Council’s
website.

7. SIGNING AN E-PETITION

7.1

Those wishing to sign an e-petition must provide their name, postcode and a
valid email address. Only the name of the signatory will be included on the
public section of the petition.

Page 264


http://www.surreyheath.gov.uk/

PART 5

CODES AND PROTOCOLS

Section
A Members’ Code of Conduct Green
B Member and Officer Protocol Blue
C IT Code of Practice for Members Grey
D Planning Code of Practice for Councillors and Officers Pink
E Monitoring Officer Protocol Lilac

Page 265



This page is intentionally left blank



1.1.

1.2.

PART 5 - CODES AND PROTOCOLS
SECTION A

MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

PART 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS
Introduction and Interpretation

This Code applies to you only when acting in your capacity either as a
councillor or co-opted member of the Council or its committees and sub-
committees. This Code also applies where your actions would give the
impression to a reasonable member of the public with knowledge of all the
facts that you are acting as a councillor or co-opted member. In applying this
Code the Monitoring Officer, or Deputy Monitoring Officer as the case may be,
shall recognise and give due consideration to every councillor’s right to
enhanced protection in respect of political expression.

It is your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code which will
assist the Council in meeting its statutory obligation to promote and maintain
high standards of conduct by its councillors and co-opted members in
accordance with the following principles:

(a) Selflessness. Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the
public interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other
material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends.

(b) Integrity. Holders of public office should not place themselves under
any financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations
that might seek to influence them in the performance of their official
duties.

(c) Obijectivity. In carrying out public business, including making public
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for
rewards and benefits, holders of public office should make choices on
merit.

(d) Accountability. Holders of public office are accountable for their
decisions and actions to the public and must submit themselves to
whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.

(e) Openness. Holders of public office should be as open as possible
about all the decisions and actions that they take. They should give
reasons for their decisions and restrict information only when the wider
public interest clearly demands.

Page 267 PART 5— SECTION A



1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

(f)  Honesty. Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private
interests relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any
conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest.

(g) Leadership Holders of public office should promote and support these
principles by leadership and example.

In this Code, disclosable pecuniary interests are the interests specified in the
Schedule to the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interest)
Regulations 2012 (attached as Annex A ) and

(a) it is an interest that you have personally, or
(b) it is an interest of:

I. your spouse or civil partner,
ii. a person with whom you are living as husband and wife, or
iii. a person with whom you are living as if you were civil partners,

and you are aware that that other person has the interest.
In this Code, “meeting” means any meeting of:-
(@)  the Council;
(b)  the Executive of the Council;

(c) any of the Council’s or its Executive’s committees, sub-committees,
joint committees, joint sub-committees or area committees, including
any site visit authorised by the Council, the Executive or any of the
aforementioned committees.

This Code does not cover matters in respect of which the Secretary of State
may, under the Localism Act 2011, specifically provide that criminal sanctions

will apply.

A failure of a councillor or co-opted member to comply with this Code is not to
be dealt with otherwise than in accordance with arrangements approved by
the Council under which allegations of such failure can be investigated and
decisions on such allegations can be made. In particular, a decision is not
invalidated just because something that occurred in the process of making the
decision involved a failure by a councillor or co-opted member to comply with
the Code.

2. General Obligations

2.1.

You must:-

(a) treat others with respect;

Page 268 PART 5 SECTION A



(b) be transparent about conflicts of interest;

(c) act lawfully;

(d) act with integrity and honesty

2.2.  You must not:-

(@)

(b)
(c)

(d)

do anything which may cause the Council to breach any of the equality
enactments;

bully or harass any person;
intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to be:-
(i) a complainant,
(i) a witness, or
(i)  involved in the administration of any investigation or
proceedings,
in relation to an allegation that a councillor or co-opted member
(including yourself) has failed to comply with this code of

conduct; or

do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, the Council.

2.3.  You must not:-

(a)

disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or

information acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to

be aware, is of a confidential nature, except where:-

(i) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it;

(i) you are required by law to do so;

(iii)  the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of
obtaining professional advice provided that the third party agrees
not to disclose the information to any other person; or

(iv)  the disclosure is:-

o reasonable and in the public interest; and

o made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable
requirements of the Council; or

prevent another person from gaining access to information to which that
person is entitled by law.

Page 269 PART 5 SECTION A



2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be
regarded as bringing your office or the Council into disrepute, or in a manner
which is contrary to the Council’s duty to promote and maintain high standards
of conduct by councillors and co-opted members.

You:-

(@) must not use or attempt to use your position as a councillor or co-opted
member improperly to confer on or secure for yourself or any other
person, an advantage or disadvantage; and

(b)  must, when using or authorising the use by others of the Council’s
resources:-

i act in accordance with the Council’s reasonable requirements;

ii. ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political
purposes (including party political purposes); and

(c) must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity
made under the Local Government Act 1986 and to the Council’s
Guidance on Publicity and Conduct for Councillors and Officers Prior To
an Election.

When reaching decisions on any matter you must have regard to any relevant
advice provided to you by the Council’s Chief Finance Officer or Monitoring
Officer where that officer is acting pursuant to their statutory duties.

You must give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory

requirements and any reasonable additional requirements imposed by the
Council.

Page 270 PART 5— SECTION A



PART 2
INTERESTS
1. Registration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

1.1.  As a councillor or co-opted member of the Council you must avoid
participating in any decision where you could reasonably be seen as having an
interest which compromises your honesty or objectivity. Equally you should
avoid any action which might reasonably lead others to conclude that you
were not acting selflessly or with integrity. In order to assist with this and to
promote openness and accountability, the Monitoring Officer must, by law,
establish and maintain a register of interests, open for inspection by the public
at the Council’s offices and publicly accessible on the Council’s website.

1.2.  You must, before the end of 28 days beginning with the day on which you
became a councillor or co-opted member of the Council or this Code being
adopted by the Council, notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable
pecuniary interests which you have at the time when the notification is given.
These interests will then be entered on the register of interests.

1.3. Where you become a councillor or co-opted member of the Council as a result
of re-election or re-appointment, paragraph 1.2 applies only as regards
disclosable pecuniary interests not entered in the register when the notification
is given.

2. Disclosure of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and participation in decision
making

2.1. Subject to paragraph 4 (dispensations), if you are present at any meeting and
you are aware that you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter
that will be, or is being, considered at that meeting, you must, irrespective of
whether that interest has been registered:

(a) disclose the nature of the interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive
interest as described in paragraph 5 below, disclose merely the fact that
it is a disclosable pecuniary interest);

(b)  not participate in any discussion or vote regarding that matter; and

(c)  withdraw immediately from the room or chamber (including the public
gallery) where the meeting considering that matter is being held.

Where you have not previously notified the Monitoring Officer of that
disclosable pecuniary interest you must also do so within 28 days of the date
of the meeting at which it became apparent.

2.2. Subject to paragraph 4 (dispensations), if you are aware that you have a
disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter on which either:

Page 271 PART 5 — SECTION A



2.3.

(a) you are authorised to make decisions, or
(b)  you are consulted by an officer discharging powers delegated to them,

you must not, in relation to (a) above, take any decision on that matter or, in
relation to (b) above, participate in any consultation with such officer in respect
of that matter.

Where you have not previously notified the Monitoring Officer of that
disclosable pecuniary interest you must do so within 28 days of the date on
which it became apparent.

You may participate in any business of the Council where that business
relates to the Council’s functions in respect of:-

(@) housing, where you are a tenant of your authority provided that those
functions do not relate particularly to your tenancy or lease;

(b)  school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, where you
are a parent or guardian of a child in full-time education, or are a parent
governor of a school, unless it relates particularly to the school which
the child attends;

(c)  statutory sick pay under Part Xl of the Social Security Contributions and
Benefits Act 1992, where you are in receipt of, or are entitled to the
receipt of, such pay;

(d)  an allowance, payment or indemnity given to councillors or co-opted
members;

(e)  any ceremonial honour given to councillors; and

(f) setting Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance
Act 1992.

3. Registration and Disclosure of Non-Pecuniary Interests

3.1.

You have a non-pecuniary interest in any business of the Council where it
relates to or is likely to affect

(1) any body to which you are appointed or nominated to by the Council;

(i)  any body, of which you are a member or have a close connection with,
which exercises functions of a public nature; or is directed to charitable
purposes; or is one of whose principal purposes includes the influencing
of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union),

(iii)  the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or
hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25;

Page 272 PART 5 — SECTION A



(iv)  Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your
financial interest (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in
Annex A) or a financial interest of a close relative or close associate.

(v)  Where a matter arises at a Planning Committee meeting which may,
due to proximity, have an impact on land or property you own or
otherwise have a legal or beneficial interest.

3.2.  Where you attend a meeting of the Council, and you have a non-pecuniary
interest in any business being considered, you must disclose to that meeting
the existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that
consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent. The existence and
disclosure of a non-pecuniary interest under sections 3.1 (i), (ii), (iii) or (v)
does not prevent you from taking part in the debate and voting on that
business unless you consider that the interest affects your judgment or
impartiality. The existence and disclosure of a non-pecuniary interest under
section 3.1 (iv) means you must not participate in any discussion or vote
regarding the relevant matter(s) and you must withdraw immediately from the
room or chamber (including the public gallery) where the meeting considering
that matter is being held.

3.3. Sub-paragraph 3.2 only applies where you are aware or ought reasonably to
be aware of the existence of the non-pecuniary interest.

3.4. You must, within 28 days of

(@)  this Code being adopted by the Council; or
(b)  your election or appointment to office (where that is later),

register in the Council’s register of members' interests details of your non-
pecuniary interests where they fall within a category mentioned in paragraph
3.1 by providing written notification to the Council’s Monitoring Officer.

3.5.  You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any changes to your non-
pecuniary interests, register details of those changes in the Council’s register
of members' interests.

3.6. Entries in the register of interests will be removed once the person concerned
no longer has the interest, or is neither a councillor nor a co-opted member of
the Council.

4. Dispensations
4.1. A councillor or co-opted member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in a
matter may submit a written request to the Monitoring Officer for the grant of a

dispensation allowing that councillor or co-opted member to participate in any
discussion and/or vote on that matter at a meeting.

Page 273 PART 5 SECTION A



4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

The Monitoring Officer may, after having had regard to all relevant
circumstances, grant a dispensation to the councillor or co-opted member only
if, he/she considers that without the dispensation:

(a)  the number of persons prohibited from participating in any particular
business in relation to the matter would be so great a proportion of the
body transacting the business as to impede the transaction of that
business, or

(b)  considers that without the dispensation each member of the Executive
would be prohibited from participating in any particular business to be
transacted by the Executive in relation to the matter.

The Audit & Standards Committee may, after having had regard to all relevant
circumstances, grant a dispensation to the councillor or co-opted member only
if, the Committee considers that:

(@)  without the dispensation the representation of different political groups
on the body transacting the particular business would be so upset as to
alter the likely outcome of any vote relating to that business, or

(b)  granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the
borough, or

(c) it is otherwise appropriate to grant the dispensation.

Any dispensation granted must specify the period for which it has effect, and
the period specified may not exceed four years.

5. Sensitive Information

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

Sub-paragraphs 5.2 and 5.3 apply where:

(a) a councillor or co-opted member of the Council has an interest (whether
or not a disclosable pecuniary interest), and

(b) the nature of the interest is such that the councillor or co-opted
member, and the Monitoring Officer, consider that disclosure of the
details of the interest could lead to the councillor or co-opted member,
or a person connected with that councillor or co-opted member, being
subject to violence or intimidation.

If the interest is entered in the register of interests, copies of the register that
are made available for inspection, and any version of the register published on
the Council’s website, must not include details of the interest (but may state
that the councillor or co-opted member has an interest the details of which are
withheld under this provision of the Code).

Where a disclosable pecuniary interest is not entered on the register of
interests and would otherwise require disclosure at a meeting, the councillor or

Page 274 PART 5 — SECTION A



co-opted member shall be entitled to merely disclose at the meeting the fact
that they have such an interest in the matter concerned.

6. Acceptance of Gifts and Hospitality

6.1.

6.2.

As a councillor or co-opted member of the Council you must avoid accepting
any gift, hospitality or other favour which could give the impression of
compromising your honesty or objectivity. In particular you

(@)  should avoid any behaviour which might reasonably be seen as
motivated by personal gain;

(b)  should exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are
(or which you might reasonably believe to be) offered to you because
you are a councillor or co-opted member;

(c)  should never accept significant gifts or hospitality (i.e. anything with a
value of £25 or more) from suppliers or contractors seeking to acquire
or develop business with the Council; and

(d)  must register any gift you receive or hospitality you accept (of a value of
£25 or more) in the register of interests maintained by the Council.

The requirement to register the acceptance of hospitality of a value of £25 or
more does not apply to Councillors undertaking Mayoral duties or when
representing the Council at mayoral engagements. A list of current Mayoral
Engagements is published on the Council’s Website.

7. Pre-determination or bias

7.1.

7.2.

Where you have been involved in campaigning in your political role on an
issue which does not impact on your personal and/or professional life you
should not be prohibited from participating in a decision in your political role as
councillor, however you should not place yourself under any financial or other
obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to influence
you in the performance of your official duties.

When making a decision, you should always consider the matter with an open
mind and on the facts before the meeting at which the decision is to be taken.
When making a decision, if you are not able to consider a particular matter
with an open mind you should not participate in the debate or vote
notwithstanding that you may be predisposed or have expressed previous
views. You must also withdraw immediately from the room or chamber
(including the public gallery) where the meeting considering that matter is
being held.

Page 275 PART 5 SECTION A



Annex A

The Schedule to the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary
Interest) Regulations 2012

Subject

Prescribed description

Employment, office,
trade, profession or
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or
vocation carried on for profit or gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial
benefit (other than from the relevant authority) made
or provided within the relevant period in respect of
any expenses incurred by M* in carrying out duties
as a member, or towards the election expenses of M.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union
and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts

Any contract which is made between the relevant
person (or a body in which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest) and the relevant authority

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided
or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the
area of the relevant authority.

Licences

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy
land in the area of the relevant authority for a month
or longer.

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge)

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person

has a beneficial interest.

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where
(a) that body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of
business or land in the area of the relevant authority;
and

(b) either

*Note “M” means a member or co-opted member of the Council.

Page 276 PART 5— SECTION A




Annex A

(i) the total nominal value of the securities
exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than
one class, the total nominal value of the shares of
any one class in which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.

Page 277 PART 5 — SECTION A




This page is intentionally left blank



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

PART 5 - CODES AND PROTOCOLS
SECTION B

MEMBER AND OFFICER PROTOCOL
INTRODUCTION AND PRINCIPLES

The purpose of this protocol is to provide a guide to good working
relationships between officers and councillors (elected Members) and to
provide some principles governing appropriate conduct. The object of this
Protocol is to enhance and maintain the integrity (real and perceived) of local
government by demanding very high standards of personal conduct by
elected Members and officers. Throughout this document "officer" shall be
defined as being any employee of the Council, whether employed full-time,
part-time or on a temporary contract.

The protocol seeks to reflect the principles underlying the separate Codes of
Conduct for Members and Officers of the Council, which must be read in
conjunction with this document.

In everything they do, the elected Members and officers of the Borough
Council are obliged to act within the law and in compliance with relevant
standards and codes of conduct.

All elected members of the Council are ultimately accountable to the people of
the Borough of Surrey Heath. The officers serve the whole Council as a
single statutory corporate body and will provide adequate support to all
elected members in their local or representational role. Members and officers
need to be clear about their respective roles in the authority. This can only be
achieved if there is mutual understanding and good communications.

Mutual respect and courtesy between officers and Members is essential to
good local government. The interests of the Council are best served where
there is mutual confidence and trust between all elected Members and
officers. The working relationship between an officer and a Member must not
be so close as to bring into question the officer's ability to deal impartially and
fairly with other Members.

Members must recognise that officers are required to be politically neutral and
serve all Members equally and that officers owe a duty to the whole Council.
Members must ensure that officers are not put in a position that prejudices
their overall duty or put an officer in a position where there would be a conflict
between that officer and his or her line manager. Members must not give
direct instructions to junior officers but must communicate with senior officers.
Members must not put pressure on, or seek to intimidate, officers.

Neither Members nor officers must try to take unfair advantage of their
position.

Page 279 PART 5 - SECTION B



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

STATUTORY CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS

The Council's Code of Conduct for Members is at Section A of Part 5 of this
Constitution. This Code of Conduct sets out the standards of conduct and
integrity which are expected of an elected Member. Various provisions of the
Code are relevant to member/officer relations and are referred to in this
Protocol.

Code of Conduct broadly requires Members:

a) to treat others with respect;

b) not to do anything which could be considered to be a breach of any
equality legislation;

c) not to bully any person;

d) not to intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person in relation to an
allegation that a Member has failed to comply with the authority's Code
of Conduct; and

e) not to do anything likely to compromise the impartiality of officers.

It is important that in any dealings between Members and officers both must
observe reasonable standards of courtesy, and that neither party must seek to
take unfair advantage of their position.

The Code of Conduct also requires Members, when reaching decisions, to
have regard to any relevant advice provided by the Section 151 Officer (when
acting in pursuance of his duties under Section 114 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1988) and the Monitoring Officer (when acting in pursuance of his
duties under Section 5(2) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989).

The Council confirms that, in undertaking their functions, the Section 151
Officer, acting as Chief Finance Officer, and the Monitoring Officer will ensure
the impartiality of any advice or instruction given, and that Members will do
nothing to compromise the statutory responsibilities of these officers.

The Code of Conduct also requires Members not to seek to influence
improperly a decision and not to exercise functions in relation to any business
of the Council where the Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.

The Code of Conduct states that Members must not disclose information
given to them in confidence, or information which they believe to be
confidential, without the consent of a person authorised to give it, or unless
required by law to do so. If the Monitoring Officer considers that a Member
has disclosed confidential information obtained in the course of his/her duties,
the matter may be investigated.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR OFFICERS
The Code of Conduct for Officers forms part of officers’ Terms and Conditions

of Employment. It sets out the standards of conduct and integrity which are
expected of a local government officer and the standard of service to the

Page 280 PART 5 - SECTION B



3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

public. It reiterates that mutual respect between officers and councillors is
essential to good government.

Certain provisions within the Code relate to Member and officer relationships
and appropriate conduct. The Code requires officers to serve the authority as
a whole, serving all councillors whilst maintaining political neutrality at all
times, and to ensure that the individual rights of all councillors are respected.
Where it is part of their duties officers must provide appropriate advice to
councillors and fellow officers with impartiality. They must not release any
confidential information or use information obtained in the course of their
employment for personal gain or pass it on to others who might use it in such
a way.

Officers are responsible to the authority through their Strategic Director or
Head of Service and must follow every lawful expressed policy of the authority
and must not allow their own personal or political opinions to interfere with
their work.

THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

General

Mutual respect between councillors and officers is essential to good local
government. Close personal familiarity between individual Members and
officers can damage this relationship and prove embarrassing to other
councillors and officers. Such a personal familiarity is discouraged as there is
a danger of favouritism being shown to a particular Member or officer or a risk
that confidential information will be shared. Members must at all times avoid
any occasion for suspicion and any appearance of improper conduct. lItis,
however, recognised that there may be occasions when familiarity is
unavoidable, particularly where family relationships or common interests (eg a
club) arise.

The Council recognises that in a large organisation it is inevitable that there
may be close social or personal relationships between members and officers.
These relationships may have commenced before, or after, a councillor is
elected to the Council or before, or after, a person becomes employed by the
Council.

Disclosure of close personal relationships

The councillor must disclose any relationship with an officer which might be
seen as influencing their work to his Group Leader and the Monitoring Officer,
and the employee such a relationship to his/her Strategic Director or Head of
Service. This includes any family, business or close personal relationships. It
is not possible to define exactly the range of relationship that would be
considered as close or personal. Examples, however, would include a family
or sexual relationship and regular social mixing such as holidays or evening
meals together.

Page 281 PART 5 — SECTION B



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Any disclosures must be made in writing to the Monitoring Officer. This is to
protect both the individual and the Council.

To ensure that neither the Member nor the employee is placed in a position
where their relationship will be seen to conflict with this Protocol or with the
Council's Code of Conduct, Members must not hold a portfolio or the position
of chairman of a regulatory committee which covers a department for which
an officer does significant work if they are related to, or the partner of, that
officer. A role in policy making, strategic or operational management or
resource allocation would be considered as significant work.

Working relationships between Members and officers

It is clearly important that there must be a close working relationship between
Members and senior officers. However, such relationships must never be
allowed to become so close, or appear to be so close, as to bring into
question the officers’ ability to deal with other Members and other party
groups.

The relevant portfolio holder or the Chairman of a Committee are usually
consulted as part of the process of drawing up the agenda for a forthcoming
meeting. Sometimes an officer will be under a duty to submit a report to a
meeting on a particular matter. A senior officer will always be fully
responsible for the contents of any report submitted by his/her service area.
This means that any such report will be amended only where the amendment
reflects the professional judgement of the author of the report. Any issues
arising in this area must be referred to the relevant Lead Officer for resolution
in conjunction with the Leader of the Council or Chairman of the Committee,
as appropriate. The advice of the Monitoring Officer should be sought where
necessary.

Members have the right to question/challenge reports and the actions taken
by officers but they must always

a) avoid physical or personal attacks on or abuse of officers

b) ensure that any criticism is constructive and well founded

c) respect professional advice

d) allow the officer an opportunity to explain what might appear to be a
performance failure or inconsistency

e) recognise that an officer has the final say on the wording of the report

Members recognise that officers have the duty and right to provide
appropriate professional advice, and the right to have that advice recorded, so
that all elected Members are fully aware of the implications of their decisions.
Officers recognise that it is the right of the elected Members to take the final
decisions in the light of their advice.

Where the Council, the Leader/Executive or a committee or sub committee

authorises a named officer or officers to take action after consultation with a
Member or Members, it must be recognised that it is the officer, not the

Page 282 PART 5 — SECTION B



4.1

412

4.13

414

4.15

4.16

5.1

Member, who takes the action and the officer who is accountable for the
implementation of the decision. If an officer has concerns about a decision
they have been instructed to action, they should approach the Chief Executive
or Monitoring Officer for guidance.

Officers are accountable to their Strategic Director or Head of Service. While
officers must always seek to assist Portfolio Holders and Chairmen (or indeed
any Member), they must not, in so doing, go beyond the bounds of whatever
authority they have been given by their Strategic Director or Head of Service.
Members must not deliberately put staff in a position that could give rise to
conflict between them and their Manager and/or Strategic Director or Head of
Service.

Council's role as employer

In their dealings with officers, Members must recognise and have regard to
the Council's role as employer. Members must be aware that officers could
rely on inappropriate behaviour of a Member in an employment case against
the Council.

A Member must not act as the "friend" of an individual in a staffing matter and
must avoid being involved in and lobbying over staffing matters.

It is equally the responsibility of all staff to respect the structural, procedural
and managerial arrangements in force at any time and specifically refrain from
taking individual matters of terms and conditions or a matter relating to other
aspects of employment directly to an elected Member.

Should such an approach occur the Member must refer the matter to the
Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer without comment other than to advise
the member of staff of such action. The Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer
will refer the matter to the Human Resources department where appropriate.

The Speak Up Policy

Any concerns of wrong-doing raised by officers with the Chairman or Vice
Chairman of the Employment Committee or Political Group Leaders, which
are deemed to be qualifying disclosures as set out in the Speak Up Policy, will
not be treated as a breach of this Protocol.

CONCERNS ABOUT CONDUCT AND CAPABILITY

Members must not raise issues about the conduct or capability of an officer or
officers in public as officers cannot respond in public. Members must avoid
undermining respect for officers at meetings, or in any public forum. This is a
long standing tradition in public service. Officers similarly must not criticise or
undermine respect for Members at a Council meeting or at any other meeting
they attend in their capacity as an employee. This would be damaging both to
effective work relationships and to the public image of the Council.

Page 283 PART 5 - SECTION B



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

6.2

If a Member feels that an officer has not treated him/her with proper respect or
courtesy, or has a concern about the conduct or capability of an officer,
he/she must raise the matter with the relevant Strategic Director or Head of
Service. The Strategic Director or Head of Service will look into the facts and
report back to the Member. If the Member continues to feel concerned,
he/she must then report the facts to the Chief Executive who will look into the
matter afresh. Any concern about an Strategic Director or a Head of Service
must be raised privately with the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer or the
Member's Group Leader. Any concern about the Chief Executive must be
raised privately with the Monitoring Officer, or the Member's Group Leader.

If an officer feels that he or she has not been treated with respect and
courtesy or is concerned about any action or statement relating to him or her
or a colleague by a Member, or the conduct of a Member, the officer must
raise the matter with the Monitoring Officer, as appropriate. Informal advice
can be sought from their line manager or Strategic Director or Head of
Service.

If a Member or an officer believes a Member has breached the Members'
Code of Conduct he or she must advise the Monitoring Officer immediately of
the circumstances and supply all and any documentation. No opinion or
judgement upon that conduct must be offered to the Member or to any other
officer or Member without the prior consent of the Monitoring Officer in order
to prevent any investigation that may need to be carried out being fettered or
damaged.

Where an officer or a Member is concerned about potential unlawful conduct
of an officer or Member, the Council's Speak Up procedure is available to
raise issues of bad practice, possible fraud or corruption and other matters
which seem to be against the interests of the public, the Council or its staff.
The Member or officer can also speak to the Monitoring Officer or the Section
151 Officer, or in their absence their deputies.

OFFICER ADVICE AND SUPPORT

Generally

Officers serve the Council as a whole and not exclusively any political group,
combination of groups or any individual member of the Council. Officers must
treat all political groups and individual Members in a fair and even-handed
manner. Whilst in practice support is likely to be in most demand from
whichever party group is for the time being in control of the Council, support is
available to all party groups.

The advice provided by officers must be factual, honest, objective and
politically neutral yet sensitive to the political aspirations and constraints of
elected Members but it must not reflect, or be influenced by, those aspirations
and constraints. The advice given by officers will have the ultimate aim of
serving the interests of the Borough Council as a whole. Members shall take
the advice of officers into account.

Page 284 PART 5 — SECTION B



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Officers will often wish to seek political guidance in framing policy proposals
but, when officers write formal reports for Member decision, they have a duty
to give the advice dictated by their professional expertise. Members must not,
therefore, direct the content of formal reports being prepared by any officers.

Officers can only be asked to provide advice to Members on matters which
clearly relate to the Council's business and activities and issues which arise
from being an elected Member. Any Council information provided to a
Member must only be used by the Member in connection with the proper
performance of the Member's duties as a member of the Council. Members
must not request officers to carry out research for them covertly. Members'
access to information will be a 'need to know' basis (as outlined in the Access
to Information Procedure Rules at Section E of Part 4 of the Constitution).

Members may approach any officer to obtain such reasonable information,
explanation and advice about that officer’s service area’s functions to assist in
discharging their role as members of the Council or any particular role, e.g.
representative on an outside body to which they have been appointed by the
Council. This can range from a request for general information or research
about some aspect of a service area’s activities to a request for specific
information on behalf of a constituent. Such approaches should normally be
made to the Strategic Director, Service Head or another senior officer of the
service concerned. In cases of doubt, the appropriate Strategic Director or
Head of Service or the Monitoring Officer should be asked for assistance.

Officers responding to Members' queries must do so in accordance with the
Council’s Customer Care Standards.

Support to party groups

It is common practice for political groups to give preliminary consideration to
Council business before the matter is considered by the relevant Council
decision making body. Officers may properly be called upon to provide
support to party groups, and the support can take many forms, ranging from a
briefing meeting with a Chairman or spokesman before a formal meeting, to a
presentation to a full party group meeting.

Requests for officers to attend any party group meeting must be made
through the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer. Members cannot insist that
officers go to meetings of political groups.

Officer support must not extend beyond providing information and advice on
Council business. Officers must not be involved in advising on matters of
party business. The observance of this distinction will be assisted if officers
are not expected to be present at meetings or part of meetings when matters
of party business are to be discussed. To facilitate this, where an officer
accepts an invitation to attend a party group meeting, the party secretary must
arrange the meeting so that any briefing or presentation given by the officer is

Page 285 PART 5 - SECTION B



immediately followed by a question/clarification session. The officer will then
leave the meeting whilst the political discussion takes place. It may be
appropriate to ask the officer to remain outside the meeting for not longer than
15 minutes, in case any further clarifications are necessary.

6.10 Officers must interpret any request for advice, and advice given, as
confidential and not accessible to any other political group. They must not
relay the content of any discussions at which they are present to another
political group. However, factual information upon which the advice is based
will, if requested, be available to all political groups.

6.11 An officer's advice to a political group or member, or help in formulating a
policy, must not be assumed to be support by the officer for the policy.

6.12 Officers' advice to a party group cannot be a substitute for providing all
necessary information and advice to the Leader/Executive, Committee or
Working Group when the matter in question is considered.

6.13 Group Leaders must ensure that only councillors are present whilst party
groups are being briefed by officers. If the officer is aware that non-
councillors are present at the group meeting, he/she must leave without
addressing the meeting.

6.14 Political group meetings are not empowered to make decisions on behalf of
the Council. Conclusions reached at party meetings therefore must not be
interpreted or acted upon as decisions on behalf of the Council.

6.15 In addition to any briefing before a meeting, minority group representatives
will also be afforded the opportunity of a briefing through their appropriate
spokesman.

6.16 Any particular cases of difficulty or uncertainty in this area must be raised with
the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer, who will discuss them with the
relevant group leader(s).

7. OTHER LOCAL CONVENTIONS GOVERNING MEMBER/OFFICER
RELATIONS

Correspondence

7.1 An officer should not normally copy correspondence between an individual
Member and an officer on a matter relating to a single constituent to any other
Member. Where, exceptionally, it is necessary to copy the correspondence to
another Member, this must be made clear to the original Member. In other
words, a system of “silent or blind copies” must not be used. If the officer is
unsure he/she must seek clarification from his/her Strategic Director or Head
of Service.

7.2 In some cases issues are raised by, or with, individual members relating to a
matter of general interest in a Borough Council Ward or individual Parish.

Page 286 PART 5 - SECTION B



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

8.1

Copies of correspondence will therefore normally be sent to all councillors for
the ward (and adjacent area if appropriate) and only in exceptional
circumstances will a request not to copy to other councillors be granted, for
example, the author may have specifically requested that the letter not be
copied. Political advantage or sensitivity is not considered to be such a
circumstance.

Official letters on behalf of 